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be testifying, as well as many éthers_who'are interested in

PROCEEDINGS

CHAIRMAN.WILKINS: The:Commission will come to
order. |

This is another in a series~of'publi¢ hearings we 
héve been hoiding ovef the last three years. The Commission
began its work and édopt the pélicies, but before any:deciéions
were made, that all of the issués wou1d be put'out for public
commenf-énd we would havé public>cdmmehtary, written-aé weli.
as oral, befbre_we made any decisioﬁs. | |

As you know, pursuant to étatutory.diredtion and.'
authority,,the Commission is.considéring a series ofvaﬁend-
ments to thé guidelines whicﬁ wére promuléated 6n May 1, 1987,
and the purpose of our hearing today is to réceive comment
ébout these various_proposed-amendments as well‘as'other re-
iated issueé.  | | |

We appreciate’very‘muchlthe Very'obvious effort, time
and energy and thought that haé.gone intd thé prepéred written

statements which we have received from the witnesses who will

the work of the Sentencing Commission and the improvement of
the administration of'justice.

Let me caution everyone, usually it»iS‘our fault
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when we run over, but we>Wan£ té give evefyone thersame oppor-
tunity to be heard, so I Would‘appreciate éna the Commission’
wouid all appreciaté itnif thése witnésses-would summarize
their testimonylgnd provide some ample time iﬁ the space
allotted for questions from the Commission.

Our first witnesé'is Ms. Anné"Seymour.' Mé. Seymour
ié a.reprééentative of the Natioﬁal Victims Centér,.Fért
Worth, Texas.

Ms. Seymour( please come around.

Ms. Seymour informed us this morning that she is on

_other business and has a very tight schedule and must be out

of here‘shortly'after'Q:OO o'clock; consequently we will not
have time for oral questions'énd ahéwers frbm Ms. Seymour} but
she has committed to address any questioné we have in writiné.

Thank you very muéh,'Ms. Seymour.' We are delighted
that you are here and we are delighted to have a representa-
tive for the Victims Rights Mbvément with us.

MS. SEYMOUR: Thénk ydu; I ém delighéedjto be here,
Mr;'Chéirman and Commissioners. | | |

My name is Anne Seymour, as you know, and'I am
répresenting the Nétional Victimslcénter. e have-officesAin

Fort Worth and in New York City, and our organizatibn serves
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"over 6,400 victims service and criminal justice programs around

~the country.

I just want to explain first that I have had a long-

‘time interest in sentencing, ever since I was a probation

officer, about 10 years ago. From there, I went to the
California‘Legislature, where I worked for‘béth the-Spéaker_of
the H&use, Willie Brown, and President pro teh, Dave Ve?berti,.
at a time when we were really dqing some serious changes in
the ériminal Justice Cdde in.éalifornia,’inclUding the move to.
determinant sentencing.

From there, I moved to TeXés and,‘in working as a '
Director for the National Office of Mothers Agaiﬁst Dfunk
Driving, I Was really surprisgd to.find that you’didh't really
hear DUI offenses and sentenciné in the-same sentence, which
I thought was reﬁiss.

Fiﬁally, when we started the National Victims-Centér

over three years, I began‘to realize that it was very important

~to victims that the severity of crime be'matchedAby.severity

in_sentence. I have also had the dpportunity[to work for

several years for the American Correctional Association's

Task Force on Victims of Crime, where I have learned again and

again that the level of sentencing is terribly_important to
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of 1984, in an effort to fulfill that promise. It was due to

- of punishment in areas such as serious violent crimes or white

tion of being the "drug murder capital of the Nation." They

7

a victim's short-term aﬁd long-tefmlemotiohai aﬁd'psychblogical
recoyery;‘ |

~ While the injuries suffered by-the‘victim;'of crime
vary, their désire to’see justicé done4reméins constaﬁt._ In
our view, dne of the most_important.réﬁédies the crimiﬁal
justice system can offerkto'victims is the promise ﬁhat
similarlbffenaerS’who commi£ similar crimesyﬁill-rééeive swift,
propdrfionate'and‘uniform punishmeﬁt.

Indeed, Congress enacted the Sentencing Reform Act

the creation of this Commission -and its guideline sentencing'
system that Congress intended not only to eliminate unwarranted

sentencing disparity, but also to change historical patterhs

collar offenses, for which plainly inadequaté séntences ﬁave.u
been imposed in the past.

 .fhose gQals femain'as ufgent today; if not more so,
thén they were in 1984.,'In our‘citiés, whole.neighborhoods
have become the alien preserve of drﬁg dealefs'and the‘open
baftleground‘for.incfeasiﬁgly'bloody gang confliCts.V:Indeéd,

this Commission sits in a city which has the dubious distinc-
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million. That annual report,” the most recent aVailable, cannot

just>racked up the 130th murdef yesterdayf

Sadly, il;egal use and trafficking in drugs has 
permeatéd virtually all levels of_séciety, from)the back
streets to main street. Nor isrit only in the area of drugs
that a new wave of‘lawlessnesé is felt; - In recent years, the
Nation has witnessed an explosion in white collaf and economic:
offenées. Insider trading and stéck fréud providé a primel
example.

As the House Commerce Committeé éonclude.in-their.
repoft issuedvlast year; the insider tradingAécéndal on Wall
Street represents faf more then the transgress;ons of a few
individuals. -Instead; the Committee found criminal conduct
to be a£ the heart of a substantial améunt of market activity
by established.sécurities industry érofessiénals,'

In his annual report for 1986, the Attornéy General

placed losses due to economic crime generally-at over $200

take into account more recenfraevelopments,:such‘as the mgssive
defense procurement fraud.investigation currently being spear-
headed by the U.Ss. Attorney in Alexandria, or‘the saVingé and
loan crisis which'copﬁinues to unfold, énd.we are certainly

feeling the impact of that down in Texas.
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Against‘this backdrop, we find‘a.nuﬁber of the pro—
posals being cdﬁsidered by‘the Commission:to bé somewhat
difficﬁlt to support. For example, we are perplexed by the
ﬁwo proposals currently before you which Qould substantially
reduce.sentences fqr éareer offenders. Under sgction 994 (h)
of Title 28, U.S. Code, thé Commission is required to "assure
that the guidelines specify a sentehcévtd a'term.of imprison-
ment_at or near the maximum term" for aidefendant over the age
of 18 is convicted for thé.third time of a'crime.of violence
or a drug felony.

Given thelcurrent high and incfeasing levels of drug
related violent crimes, lévelsvof crimes which are nowhere
more evident than here in the.Disﬁrict of Columbia, it. seems
at best perverse for the Commission to coﬂsider at this time a
chahge thatlwould‘sefiously undefmine.tﬁét-Very sﬁecific
congréssional directive, yet that is exactly wha£ the proposals
if promulgated, would do. )

The sentence discounts thatkwouid be effected by thg_
careér offender prbposals.are far from.hinimal;w Aécording to
the Commiséion’s own caléulations, ﬁnder the propdsals, a
qareerbbanklrobber convicted this particular time of unarmed

robbery could look for a reduction in existing guidelines'of




10
1
12
13

14.

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22 -

10

up to 12 yoafs. If.he uses. a gun, his:discount could.be in4
creased és much as 15 years below présent guidelines. IfAthe
armed_robber seriouély injured oomeonelduringIthe‘courée of
the offense; he coula receive'up to i4d moﬁths discount below
present quidelines. |

Similarly, if the offender is a career drug pusher
and is convicted this time for>$ellin§ 10 gféms of heroin,_
he could look forward to a reduction in_hié éenteﬁce as ﬁuch
as 255 montho, which is moré tﬁan 21 Years,‘as compared £o the |
extant guidelines.. |

. According to the'proposal, if the offender would

happen'to turn 50 before the end of@his;potehtial term of

imprisonment, he could be eligible for even great discounts. . .

If_wevcorrectly-understand this aépect of the proposals, those
over 50 woﬁld be entitled fo a»sorolofo"éeﬁior citizen"
discoont, in‘parﬁ because, in the wordSAOfAthe.Commiésion,
criminal careers generally do not extend beyoﬁd age 50<ana
crimihality is not a good.predictor of futﬁre criminality
beyond .10 to 15 years.

| That argument oroves a little too'much for many
victims I.koownaﬁd for a lot of othérs ooﬁcerns with criminal

justice.
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offender until the age of voluntary retirement. If that were

‘ties which diminish with the age of the offender, taking care,

but in the SéntehcéARéfdrm,Act as a whole and in other enact-

11

If the primary concern of this or any other criminal
: : !

5

statute is criminality as a predictor of criminality, then
under the Commission‘s reasoning-there.would ne&ef be a feason
for:imposing a sentence of imprisonmentvfot a term of more
than 15 years. Nor is it clearlthatvthe purpose of this or

any other criminal statute is primarily to incapacitate an
so, then the Commission would need to'adopt a system of penal-

however,.to account for individual différencésf

..in-its explanationléf the_proposalé, the Commission
also notes criticism that the‘career offeﬁder guideline'ddes
not adeqﬁately reflect the instructions whidh the Congress has

given to the Commission, not only-in 28 u.s.c., section 994 (h),

ments as well.
Notably; although -the Commiésioﬁ'snexplanation'claims
al.congressional soﬁfce for thatvcrificiém, it féils to.cite
any House or Seﬂate report, any bili Qr resoluﬁion or any -
sfatement iﬁ the Congressional'Recérd.hrlhdeed,,when one in-
speéts Congress' recent actions, itsvwiil with'respect to

crimes of violence and drug felonies is unmistakable.
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For example, just lastlyear, Congress raised the

‘minimum mandatory penalty for carrying a firearm during a

crime from 10 to 20 years, raised the mandatory penalty for
committing a crime which involved carrying a machinegun or

silencer from 10 to 30 years, and made a second conviction for

such an offense subject to a mandatory term of life imprison-

ment, and also created a mandatofy life term of imprisonment

for offenders convicted for the third time of a drug felony.

"Last year, also, Congress raised the cap on the Victims of

Crime Act to $150 million, which is certainly showing their
commitment to the victims of violence.
Of course, one should not forget that, as a result

of the '86 and '88 Anti-Drug Abuse Acts, Title 21 is replete

| with mandatory minimums.

In our view, that recent records stands in stark
contrast to an argdment'that Congress would be sympathetic to

newly promulgated sentencing ‘discounts for career drug and

violent offenders. On the contrary, it seems that Congress

intends the opposite, namely, that upon conviction the.
penalties would hit career offenders like a brick wall,
certain, severe and high.

Provisions like the career offender statute are
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and. violent crimes, as posing a threat to society and as.

"proposed amendments to convert statutory mandatory minimum

13

intended to recognize those who repeatedly commit drug felonies

possessing a level of culpdbiliﬁy far’above other offenders.
Accordiegly,-the career effender»statﬁte singles qut.such'-
criminals for harsher treatment. 'Remarkably, thefCommission
seems to be flinching at the prospects of ceftain severe
punishment for serious offenses.

Significant in that regard is the apparent policy of

the guidelines which is continued and intensified under the

sentences into guidelinemaxihum sentences.
| In commenfing on‘the Anti-Drgé Abuse Aet.of.1988[

Senator Strom Thurmond warned thatlfhe potential problem with
mandatory_minimum sentences was that they may have the prac-
tical effect of becoming a flat sentence which 5udges-tend foi
impose, regardless of aggravatiﬁg factors whidh'should warraﬁt
a more severe penalty.

| .The.Senator fUrther fecognized that sentencing guide-
lines eould overcome that pfoBlem by taking into aecount_such
aggravaeing circumstances. MUﬁfortuhately; the proéosed new
guidelines genefelly fail'£o meet Senafef,Thurmopdﬁs'eohcerhs.

Indeed, they often-aggravate the problem by insuriﬁg that the




10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

gard to aggravating factors.

to intérpret that mandate as not even suggesting reconsideratiao

14

statutory minimum becomes a flat sentence imposed without re-

To illustrate,»the propdsed.guidelinesfér drug
impértation.by aircraft, for'dfug‘éffehses involving children;
for drug offenses in prisons, and for usiﬁg certain weapons in
connection with the dfug felony Or‘crime of violence, merely
repeatvthevstatutory language creétiﬁg'the minimum of,simply
iﬁcorporates'the statute by referencé.".

Yet, under each of those provisions of the Anti-Drug
Abuse Act of 1988, when read in the context of fhe pOwefs and
authofitieﬁ which the Commission~r¢¢eived in the Sentencing‘»
Reform Act of f84, the Commission has the authority and
responsibility to include'aggravating factors in its guide-
lines. We are at a ioss to understand why ﬁhe proposals fail .
td_do so. |

The guidelines seem strangely blind with respect to
dfugs and other ways as WeilﬁA Forvexample,-Congress has
required that the Commission increasé the penalty_for operating
a common»qarrier under the.iﬁfluéncé'of a controlled éubstance_
or alcohol or death or seriously'bodily injury as a résult.

Somewhat strikingly, however, the Commission seems

n
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of whether the current flat offense of (8) in Chapter 2 is

appropriate for all other circumstances. We believe that it

is not.  When the pilot of an airliner or the engineer of a.

: drain'operatés their vehicles under the influence of drugs or

alcohol, at the very least they place their passehgers in
grave danger. Thatvno mishap occurs is purély fortuitous.
Under tﬁe_cﬁrreht guidelihes, such offenders'would receivé a
Level 8 which, with the Level 2 reauction for accéptancé of
respohsibility, could result.ih a seﬁténée of 0 to 6 mgnths.

probation, with no jail time at all. .Cléarly, that sentence

- is disproportionately low to the risk created by thé‘offehse.

'Mﬁst the victims die orAbe seriously injﬁred before
we are prepared to punish those Who put all our lives at risk
with such careless behavior? Can we not récognize_the in—
herent cfimin&litf‘bf a piiot of a}méjor coﬁmer¢ial airline'
who takes drugs before of while flying, and set th¢ sentence'
so as to deter and'punish?

‘The proposed guideline is also disproportiohately |
1ow,‘compéred to the way the guidélines to meet far less
serious offenses. Fpr example, a con méh Qho-fraudulently'

takes $10 under the pretext_bf-collecting donations for

. charity receives an offensellevel of 10 under Chapter 2, as
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does the £hief-who stéals one undeiivered ietter'ffom the Post |
'Oﬁfice. Even allo&ing for the two-level reductiqn for 
acceptance of responsibility;’the offenders in those cases
woﬁld be requrired under the guidelines toiserve'some time in
confinement. Surel?, placiné the entiré crew and passengérs
Qf an airline in jeopardy by piloting under the iﬁfluence of
drugs or alcohol is a moré serious offense, but deserve
greater, not less punishment..

We believe -- and I personally, as a frequent flier,

believe -- the guidelines‘shoﬁld treat it as such. Again, as
'with the drug provisions‘mentibned earlier, the Commission's
' treatment of congressionally mandated increase for death or

serious injury virtually converts the statutory minimum into

a guideline maximum. Why is thére no increase fér the'number
of vinims of the nature of drugs?.

Similarly perélexing is the Commission's agonizihg
over the treatment of marijuana plahts; In-the.Anti—Drug
Abuse Act of 1988, Congress created an equivalency beﬁween 100
marijuana plants and 100 kilograms of marijuana. 'Thé Commis—
sion seems chcerned'that ektending that equivalency beyond
what is absoiutely requiredvby statuﬁe will be to trea£ sméll

marijuana growers, in the Commission's view those with_fewer
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than 50 plants, too severely.
| Yet, even assuming that'Congresé was primarily éon-_
cerned with targeting large-scale marijuana-growers; thatlis B
no. reason tobgive a discount to'other.offenders.

The Commission also seems concerned that weighing

both the LSD .and the medium within which it is disbursed,

which is usually blotter paper or sugar cube, would be unfair

to the pusher. Yet, for many offenses, including those
involving LSD, the prohibitions contained in Title 21 are

tied to the weights of a mixture or substance containing a

- detectable amount of a cOntrolled'substanCe.  Why the sugar

cube should be treated as something other than the substance
containing a detectable amount of LSD, because it weighs more

than blotter paper, is unclear. The law addresses the entire

. substance or mixture and does notVattempt to separate out'the

drug in its pure form.

The Commissioﬁ's concern here runs.contrary'to the
poiicy which Congress has éet in thesé matters.‘ Indeed, in
United Statesnv. Bishop,_theVCourtladdre§sed the question of
whether the penalty impoSed”under the guidelines should be

determined according to the weight of the LSD alone or as

disbursed in a medium, and there it was blotter paper. In
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his opinion, Judge Hanson found.tﬁat thé plain.laﬁguage in-
dicates that-Congress‘inﬁended.for the penalties imposed to

be drivenlby the quantity of a mixturevor 5ubstance containing
a detectable émount of LSD'and,_hence, relevant weight for
purposes of determining sentenée is the wéight_of the blotter
paper in which the LSD is disburséd.

Given the current national éommitment'to'stemming
drug abuse, we seevno justifiable reason'for the Commission to
résist'the conéressional resolve by, in effect, mandating |
iower-sentences under the guidelines for certain drug offeﬁses
involving LSD than would otherwise be;prévided-ﬁnder stafute.

The Commission should, however, give consideration to

‘increasing the drug quantity table to‘provide scale penalties .

for quantities which exceed current ceilings. 'As drug inter-

diction efforts increase, the number of cases involving
massive amounts of controlled substances are on the rise.
Already we have seen such cases brought, such as the Lahrer

case. The guidelines should provide certain penalties for

such, undoubtedly the most serious-drug offénders. -

1

o . The Commission should.not -hesitate:-in pushing for-
ward in the ‘white collar:crime area. .With respect to fraud,

the $5 million ceiling in the table contained in Section
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2(f)(l.l) simply is too 1ow.“Insider‘tradin§ cases, not
pareﬁthatically, in our judgment, a victimless crime at all,
alonevinvolve amounts substantially in excess of that amount.
For example, the Dennis Levine case'ih&olves»ah.alleged $12.6
hillion in unlawful gain. Ivan.Boesky allegedly méde~$50
million in unlawful profit, énd'the’case.against the fi;m of
Kidder, Peabody & Company involved pfofits over $lB.6vmillion.

In the area of procurement fraud, the picture“is

similarly devastating. The General Accounting Office reports

that 148 procurement fraud cases‘involving the Defense Depart—

ment involves an estimated loss of $387,396,999. Moreover,
cases against'single defendants have involved losses as high

as $90 million. Of course, defense procurement fraud can

“involve more than mere economic loss. It can also jeopardize

the lives of our men and women in uniform and place the

national security at risk.

We would therefore urge the‘Commission to comply

with the mandate of the Major Fraud Act and increse the

penalties for major fraud which involve a conscious or
wreckless risk of death or serious bodily injury. We would
recommend an increase in such offenses at least four levels,

thus corresponding to the standard enhancement for offenses
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“involving serious bodily injury used in the guidelines.

The Commission has élso requested our comménts coh-
cerning a proposed new abuse of sexual contact guideline.
While the proposed guideline'répfeéents a great improvement;
we believe it should provide higher penalties.. Moreover, with
respect to the proposed penalties:where_the offense.involves
a minor, we believe‘that the effgctive two-level discount
where the victim is' between the agés,of-l2-and 15 years is"
highly inéppropriate.

Finally, we would recommend that the_Cdmmissidn
further amend its guidelines for escape from a=corréctional
institﬁtion.' Under the current guidelines, a seven-level
reduction>i§ available for 1es$ serious éases; As currently
written, however, that reduction is available even for those
Who'are in prison as a resultvéf'committing a crimé of |
violence or a drug felony. Such lénienéy is wholly inappro-

priate and unacceptable, and ‘we would urge the Commission to

‘close this unnecessary and dangerbusvloophole in the guide-

lines. -
I appreciate. the oppoftunity to appear before you
and express the views of the National Victims Center and many

victims whom I work with. I have Paul contact information,
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"spond today, not this minute, because I know you have to go and

21
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where I can be reached, if_éﬁy(of you requife additional in-
férmétion or'clarificatiOn of my testimohy, which you will all
receive written copies of.r‘ |

| Thank you;

COMMISSIONER BREYER: Would it be all rigﬂt to ask
you a question now, not for you'tb respond now, buﬁli do»have‘
a questidn I would like a brief reéponse to.

MS. SEYMOUR: Could i respdnd later?

COMMISSIONER BREYER: Yes, I don't want you to re-

I very much appreciate your being here.
| MS. SEYMOUR{ Thank you.

COMMISSIONER BREYER{  I wouldn't ask it, except I
ﬁhink it is an impor;ant queétion in my mind. In my mind, I
don't think your group has taken a posifion on what I consider
to be the most important argument for chénging thé.cafeer
criminal pfovisions. .The redson in my-mind why the'change has
beeh.put for&ard has not to do with being more lenient at all.
It haé'to do with being tougher on crime and trying to increase
the deterrentueffect;

The_argument,:as I understand,it,-has‘to'do with How

can we actually use the prison system-cost effectively to put
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people, like bank robbers, medium-level drug dealers, by the

time they are eligible for this treatment, the career offender,

22
more people likely to commit crimes in‘prison and. thereby de-
terring; incépacitate people who might commit crime.' The
argument, as I understand it; is tﬁe folquing: That fhe
proposed career offender change focuses upon ho£ the most
serious crimiﬁals, not the major murderers or people‘who
commit very seriousvrapés or major drug dealers, bu£ those whor
I would call moderately serious criminals, the crimes are

serious but not the most serious. And what it says is those

they are likely to'be in their mid4thirties.
_ If we puﬁ'them away for 30 Years; which is equivalent
to a 90—year sentenée, we are keeping.them until tﬁey are.inv
their mid-60's éhd 70's. 'Let's let them out whenlghey a:e"
énly 50.A Let's keep them there for 20 yéars; like a 60-year
sentencé,.instéad of a 90—yeaf senténce. I mean let'é keep
them for 20 real years or 15, not 30. |
Now, if we do that, we will have, without bﬁilding a
lot more prisons, space aVéilable to increaSe‘the-senténce
for the first-time bank robbers, for érmed'first—time bank
robbers who perhaps éhould stéy in priéon maybe for 5 years or

7.years, instead of 2 or 3. If in fact yoﬁ use the spaée to

1
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build lots more prisons, you may be right, but they may not

and so in the real world, whéte'they may not be built, should-

to put in prison the péople'whd are likely to commit crimes if

‘they are not there, rather than using it to warehouse people
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put people in prison who are,yéunger, leaving out'of prison
the peoplé‘who are older, you,will»étoé people from committing
crimes during tﬁose years they are likely to éommithhe'crime,
so the_afgﬁment for this career change is it is a wayv0f
using that space in order totincapacitate people who are likély_'
to be committing crimes, instead éf incapacitating people who,
if we let them, wouldn't cbmmitbérimes.

Now;-I am not assessing the~mérit§ of that argumént,
bgtAI have heard that argument made at length and I thiﬁk it
is that argument'thatrled to this proposal, and that is what

I w—uld'appreciate you addressing.l If you say,:well, let's

be built.
MS. SEYMOUR: I live in Texas and I can certainly
appreciate the concern of prisoné,

 COMMISSIONER BREYER: Well, they may not be built,

not this Commission be concerned with how to use those prisons

who are 70 years old; who are‘nOt'likely to'bé committing

crimes at that point in their life?
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Now, I put that argument‘to you’and I am sorry for
using the time, but‘I thinklit.is importaht thét your organi-
zation address that argumenf; bébausé I would be—qﬁite
iﬁterested in your Views on thati
MS. SEYMOUR: i would be pleased to, aﬁd»I will send

you our argument.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you, Judge Breyer, and I

won't ask you to repeat the question..
y

[Laughtér.]

Ms. Seymour,‘I want to:thang you very much.

MR. SEYMOUR: Thank.you for the opportunity.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: You bring avperspectivé to this
Commission that always must be present‘when the ériminal
justice decisions are made.

Thank you.

Our next witness, two witnesses, as a matter of fact,
Edward Gennis, Jr., Assistant Attorney General, Criminal

Division, Department of Justice, and Mr. Joe B. Brown. Mr.

Brown is a U.S. Attorney from Nashville, Tennessee and, as you

know, is the Chair of the U.S. Attorneys Subcommittee on

Sentencing Guidelines.

.Both of you gentlemen are no strangers to this
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Commission and to the work, and we appreciate you taking the
time of assisting us with this important task.

Mr. Dennis?

- MR. DENNIS: It is certainly our pleasure, Mr.

Let me preface my prepéred'remarks by saying that, as
a former Assistant Uniﬁed Stétes Att0rney and United Statés
Attorney who has sort of_drifted into the career of-cfiminéi
prosecution, I have consistéhtly placed a-high-priofity on‘
sentencing advocacy,,and this was well‘befdre thelsenfencing
guidelines legislation became a reality. N

I feel that the;senteﬁcing pdrﬁidn:of the proseéué:
tion is probably one of the most éritiéal fof the érosecutor
and certainly for the déféndént, and I havé consisfently placed
a high emphasis on making sure that probation officers are

fully informed of the facts that form the basis of prosecution,

and this is particularly important where a cohviction is based |

upon a plea, rather than a trial. It can be even very im-
portant where there is a trial taking place, because the
probation officer is often not there and not necesarily familia

with the record, familiar with the exhibits} familiar with the

r
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harm that may have been eaused asla result of this particular-’
crime. | | |

I also feel that -- and this isn't just in terms of
my experience over the years -- that_the most important
element for ahy judge'to'fake inﬁo account in eentencing is
that the sentence is.appropriate te the cenduct, that although

certainly factors of one's personal backgreund and history

" should be taken into account, that the primary and the core

concern should be with the sentenee'really‘fitﬁing the crime.
So, when the sentehcing guideline legiélation was
passed and this distinguished Commission‘was formed, I felt
that this was cerﬁainly a recognitioﬁ ﬁhat the sentencing
procedures'should be given greater attention, and I think tha£

the work of this Commission has been oustanding. It has

certainly been a very difficult and arduous task, I know, and

a very complicated one, but I think that the guideline scheme

| that has emerged in theory, in termS'of the way that the .

guidelines are structured and_thevappropriate bélances that
have 5een made ineofar as the'matrix syetem is eoncerned, is
about as good as you could pessibly make it, and we can ergue
ovef the epecific decisions that ﬁay be madevin.terms of

particulaf guideline ranges and levels, but in terms of the
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‘as U.S. Attorney in Philadelphia, we did manage to conduct at

Mastrata case had reached the Supreme Court.

‘with regard to how we would approach the guidelines, and I
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able system, it is one that has appropriate flexibility, it .
is understandable. .It certainly will take work on our part
to make sure that the training-is_there for Assistant U.S.

Attorneys, and I would just digress a moment by saying that,

least one seminar with the bench, with the defense bar and
with the Federal prosecutors, to familiarize ourselves with

the guidelines, and of course this was well before_the

Qf course, with that deeision by the Supreme'Court(
we are prepared to go forward with great speed to make sure
that our assistants are thoroughly versed in the guidelines
and the guideline system. As I stated I believe, Judge
Wilkins, you ahd I‘were on a,panel out in San Franc1sco when
the guidelines had just been_announeed'and bromulgated, and
at that time I was asked byvsomeenejin the audience whether

the'Departmeht of Justice would promulgate its own regulations

said at that time, and it is Stlll my v1ew, that the guide-
lines themselves are’the regulations for the Department, in

the sense that each U.S. Attorneys Office and each prosecutor
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should really take.his lead froﬁ fhe guidelines in terms of
Qhat is an appropriate'diquéition in.any.case'that he or
she is handlihg.' And so we are workiﬁg with the‘Commissioﬁ
insofar as making sure that the word getsibut,‘that_we-do B
have in place the appropriate guidance to prosecutors in terms
of pléa—bargaining and positions taken,'so that the‘guidelines
system is supported and that fhe wili of the Congress and the
will_of the pepple of the United States,.through the
répresentatives, is being followed insofar as achieﬁing the

goals that the guideline systém is designed to achieve, con-

 sistent sentencing, a rational system of sentencing, and

predictability insofar as sentencing is cohcerned.‘
This morning, of course, I believe that many of the

issues that will confront this Commission insofar as the

amendments  are concerned really relate to the question of how

much iéuenough, what is an appropriate‘sentence in any par-
ticular crime. ’

| Oof course, this ishan‘issue that I_think.will be of
increasing importance fér the Commission and fof,the Cdngréss
of the United States and for the Dgpartment of Justice,

because it is very clear to me that, although‘the decisions

made in terms of the appropriate levels of penalty to be
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imposed under the guideline system originally were‘based upon

_historical data related to the old parole guidelines, with

some real common sense about how certain disparities and

ambiguities and contradictions should be rationalized, and I
think that is certainly & reasonable approach, a very sensible

approach in terms of taking that first cut on what levels of

sentence should be imposed.

~But it is also equéiiy to me that,.as time goes on,
the Congress of the United,Statéé-will,.I am sure, under the
advice 6f its constituencies, be making decisiéns about what
are the appropriate ﬁaximums insofar as particuiar offenses
are concerned, and what this‘Commission faces is the.question

of how it should react when Congress raises maximum penalties

-in its criminal statutes, and that is the basis of my concern

here this morning. -
My prepared remarks I would ask be made a part of
the record, and certainly we discuss particular areas, areas

of career offenders, areas of fraud insofar as,the judgments

‘that havéibeen’tentatively-made on what levels of penalties

should be imposéd for very serious cases of fraud,'robbery,
sexual‘ébusé, and'other areas as well.

But as a broad.policy matter, I would ask. that the .
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‘and that is the fact that when you go from makiﬁg general:

pronouncements to having to apply these rules in the particular
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Commission seriously'consider the weight'that it must give to
congressional judgments that particular crimes should receive
enhanced penalties, because if that is ignored or if it is not

adequately taken into account, in my view the Commission will

that the Commission will win. In.a way; I think that is a
bad thing, because I view the Commission's ;éle-aéAfeally
making the critiéai judgménts and rationalizing this systém;..
and to some exteﬁt making sensible judgments about what
Congress may.really mean insofér as some leéislatioh, which
may be cohtradictory._ And I am not suggesting‘that it is just
a rubber stamp or that it should blindly increase penalties,

regardless of other factors.

But I feel that unless the Commission gives'consider-
able weight to legislation increasing the maéimum penalties
for criminal misconduct; that it will bring about iess;;'
flexible legislation in the future. The increased use of
maﬁdatory minimums, which could‘really‘undo'the feature of

the Commission that I think makes this whole system work,

oftentimes there are injustices that are done. . And when I say
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injustices, I am not one who believes that‘a-greater penalty
is necessarily a more just penalty. I know that this Commis-
sion is looking at the issue with regard to perhaps some
sentences that might be higher than they should be, and that

is the Commission certainly should operate, but it has to

particularly in its early Stagés of grappling‘with these
issues, that the Commission would be well-advised to take
seriously into account this particulér issue.

I.willunot attempt to addreSé spécifics ihsofar as
my statemeht is concerned. I will readily admit that, al-
though I went through that training ééursé'a few monthé_ago, I
do not pretend to be an expert inéofar as the reai details of
thé sentencing guideline:sysﬁem. I will say that the Criminal
Division has a training course thét is going ﬁo be héld this
month, and I will be attending that in order to brﬁsh up iﬁ
térmé of the specific guidelines, gnd I will-alSQ;rgadilymadmif
that Joe Bfown is a heck of a lot more convef#ant.in ferms of
the in's and out's of the amendments.and the guidelines than
I am, but this area that I have Spoken to you about is one
that I feei very stronglf about. It is my desire and the

desire of the Department to insure that the Sentehcing
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Commission continues to operate in the fashion that it has,

and we feel that our positions and recommehdations in,thisv

' regard is in the épirit of certainly supporting that system.

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you, Mr; bennis. Is it
your desire to hear from Mr. Brown ana then take quesﬁions?
| MR. DENNIS: Yes, and then také qdestions.
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Fine.
Mr. Brown, we would be élad to hear from you at this
time. ‘ |

MR. BROWN: Judge Wilkins, Members of the Commission,'

I also appreciate the opportunity of béing.here today. I know

| many of you have had the opportunity to sit in‘on some of the

subcommittee meetings, and we have tried I think to always
iﬁvite the Commissioners and some of yoﬁ_have been able to
attend and we have generally.had some of’the staff there,
because we believe that an open diséussion of the problems is
benéficial for both the Départmeﬁt'of‘Jtéticé“ana for the
Commission. | |

We will be submitted in our Phoenix meeting, wﬁich
Commissioner Block attended, at least a’portion 6f it, Qe went

there and discussed all of the amendments, and we should have
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I think aﬁ améle time‘last_Week, our comments in some detail
on that through Steve‘Saltzbufg, 6urvéx—officié_representative.'
We have several'thét we are cohcerned‘about. Mrf
Dennis I»think in his preparednremafks covered many of them,
involving sexual abuse of children, particu1ar1y on the_Ihdian
reservafions, is a serious-problem for many of the u.s. |
Attorneys; the insider trading, which in'ﬁis prepared remarks
are fairly specific; the érobleﬁ there'with the savingsvandr

loans énd such that we feel there does need. to be substantial

increases.

I think, generally speaking,’on the_iésues where
Congress has increased the minimum mandatory, and obviously -

Congress now is aware of the Sentencing Commission and awaré_

. of what they are doing, it seems to me that you do have to

give gréat weight whén:Congress substantially indreéses the
maximum punishment, that they do believe thaﬁ an increase in
the guideiines is necessary. It'doeéﬁ't'do mugh good for;
Congress to increase the punishﬁént substantialiy, if.the
guidelines do not take that into a¢coﬁﬁt, at leést propor-
tionately, and I think that was a question asked by the
Commissidn,‘and our response is we tﬁink1tha£vmﬁst’bégiven‘

great weight. If Congress goes from 1 yearAto 15 years, they
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.are really expecting I think a Substantial increase in the

punishment for that area, and that comes up in the firearms.
On the other hand, I think, as Mr. Dennis pointed
out, minimum mandatory sometimes distort the system,‘that,sort

of trumps the guidelines in many respects and I think we have

to be sometimes careful in asking too much for minimum manda-

tories. Those are sometimes alband—aid;:ét 1eas£ in mf view,
and.we need to have.increased punishmenf; Congressis
obviously very concerned about that,>but'I think %ometimes”s
they cause problems in apélicétion of the'system.

And to the extent the Commission has also asked the
question, what do_you do when there is a minimum mandatory,~
héw do you set your sentencing guideline levels, from the U.S.
Attorney perspective, we would 1iké to éeé ﬁhem seﬁ at least

a little above the minimum mandatory, so that if you have an

acceptance of responsibility, you can come down a little bit.

Otherwise, we have no give tdAthé sjstem and we.have really

no inducement for a plea. And while SOQe'of the cases involv-
ing, for ihsﬁance, fireérms are relativeiy simple cases,

they either have the gun, they éither have the prior convic-
tions or they don't, but nevertheless, you are still talking

about -- you can't try anything in Federal court in less than
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a day now, and 2 days is consideréd.a fairly shoft_trial, ifv
you throw in a.ﬁotion to suppresé,'ﬁhich tﬁere generally;is.

So, we would liké to see at least éomé flexibility
so that we have an opportunityvfor’please. Bank fobbéry is
one that many U.S. Attorneys hévé commented on. The‘Parole
Commission did a recent stud§ of/some 21 cases --

-CHAIRMAN WILKINS:, Mr. Brown, let's suspend just a
second. ;Everyone is signaling they can't hear, and we‘are
héviné some difficulty hearing,'atvlééstll am. I can hear
you, but it is not amplifying"aévifyshould: .What;é the
problem?. | |

[Pause.]

MR. BROWN: Usuélly I am accused of being too loﬁd,
but I apologize. I will try to speak up'a_little. |

-On the bank robbery issue, the Parole Commission did
a study,-a'study of some 21:cases, 57‘percent of them under

the :guidelines were less than they currently were. In fact,

‘one of them received a more severe sentence, 7 were the same,

and 13 were less. 

We feel in general that the bénk robbery guidelines
overall are too low, even for unarmed bank robbery or the so-

called note job. We feel like there should be a substantial
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raise in that area, which we have addreséed eafiier. And we
also feel thaﬁ, particulérly where thére_afe'firearms used,
there should be a very substantial --

CHAIRMAN WIﬁKINS: Sfbp atminuté; There is no use
'fof us to spend a lot of time and effortvénd money and all
you folks éome_and nobody caﬁ4hear. Excuse.me, Mr. Brown.

MR. BROWN: Surely.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: I don't know whether the other
Commissioners can hear. ¥ou can hear with some difficulty,>
but I know folks in the back can't heér.k We didn;t have any
trouble hearing Mr. Dennis, but maybe it is just the movement
of the microphones that created some diétdrtion;

MR.‘BﬁOWN: Maybe I am a 1ittlé £ailer than Ed and
I am further away from ﬁhem. | |

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Is that a problem? Now it is not
wquihg. | |

[Pause.]

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Joe, you are just going to have

to give us --

MR. BROWN: We are concerned on the bank robbery
issues, that they are in general too low across the board,

particularly those where firearms are involved. We recommend
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a level of apprdximately 8 where thefe'is_a firearm involved,
which would basically b;ing it to the 5-year, it would be
imposed by 924(c). 1In many cases, you could charge a 924 (c)
aﬁd arrive at the same result, but thére are other cases.in

which, for proof problems, a firearm undoubtedly was used, but

“you don't catch the person with the firéarm, and yoh may have

a beyoﬁd—a-reaSonable-doubt problem in proving a 924(c). How-
ever, it is clear from photographs, it is clear from the
description that it was in fact a gun and, by’préponderance

of the evidence, which we believe is the appropriate test for

.enhahcement, you could use the bank robbery enhancement, so.

that is why we are recommending'a very substantial.increaée'
there.

We also think there should be_é specific_offense
charaéteristic for a simulated or évfake Qeapon. - The threat
tQ.a'victim or the fear generated in a victim by'someohe
putting -- even though it tufhs out'laﬁer to be é phony gun
_ in their féce is'cerﬁainly the same; whether it is real

or not, and we believe there should be a modest increase in

| bank robbery specific characteristics for that.

In the career offender categdry} which the Depart-

ment feels that, because of the congressional language, we
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need basically to stay what we have, but with an acception
of responsibility reduction, toigive us some flexibility there.

The Csmmission did propose an. option one of that

amendment, a Category 7 defense level. The U.S. Attorneys, in

discussing this, thought that it was'sn excellent idea, but

it should be applied across the board. We are beginning ﬁo
see many cases where the'offensevhistqry point, the criﬁinal
histdry»points afe up in ths 20's. Right now, Category 6 cuts
off'at 13, and We_believe there are many hsbitual, but not
necessarily'violent, criminals who need to be:covered, and
when that reach that level above 13 histofy points, we believe

that that option one would be -- the Commission should perhaps

consider adding that across the board to catch the habitual,

but not.necessarily violent. We see people, as sooﬁ as they
gét out, they write more bad checks; as soon as.tﬁey_get out
they go and steal something off a truck.' Thsy are habitual
criminsls,.their case history. I‘had one the chef day who
was 23, and we see a lot of those. |

The Hobbs Act amendment is one thatbwé sre aiso con-
cernéd about, many of the U.S. Attorneys are seeing Hobbs Act
Violatisns, particularly under.colsr of official right,'ﬁhere

the proper application of the guideline will often result in
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a sentence well under 2 years, perhaps for obstruetion of
justice, which often occurs in Hobbs Act, you do'get up to 2
years.- We feel that the Hobbs Act needs to be -- the base

level needs to be increased, and also there are two specific

‘characteristics there. One is the amount of bribes taken or

sought, and the other is the fach that théy are a.public of-
ficialf .Right'now, YOu are.the higher of'the two; - We believe
you should add those two fpgether to get the Hobbs Act up.

Public officials that abuse their trust need to be
punished more severely. It_erodes our faith in government;
Once we erode our faith in government, we'have serious prob-
lems, and the Hobbs_Act is our bestvaftack on that, so we feel
very strongly that the Hobbs Act‘pafticulariy'needs substan-
tial revision. | |

On the escape provisions, Amendment 160, generaily

speaking, we think that there perhaps should be an adjustment

there for those offenders th'are’violentfcriminalsjand the

drug offenders. We are geing to be seeing those in jail now
fonAlonger'periodsvof time. I'aon't think iﬁ is'unreasonable
te think that those people are going to be more likely to try
to escape perhaps than others, so perhaps on . the escape there

should be an enhancement of a couple of levels for those
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individuals serving those types of sentences.

One other general matter.and'then IIWill leave some
time obviously for_questions. The Commission, in -- I have
trouble numbers -- 6(b)(l.1lc) had recomméndéd the_courtsb
defer acceptahce of plea pending the PSI; presentence report.
That takes a éonsiderable>amount'0f time to do. Sixty days
is going to be féifly quick in most sifuaﬁions.'

| Wé‘have a concern that.during that péridd of time,
the defendant basiCally can almost_change his mind at will.

Perhaps he begins to feel that the presentence report is not

'going to be quite as favorable as he briginally thought and.

he changes his mind. The stanaard for withdrawal at this
point, és I understand it and we understand it, islbésically
he can do‘it;
We recommend £hat either the'Comﬁission‘perhapé de-
leté that 1§nguage or thét the court, where possible -- and |
generally, we'think the courf’can.accept.thebpiea of quilty
itself, but_reservé aéceptance'oflthe pléa agreement, so ﬁe
get locked in where we go to a hiéher standard, that if the_‘
defendant thén wants td withdraw, ﬁé has got tovshbw,fair
and just or just cause. But right now it is an openfended

problem. We release our witnesseé when we get that, and if -
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.something happens to a-witnesé,'tﬁé defendaﬁts éan try to'
withdraw,: If ﬁhe plea has'beén accepted; perhaps the plea
agfeement itseif feserved, and we do understand'thé Commis-
éion's saying that tﬁe courts should not buyua pig-in a poke
and appfove a élea agreement at the time it is given, but we 

think there is a possibility ——vahd many courts apparently are

'doing this -- of going ahead and accepting a plea of guilty

and telling the defendant that the actual terms of the agree-
ment will be reserved until such time as the presenténce
repbrt is_cbmpleted and the court has had a time to study it.

We think the Commission should either consider addpting some

change in language, or at least pull out the directive or

suggestion to the court that it reserve'the plea in all cases.
Wé think that does céuse some practicél problems.

That basicaliy concludes my Qral‘rema;ks and I Qill
be glad to-ﬁryFto téke‘quéstions_along with'Mr, bennis that
the CommiSsion hés. |

CHAIRMAN WILKINS:' Tﬁank you vefy much,‘Mr. Brown.
What number was that you said, was that 6(b) (1.1) you were
referring to? |

- MR. BRbWNf fes..

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Okay.
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MR. BROWN: Yes, 6(b)(1.1) (c).

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Let me ask you this} with regard

| to carrer or special'Offenders, as a threshold question:or

issue that must be resolved, and I didn't know whether the
Department has taken a position, and, if so, what is the po-

sition. The statute reads in part "shall‘specify sentence to

| determine imprisonment," and the language I want to talk about

"is "at or near the maximum term authorized for categories of

defendants." The question is what is the Departmeht'svposi—

tion regardihg that language?

MR. DENNIS: Well, our position is fhat the language
means what it says and that the Commission éhould'designla |
formula that would insure that the sen£ence to be,imposed-is
at’or'near the‘maximum. As we'undersﬁand it now, the sentence
imposgd_wouid ﬁot be at or near the maximum.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: - The way ﬁhelguidelinés stand.now,
it would, some'proposals would move from -- |

MR. DENNIS: Wbuld move it, yes.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: So you say'thaﬁ the maximum term
authorized is thé maximum statutory»punishment -

'MR. DENNIS: Yes; that's right.

- CHAIRMAN WILKINS: -- allowed by statute.
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~oprtion, I believe, just basically said it was set absolutely

‘basically the current guideline is appropriate, but that there

~don't adequately distinguish particularly dangerous offenders,
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MR. DENNIS: Yes.

'MR. BROWN: I think, Judge, with the provision we do

think that -- right now there is no provision for an acceptance

the current guidelines to be amended to at least allow for
acceptance of responsibility,:_We'think the other amendments
that the Commission has proposed to the first two options are

too low. They do not get to the "at or near." The one third
at that and we think that is a little too Draconian. We think

shpuld bé the possibility at léast'of allowiﬁg the two points
for acceétance of responsibility. | |

CﬁAIRMAN WILKINS: Ijsee.

Let me ask Commissioners first to my right and then
to my left, if you have questiphs. |

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Yes, I do.

CHATIRMAN WILKINS: Commissioners BLock?

COMMISSIONER BLbéK: I had s quesﬁion and a request.
Let me address thé question.first.to_Joe Brown._ Ih.terms of

bank robbery, I share your concern that the existing guidelines
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- 44
and I am wondering, in addition to the categorization in terms

of armed robbery, is it possible to get at the extent‘of risk

by looking at the dollar value aggravators that we have in the

robbery guideline?

‘What I am thihking of here is we don't have a very
fine distinction about how ﬁany people are at risk and just how
déngérous the instaﬁt offenée is. Wodldn't reloqking ét*the
dollar values help with that?

'MR. BROWN: In my view, no.. A bank rpbbefy goes -into
é bank and has got a gun in his pockét,'he is going to rob
whoever is‘ih the bank. How mucﬁrﬁe gets.out is really more
of a function of how much'méney is in the téller'srcage.than
it_is'aﬁy preplanning on ﬁis part. Somé robbers go in and
stick ﬁp a savings and loan and don't get any mbﬁey out of the
savings and loan, bécause £hey think if'is a bank; it lobks

like a bank. So, I think money level for robbery is a very

The basic gravamen to ﬁe of robbefy is the threat
and the forée of violence. »How_much you get is much less.
important. It is liké a pickpocket, he may geﬁ in my pocket
and it has got $20 in it, hé gets iﬁ Ed's and haé»gbt $150.

MR. DENNIS: Now, wait a minute. .
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‘to the victims, rather than money. I think money is secondary.

threatened and how 1arge the institution was, and money might

-$70,000, yet it will be a much smaller bank and the risk will
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[Laughter.]

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: But you don'f think it is re-
lated to the size of the -- |

ﬁR, BROWN: The pickpocket has'got-fhe same intent.
It is more of a functional luck as to hqw mﬁch money he éets;

I think it needs to be distinguished more on the threat of harn

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: I was using it as a way to cate-

gorize how large the institution is, how many people were there

It is very hard to have a table about how many people were

be 6ne way of --

MR. ﬁRQWN: If I were a bank robber, I wouldn't pick
a big city bank because you would get very little money. = But
you go to a rural bank on Friday afternobn and everybody ist

coming in to cash their check, you are going to get $60,000 or

be less people.invoived. It is really more;of‘a'fﬁnction -—
to me, the money is not just aﬁ appropriate'wéight.point,
| COMMISSIONER BLOCK:V Thank you. |
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Mr. Dennis? .-

MR. DENNIS: I agree with that, and this is just by

=1
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you come into a bank, you have to use some kind of force or

themselves but to customers in the bank, passeréby, the risk
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virtue of experience. Someone who is shrewd enough to go rob

money than they are if they just govin_willy-hiiiy tb a bank
and start pulling through tellers"cages, because tﬁe‘banks
have procedures where they limit the amounﬁ.dftmoney that is
in thatlto begin with. And I have seen @any bank robberies
where the amount that was stolen ﬁas $3,000, $4,000 at fhe
most, and you get a good grocery'store_or a sﬁpermarket robbery
and you are up $30,000 or $40;000 quite easiiyf

So, the money is not really the kef; I agree with

Joe, it is the threat that really presents the problem. When

threat of force. The danger that the security there may over-

react or may react in a way that could not only cause harm to

that you create in terms of a potentially fatél.éitugtion is
quite extraordinafy, and I think that is the way I would, of
céurse, view it. Then if you havé actﬁal éggravating circum-
étances_that take place during the course of_a.particﬁlar bénk
robbery or robbery of any kind, theﬁ tﬁat could be an adjust-
ment. |

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you..
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COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Let me f011§w>that up with a
tequest now. I had two points, one question and one request.
In termS’éf Judge Breyer's hypotheticél that one way to look
at the suggestions made that there wasa cafeer~offender in
robbery is that you take the limited émount of prison re-
sources and try and really get more ctime_controi out of thosef

I think it would be extremely ﬁelpful, if it Qés
possible to do it in a timely manner, that Qé get.informétioﬁ
from fhé Bureau‘of Prisons in terms of_the‘fundéd expansion in
prison capacity,and proposed expansioh of prison‘capacity, so
we know something about what coﬁstraints we are facing in the
immediate future. |

MR. DENNIS: Well, we would ceftainly be happy to
cooperate with you'iﬁ that regard. .In pdint'ofAfact, we would
expect thét the Commission might be é'bit of én:ally wi£h us
insofar és lobbying with the Congress to make éure that there.
is adequate prison space.

| There may be philosophical'differences insofar as,
you know, on what occasion é person sho#ld be.sent to prison,

but if he or she is going to be sent there, I think they ought

~to be sent to an institution where there is adequate space-ahd

where, you know, they are not penalized by having to be in
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overcrowded institutiohs'and that soft of thing, I think we
can agree on that. To that ekteﬁt, i.know just as a pfééticalA
political mattef that those who are_iﬁcérCéréted or'likely to
be incarcerated are not usually the ohes mosﬁ persuasive inso-
far‘as being able to conviﬁce the Congfess or bring the |
appropriéte arguments in support of thét,:andkto that extent
I’think that this_Commission certéinly Should‘take éﬁ'active .
role in that, énd»the Departmeﬁt certainly is doing'that. So,
we would be happy fo share that inforﬁatibn with you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you.

Commissioner Caruthers?. |

- COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Mr. Brown, concerning.bank
robbery -- I-haven‘t read your testimony, and I am sure the

f

answer is there -- what area you mentioned was enhancement for
weapons, you felt we should enhance the sanction for a safe

weapon, for example? Should we have, in your opinion, three

different, shall we say, catégories,-one for unarmed, two for

the safe weapon, and should the sanction be increased beyond

that for non-armed but not as much as for the actual weapon?
MR. BROWN: I was recommending an increase of ap-
proximately two levels for a safe or a simulated weapon or

explosive.




1o

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

kput everyone in prison. I give speeches and I ask how many
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COMMISSIbNER CARUTHERS:‘ Okay.. So, we would basic— 
ally have.tﬁe three - |

MR. BROWN: Correct.

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: I know, whéﬁ you expressed
concern that you thought bank rbbbery,.that these penélties
should be raised, you led ih with a»comment abouf the U.S.
Parole‘Commission study. I don't have.tﬁé'éxpertisé té attach
to the wvalidity of that. I doh't‘think a lot of cases were
utilized, et cetera, but beyondvthat( I don'trknow if you :
stated‘Whét You thought an appfopriate 1evél should be. I
think youvsaid that wé should increase the‘éanction from where
we are now. Do you have a 1eve1 thét.you Qou1d récommend?‘

MR. BROWN: In some earlier submissionsvto the Com-
mission; i recqmmended.that we.need'to.get it up closer to 5
yeafs real time. |

COMMISSIONER CARUTﬁERs{ forvunarmed?

MR. BROWN: For unarmed, éhd that would be I think

about a four-level increase, roughly a four-level increase over

what is currently there. Again, I realize, you know, we can't

people want more people in jail and everybody puts their hands

up. I ask how many of you are willing'to raise taxes- and
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build a jail in the backyérd_and, you kﬁow,'mosﬁ of the hands
come down. So,vI realize thefe is a dichqtomy there.

' COMMISéIONER CARUTHERS: _We'il, obv"ioﬁsrly we are go-
iné to ha§e to make some tough decisions about whé Should go
and who should not go, since everybodylcan't go, that's for
sure.

MR. BROWN: I realize.thét, and that is why we are
trying to say in ﬁhis particular érea,_aé U.S. Attérneys,_éhis
is one we feel very strohgly heéds té come up}

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: .But you think the uﬁarined
bank robbéry'éhould be at a 5-year real time? |

.MR. BROWN: I think it.should_be very. close to that,
maybe not quite that much, but that Qas our Qeneral recom-
mendation,ﬁ I think the minimumywouid.be at léast é couple]bf'
levels.

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Okay. On escape, a quick
question. I think you indicated that you félt that‘the'sanc-
tiQn shoula not be different baséd on the type of facility,
non;secure ﬁersus securé, but thét fou -- I believe you said
that yéu feel that the sanction should be different based on
thé-seriousneSS of the offensé.jils that correqt? I just want

to make sure of that.
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MR. BROWN: We will have a little mofe detail on

that. Basically, the current guideline provides a distinction

between, in effect, a secure and non-secure facility.

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Right.

MR. BROWN: I see é diffefencé, that there should be
a difference between someone that cuts_his way out of prison
and someone that walks off on furlough, ;Now,iif that furlough
is from a secured facility or an ﬁnsecuréd facility, I don't
seé a lot of difference, he is still unsecure. ISo, I do say
that theie should be a distinction and thé sﬁbcommitﬁee has

certainly ---

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: In terms Of hdw.ﬁhey Ieft}M
énd fromehefe they left? |

MR. BROWN: That'é'corfecta;'

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERSﬁ Okay.

MR;VBROWN: So, we do séy that there $hou1d be a
distinction there. ' " | |

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: I égree.with £hat, as a
former prison warden; I agfeé witﬁ ﬁhat.

MR. BROWN: Someone tﬁét escapes from a secure.
fécility should be treated much more seveiely fhan SOmédne '

who goes from an unsecured, and the furlough from an unsecured
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‘there should be a coﬁple of levels énhancemént.for that limited

working group and your continuing efforts. I know the group
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faéility, if the facility is unsecurg.' Butvthe'bné that_
escapes from a yard or saws his.way oﬁt.-—,and the Commission
already makes that distincﬁioh.. If SOmeone voluntarily re- -
turns Within'a short period of time;'yes, perhaéé we‘shouldv
have a distinction there. But once you go beyond'a certain

period of time, and that's sort of the guy that goes out and

up, does not need to be punished as sévefely és someone.who
leaveé and is caught or stays for a prolonged period.‘ We'
agreevwith the Commission's current plan thefe, currént'ﬁhink-
ing there, but we do think that perhaps fof those violent

offenders or they are in fbr_violent drug offenses, perhaps

areé. 'We‘geﬁerally like what fhe Commission has cufrently.'_
COMMISSIONER CARUTHEBS:.;Thank you very mﬁch.
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Commissioﬁér Nagel?.
COMMISSIONER NAGEL First, I wéhtvto thank you very

much for being so helpful in making suggestions, both in your

has taken seriously every question we have addressed and has
tried to provide us with somé data and we appreciaté_that.

I just have one question and it hasn't been posed
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before, so if you don't want to answer it now, you'want to
think about it -- in view of your experience with guideline
application, if we were to make an amendment to the bank

robbery guidelines, is there a preferred reason to put more in

the base and less in the enhancements, or more in the enhance-

ments and less in the base with regafd to the weapon enhance-

ments, which currentiy go between three énd five levels; and._
you are sﬁggesting that we add a Level 2, as Commissiéner
Caruthers suggested, for a toy,weapoﬁ or somethiﬁg of that
kind? So, do you have_a-prefergnce, given the guideleine ap-
plication, given how you have seen the. cases plaf out, even
understanding that if previous strata things.were a little
different, then there will be hopefuliy imposed for strata,
does it make sense to put more in the base and keep the levels v
as they aré, or put more in the base and raise the enhance-
ments or lower the ‘enhancements? o

kMR.VBROWN: Our recbmmendatibn on' that was sort of
a coﬁbination, minus a raise in.the base --

COMMISSIONER NAGEL:‘ Are ypu-talking about é 5-year
real time base? | | |

MR. BROWN: Yes. Even if you didn't go quite that

far, but that was our optimum increase, but an increase in the
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base, a minimum of two levels, and a‘very substantial increase

we are recommending about eith 1evel§Atheré? eight levels
roughly correspdnds to 5 years;‘

COMMISSIONEﬁ NAGﬁL&ZvSo, you prefer to have moreriﬁ
the enhancement?

- MR. BROWN: Yes. OﬁCe thé.weépon goes in, and I
thiﬁk Congress has certainly expressed its concern by paSsing
many statutés dealing with tﬁe use'ofvé weapon. Wé felt that
a further increase there in.the 5-year range was‘appropriate,
with a smaller increase in the:basé_itselff And I am not
liﬁiting it necessarily to.fobbéry. That 2 (b) statute .actually
covers robbery, extortion, et cetera..  For the base, we really
think it should go up altogethérQ We'uééd.the for¢é~and the
threat, and thefe should be:sbme increase.- It is'easier td
talk about bank robbéry, and i'suspect bank rbbbéries are
probably 90 peréent of the Vibiatiqns, or perhaps higher, that
come ﬁnder that 2 (b) category; bﬁt;reélly.we_were télking about!
it in the base Qverall’for robbefy, period.

 coMMISsIoNER NAGEL: ' Thank &ou.
”CHAiRMAN WILKINS: Judge BreYe;?

‘COMMISSIONER BREYER: I have three questions. My
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first is based on Mr. Brown's -- and I agree with you as well,

Mr. Dennis -- your point, I am very sensitive to the following

point. Legislators worried about the crime problém say let's
have ioﬁger‘and longer sentences,'exeéutive.offiéials and
prosecutors éay let's senténce theée peoéle to long sentences,
’and then there is no place to put them. And then there are
forces éutside that continue to'commit crimes énd'everyone
blames sqmeone-else{.and it is.in light of ﬁhat'I would like
to go with you to help get the extra priéon space. i agree
with.you. | |

I wonder if we can get, unless we can show that we
are using existing space in a cost-effective way;‘it.is with
that in mind that I think isn't there.something to taking 70- 
year—old‘moderately serious people and putting them out on the
street, there is a lot of space in the yeér 2010 that will be.
freed up that way, and put in thé bénk‘robbers that Mf. Bfowﬁ
is talking about. - | |
MR. DENNiS: Exactly..

COMMISSIONER BREYER: Now, in light of that, my

'underétanding is that the Department of Justice is not opposed

to that as a matter of policy, but you are worried about the

stétute; I worked on this statute a little bit and I think
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that the purpose of this pro&ision ih_the'stétﬁﬁeiwas to'kéy
the'éareer offender toAﬁhe entire criminal code revision -
you remember the entire fevisidn -- and fhat éntire.revision
changed all the maximums and it noted thatlthey were real -
time,‘and thefefore'tﬁe maximum for bank robbéry went down

from 25 to 10. So, when they said the maximum authorized,

year sentence.

V..Now, the language in'thié statute now I think still
admits to that ihterpretation,'because it doéén't séy author-
ized by statute, it just says'authoriéea;_and therefore I.tend
to think that you could produce a feasonablé legal intérpre-
tation that would achieve Congress' purpose in buttiné this
provision in the_sfatute. I am not positive, and so-reélly I
am not going to ask you torénéwér thié_now, bﬁt'it'seems to me
éventually we aré going to have to make up our mind on this
legal point. Ivtake it it is a closed gueStion, and so I -
would appreciate the Departméht submitted their iegal memo-
randum,on this and allowihg us to cénsidér that'1egal mémor—

randum along with the memoranda of our staff or any other legal

will allow Mr. Brown and you, Mr. Dennis, to get your
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objective, which is to use fhis space in a>costFeffective way
and put some of the bank robbers in>prisdn for a longer time.
MR. DENNIS: Jﬁdge Breyer, we would be happy to sub-
mit a mémorandum addressing the'legél'andeoiicy'issues raised
by your question. Just in general terms,.it is my View'tﬁat'
in the circumstance that you posited wheré,.as you éay, a |
maximum sentence for bank robberyﬁould.bé 20 or 25 years and

then the‘real time -- but that would be in a situation where a

parole was available, and now under the sentencing guidelines

it would be 10 years real time, and I guess the queétion comes
that.if.Congress subsequently then inéreases the maximum to 50
&eérs, whether or not that,lo—year-real time is still an
appro?riate sentence, and-wevfeel'that'thé Sentencing Commis-.
sion presumptively should adjust thé'realytime sentence under
the guidelines upward. So, on that point,'that wbuld be-my_
general cbmmeﬁt oﬁ’it, but~Certéinl§ webwiil‘reSearch.the |
issue and present a more §uppbrted analfsié of that.

The other issue, though,_I'think‘in ﬁerms of the
prison spéce and the efficient uSe‘of érison space;.is'dné
that T would hesitate to recommend that the guidelines be
adjusted according to your evéluati§n of'wﬁat érisbn space

might or might not be available in 15 years. One is that we
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‘that the more familiar the Department becomes with the overall

‘sentence. And without an understanding of that relationship,
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In any éase, it would seem to ﬁe that_if in the séheme of
things it appears £hat we need tq_bééin building now in.order-
to'meet,thét demand in lS years,»that the enérgy'éhould be‘
directed towards lobbying the»Cohgreés with regérd to £he éf—i
feét of laws that héve been passed thgt the éentencing Commis-
sion feels that it is’duty-boﬁnd £o a§kn61wedge_£hroﬁgh raié—l
ing the penaltiés énd thereby perhapslprecipitating a crowdeg
éonditionvat'some time in fhetfutufe'in_£he‘correc£ional in-
stitution. . But we will ce;tainly‘respénd'in writing;on'thatQ
COMMISSIONER BREYER: - And‘caﬁ you £hiﬁk of -- this is
jﬁst a suggestion, and I don‘ﬁ neceséérily expect it to be
followed Or'ﬁot, but I can't resist the following. I couldn't
agree with you more, that gradually what we are all doing is
learning how to work within'this'stfucture._ And one of the -
thingé I have notiged éver time:i§ the bepargﬁent has become.
moré and more familiar -- of“courSe;‘we>are familiar'with it

because we work in it, but it has been more and more helpful

structure, the more the individual,répreéentatives of the

Department begin to see how one sentence is related to another
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‘ent disparities or contradictions or ambiguities or inequities
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the temptation is for each individual within the Deparﬁment or

they work on, and when theyfseé the types'of cases they work
on, they tend to remember most‘vividlf the instances where the
sentences were too low,.because that is their job. Their job
is to prosecute and they are very_senSitive:to places where it
Seems_to eschew a result,,partiéularly Qhen.they don't ﬁeées—
sarily see the entire relationship. -Insofar as they feed
through fecoﬁmending to us'direétly} they can do that, bﬁt
insofar as'you have pe¢ple in your officé, as you devélop
through screeﬁing.and see the overall picture and exélain to
the individuals the relationship,.the better we can'use’the
information that comes to us. ,

I simply want to encOﬁrage'you to do_what'ydu'aré
already doing, which is to develop that expertise in your
office, to look at the entire thing.

| MR; DENNIS:  Judgé?Breyer, I think:that is correct.
In fact, because of the_fact that we wili be'haﬁdling appeais

of sentences and reviewing them and issues come up, we will be

more conscious of the relationship among sentences and differ-

that may arise, and I feel it is our duty to try to rationalize
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thbse aﬂd be helpful to the-Sentencing Commission with regard
to that. |

I agree that, certéipiy as prosecutors, we do tend
to by nature, perhaps, bemére_aggreséiveAinsofaraé promoﬁing
or arguing for stiffer sentences,‘bﬁt, on thé other hand, I
think if a gobd caée is ﬁadé'that a particular guidelines is
too harsh, I would hope that wé would be eqUallyvready to .
reconmend to you.that it be modified downwafd; |

éOMMISSIONER BREYER: Could IAas well ésk Mr. Brown
a quick question. This is a detailed triviai -- I mean it is
not trivial in ité'importénce, but at the particular levelrpf:
specificity. Do you have any reaCtion to this LSD problem
thatwe face? We discussed that a loﬁ; You know, in general,
iﬁ the drug area, the purity doesn't céunt ana fhe-reason that
purity doesn't count is that you can use amounts without look-

ing at'purity as a surrogate for whether or not a guy is up

high in the hiérarchy'or whether he is down low. But as soon

as you start talking about LSD, it doesn't seem to apply any
more.

Imagine a person who has 100. doses of LSD and he

~sells them-for $2.50 each, and’if they are on a sugar cube,

if you weigh the sugar cube, they will go to prison -- I don't
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know, I looked it up -- I guess fbrAabout 10 years. And if.
there are the same number of doses on a piece of blotter paper,
he would go to prison for a litﬁie.over 5 years, and if hé
sells them.ﬁithout being on é bldttefybaper or a sugar cube,
he goes to priéon for 8 méﬂths. ‘Now, he has done exéctly the
same thing in each instance, and at the.mbment I am thiﬁking'
thére is no reason for that, but maybe there is.

MR. BROWN: We have discussed £hat with our subcom~
mittee. The Narcotics Section has taken the.position'that
they_think‘that the results of thé'guidéline currently in use
is one that is required by ﬁhé statuﬁé; ’The sﬁbcommittee,
when looking at 'it, our view was if it is statutorily re-
quired, we think they ought to ¢hange'thefstatute.

We‘a;e concerned_that it-realiy doesvalmosﬁ reach an
arbitraiy and capricious -- | |

COMMISSIONER BREYER: I would agree with yéﬁ;

MR. BROWN: If you put £hé LSD on an anvil; you ére
in deep trouble. | | |

| COMMISSIONER BREYER: If you put it on a tank --

MR. BROWN# Yes, we think the dbsage unit makes more’

sense. The Narcofics Section_has done . a iegal study and theyl

believe that Congress'needs_to change the statute before you




[2]

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17
18
19

20

21

22

~question of constitutionality as to arbitrary.

| mission, we are hQnoréd to be here today. We have submitted
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can change the guideline. I think from the U.S. Attorneys
standpoint, we would support a position to go more with dosage,
but it may take a statutory éhange to do it. We are concerned

that it almost reaches, could reach I think in some cases a

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Gentlemen,. thank you very much.

MR. DENNIS: Thank you. |

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: We look.forward to continue a
Qorking'relationship with tﬁe Departmént and with the U.S.
Atﬁorneys. Thank you. | | | |

Our next two witnesses will'be our representatives
from the American Bar Associétion,:fhé ABA Committee on
Sentencing Guidelines, Mr. Sam Buffone and Mr. Steve Saiky.
Again, the‘ABA.is‘no stranger £o-ou£ delibératibns. 'We'apéref
ciate the efforfs that-your.written tesﬁiﬁonyvshows, as.well
as your-téking the fime to be with us today.

Mr. Bﬁffone. - |

MR. BUFFONE: Chairman Wilkins, Members of the.Com-

extensive written comments.
As I noted in thosevcomments(-due to the'absenCe of

ABA poliéy on many of the specific offense guidelines, we were
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impact of its guidelines and amendments that it proposes to

| assessments of the impact of its guidelines on future prison
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tempted to.addfess the range of issues thatjweiwere authorized
to speak on.

- I would like to deviate both from my wfitten conments
and what I had pfepared to say this morning;‘based.upon some
of what_I'have heard from.the prior withesses; We are con-
cerned that the Commission contihuallyrexercise its responsi-

bilities pursuant to 28 U.S5.C., section 994(g) to assess the .

the guidelines on prison populationé.
Section 994(g), in our reading, contemplates that the
Commission will first of all be aware of the existing capacity

of penal institutions and, based upon that awareness, make

populations.‘ We think that it is_imﬁérative that the Commis—
sion have. the data that you ha&e fequested from.fhe Justice
Department énd, in formulating ény guidelihes,~asSess what the
potential impact of that guideiine QillAbe-On overcrowding of
fhe-prisons. | | | |

We have testified at earlier timesibefore the Com-
mission fhaﬁiwe disagfee With thé'iﬁpacﬁ stétementé that were

made in your initial report. It was the view of our committee
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view the overwhelming majority of what you have done as tech-

nical in nature and, based upon that, non-controversial. We
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that the impact of the guidelines is going to be more signifi-
cant than the impact that Was.projected by the Commission-in
its sﬁpplemenfal report. ft is for thatrreason we have an
even deeper . concern abeut the apparentAabsence ofAeny data
upon which you cen formulate e determination that the'impact
of'your_proposed guidelines in areas 1ike bank robbery and
career offenders.

The other principai area that I would like to address

sQﬁe specific comments on individual guidelihes, is the entire
process by which the Commissidn amends guidelines._ We read the
statute as ceneemplating that tﬁe Commission will do preciseif
what it is doing now, and that is engege in an on-going process
ef continually.refihing-and amendihg'the guidelines.

- Our reading of.the Vast-majority of:what.is proposed
in this package of amendments is‘thaf they ere a discharge of
that responsibility. The responsibilitylis_to continually re-

fine the guidelines and make them more comprehensible. We

commend you for even pﬁtting}those types of non-controversial

amendments before the.public for comment and consideration.
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But we wouid like to address theAfér narrower range .
of comments of proposed'améndmenté, those that are controver-
sial potentially. We see what the Commission has aone is
respond in largé'part to new legislation paSSed by Congress,
and we would like to isolate what we view aré three ways in

which Congress has chosen to express its will to the Commis-

sion.

Thevfirst is those amendments that respond to newly
créated_criminal offenses for which there'is no currently ap-
plicable guideline{ We recommend.that thé Commission adopt a 
flexible approach and promulgate-guidelines where there is a
historic basis for fofmulating an appropriate qffense range.
Where, howéver, you have a totally new dffense‘prescribed by
legislation,'where you have.no convenient‘énalogue, we recom-
mend that the Commission:not hesitate to refrain from promul-
gaﬁing épecific guidelines and, rather} await'initia1 prosecu-
tions to see how pfosecutorial patterné é&olve and to givé
flexibility to sentencing judges initially; so tha£ you can
see how they reaét to speéific fact situation before you
promulgate rigid guidelines for those new offenses.

:.The prdvisiéns of thexAntiFDrug Abuse Act of 1988

and the Major Fraud Act of 1988 have preseﬁted the Commissioh'
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with other instanées, other than.new'Offenses,'that you are
going to have to grapple with, and you”have asked for comment
on many of these.

. In some instances, Congress has fixed a mandatory

minimﬁm penaity or amended_existing mandatory minimum penal-
ties. Inléther cases,'Congress has spécified a parﬁiéular
offense level and asked the CommiSsidnjto promulgate tﬁét
offense 1evél. In still other iﬁstances, such as that con-
tained.in Prbposed Amendmenf 119,‘Congress'hés 1isted‘factors
aﬁd directed the Commis#ion to'considerfthé appropriafeness of
providing an»enhancemént of a specified numbér'of levels for -
pafticular conduct.

During the legislative process that led to the enact-

ment of the recent drug legiSIation, Senator Nunn wrote to the

August 22, 1988, asking that fou addfess the iésue_of mahdaﬁory"
minimum sentencing.  While Chairman'Wilkins fecognized that
the Commission did not‘OppoSebthe mandatofy minimumn sentenéing,
he stated that mandatOry minimuﬁ sentencing’may not be the
best way for Cohgress to sét senteﬁciﬁg ?oiicy. We strongly
agree with that statement.

The delegation authority to the Sentencing Commission
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to utilize its expertise in formulating‘a comprehensive set of
sentencing guidelines is inconsistent, in our view, with
congressional imposition of mandatory minimum sentences.
Additionally,.fixing of mandatory minimum'sentences will upset
the carefully structured baiance of the guidelines' consider-
ation of multiple sentencing factors.

‘We recommend that the Commission'formulate_offense
1eyels, irrespective of congressional eﬁactment of‘mandatory
minimum- sentencing, reali;ing that the judge is going to be
constraiﬁed by the mandatory minimum. The Coﬁmission should
formulate such guidelines just as it would for any other
offense where there iskho mandatory minimum sentence.

In several provisions‘of the Omnibus Anti—brug.Abuse
Act of 1988, Cengress did something that we censider very
significsnt and that we iﬁﬁeﬁd'to_bring to the attention of
Congress asvsoonvas there is.a committee hearing atiwhich we
can testify, and rhat is thef Congress mendated that the
Commission set‘specific offense'leyels. We_believe that is
incpnsistent with the overa;l'tenor of the Sentencing Reform
Act and the clear legislative history. It is inconsistent
with eur view of what this Commission should be and what the

criminal justice standards -of the American Bar Association
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by Congress in at least that one provision that I referred to

earlier of the Major Fraud Act, and that is to tell the Com-

into consideration the clear expression of congressional will,

difficult to determine whether it viewed the crime generally

68

envisioned in the Sentencing C Rmmission.

We believe'that.the_far better approach is that takenA

miSsion_we believe that a two-level enhancement; for exaﬁple,
may be appropriate under eertain circumstances‘and we urge you,
the Commission, to give serious consideration to that.

We willkrecommend to Congress that wherepit’wishes
to express its will to the Commission, that is the appropriate

way to do it, so that you can exercise your expertise, take

but not.have your hands bound.by specific determination.

The Commission sought comment-On one additionalp.
aspect of.legislation, and that is where the Conéress specific—
ally increases a maximum sentence covered by an ekisting.
guideline,'hoﬁ should you reacttte that. We believe that

where Congress increases a statutory maximum, it may well be

as one that required an increased sentence, or whether it
responded to particular heinous violations of the statute
which should be punished by a more severe sentence;

Our standards recommend use of a least restrictive
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alternative necessary to effectuate sentencing policy. - Simi-
larly, 18 UfS.C. section 3553 (a) requires thaf'a'court impose
a- sentence "sufficient'but not greater than necessary" to
comply with the overall purposes of the_Sentencing Refofm Act.

Consistent with these policies, it is the associa-
tion's belief that, in the absence of a clear coﬁgfessional
intent to incresse sentences generally of'in the absence of
the Commissioﬁ's-own conclusion, supported by adequete data
that sentences for a particﬁlar offense should be increased
generally, the Commission should apply a rule‘of lenity. ‘Such
a rule of leniﬁy-would be consistent with the general prin-
ciples of criminal law, implement section 3553(a) and help oeal
with the ever-increasing ovef—crowding of Federal prisons.

There has been a lot of'discussion this.morning about
the proposed amendment to the robbery guideiine. We were pro-
vided earlier this week with some of the Commission's supple—'
mentel materials and, quite‘frankly, we have not had the ;
opportuhity fo go through them with the precision that I.Qould
like in'oraer to comment on them.. We will do.thaf in the
cominé weeks and,.if we have anyeadditional comments,'we wiil
bring them to the Commission's attention.

But we hope that the Commission's consideration of
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fobbéry does not indicate that the Commission will be reacting

to anecdotal data or impressionistic views that come from the
field about the particular lenity or séverit§ of particular
offenses. |

Our 0wn-experience ihdicates that theré is almost an
expénential increase in the nﬁmber.of sentencinés occurring,
tha£ the data base potentialiy is'incfeasing, and that as the

number of sentences increase, you are going to have more in-

' formation available to you.

We urge that with any spécific offense 1eVel like
rébbéry, that you rely on the data that is gehéfated from the
field, as well as the experiences of prqseCUtdrs, probation
offices, sentencing judges and defensé»aﬁtorneys. |

Along these lines, we.think that-there may be a

legislative problem that needs cured on the Commission's

‘authority to amend guidelines, and in our written comments we

have addressed the recent amendment to your authority to amend
guidelines, the expiration of your emefgency authority, and
that suggested that there be additional congressional action

to permit the Commission to amend guidelines whenever you seek

'that. Our‘vieW'of Mastrata is that that would not offend

ydur delegated authority and that Congress would have the
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_at‘the first available opportunity make known our views to

71
authbritf to veto any amendmept to the guidelines at any time
that it sees fit, and that if yoﬁ submit it in an annual
report- to Congress, they ceﬁld act on thattreport under any
timeframe that they vieWed appropriate.

Werthink part of the maturatiop of‘the Commission
end its responsibilities is that’there should be a recognition
of yoﬁr unique expertise and euthority to eﬁeﬁd the guidelines
whenever you deem eppropriate.

I would be remiss if I didn't.cemment that we are
once again encouraged.and applaud the Commission_for the open-A
ness of its preceSs, theiholding'of these hearings, youi
effort to solicit as mﬁch and as detailed comment from as many

different aspects of the criminal justice system and the public
We continue to cemmend'you for this process and will

Congress that the funding-fof the Commission should be in—‘
creased, so that you cen continue to perform this kind of
public outreach, as well as discharge tﬁe many other important
responsibilifies that you have, such as assessing prison over-
crewding, andlwe‘believe.that'the Commission does'net now have

adequate resources to discharge all of its responsibilities.
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amendments to home detention and other areas, and that is that
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In the coming weeks, we will also formalize a recom-
mendation that we have made informally to the Commission, and
that is that you establish a practitioners working group or

advisory committee to, on an on-going basis, advise the Com-

titioners are experiencing in guideline application fields.

With those generél comments in mind, I would like to
turn this over to Mr. Salky, and I would like, if I could,
reserve any.questionsifou have unﬁil Mr. Salky concludes. |

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILKEY: . Thank you. -

Mr. Salky? | |

MR. SALKY: I will be brief. I would like to'amplify

one'position that Mr. Buffone has already comment on,'and that
is tﬁe assessment of impact on prison“ovérc;owdiné. It has
come up in the comments on both théﬁrobberyvguideline as well

as the career offender. I think it comes up as well in the

the Commission I think is not ohly obliated by the statute to
assess generally the impact that the changes amendments will
have on the prison pbpulation,'but.my suégestion would be that

the Commission, on each of these areas, whether it be an area
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that is going to potehtially decrease the number of people
ﬁhat ﬁave to serve time or an area that increases, what‘I would
term a prison impact statement, just somewhat like an environ-
mental impact statement, that an attempt bé nade, in other
words, to judge the robbery éuideliné( how ﬁany additiénal
numbers of bed space, man-years; et cetera,.hoﬁ that will be
counterbalanced possibly by 6ther amendments that the Commis-
sion has taken into consideration for home deﬁention and other
alternatives to.incarceration.

Thé'American}Bar Association's position, as you

know, has been to encourage the Commission to increase the al-

home detention amenament, the ébility to sentence for home
detention. On that pattiéular amendment, the Commission has
asked for comments as to whether or not home detention ShouldA
be a§ailable on a day to day basis, such as the other forms
of community'confinement. We believe that there is no sigf
nificant difference from’hOme detention, from the other types
of community confinement that are already available on a day
to day basis, and we think that that is an appropriate way to
treat home detention. |

On specific guidelines, we have not taken a positidn

L




10
11
12

13

14

15

.16

17

18

19

20

21

22

74

on the appropriete offense'leQels for many:of the amendmeﬂts.
We don't believe that we should, but we want to take a few
moments tq comment on procedures, ana Sam has already mentioﬁed
the necessery imperical data that we believe ought to be the
basis for any of the Commission's amendments, as opposed to
comments simply from the'field, though~we'think those.ere im-
portant. The Commission ought to await the generaﬁion of data.

In that regard, there is an amendment'wﬁich the
Commission seeks to change the-policy,regarding resolution of
disputed facts, and it seeme‘td reduce that from a guideline
to a Policy statement. I don't know‘that:fhe Commission in-
tends in any way to denegrate in that fashien thelresolutien
of disputed,facts. We think_it is very important that courts
be encouraged to do so, that there be a reéerd for éppellate
review.of sentences, so that»we ean develop a comﬁon»law, a
procedure, a body of interpretation,bif ydu.will,‘of the
Comﬁissioh'skformulations,~sd thet we can.begin to propefly
assess, and the Commission itself can begin'to éroperly assess
its amendment pioeess. | |

I know that there is existing in Rule 32 and the
Eederal statute requirements foleederal judges to resolve

disputed facts, but I would think that if there is a-signai'
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. from the Commission that the Commission is moving away from

requiring judges to resolve disputed facts, that that not be
the direction the Commission move in. It is a significant task
for judges to apply these guidelines, but we believe that the

only way to develop this common law sentencing is that you

-have effective appellate review of sentencing which the guide-

line system allows and mandates, is to require judges to re-
solve disputed facts on the record, in many casgsfwith written
opinions, and we would prefer tha£ they be.done in writing.
The Commission's original méndate I think had a provision for

all of the decisions to be returned to the Commission in

writing for purposes of study, and we believe‘that that is an

appropriate mechanism.

On a few minor points, but on areas that the Commis-
sion has addressed earlier, the career offender provision,_we
think the qurrent guideline.is flawed for»reasons that are
stated in the éroposed amendnents. The literal ihferpfetation
of the statutory directive we-bélieveAis incénsistent with the
legislative history of the Sentencing Reform Act, and‘we
believe that the Commission ought to look for ways to increase
the flexibility in sentenciné career offeﬁders; particularly

because the "career offender," there are many, many differences
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given that the career offender is treated primarily on the
basis of numerous typés'of.paét offenses.

We think Option_l of the Commissionfs proposal is a
star£ ih that direction in considering.how to revise the
guideline, and we suggest that tﬁe Commissioﬁ may want to con-
éider making'the career foender designation a grounds for
departure above Option 1, since Option 1 increases the guide-
line :structure not as‘much_as Option72. .The Commission may
want to consider‘adding a departure grounds, -either upward or .
downward, depending on.the natpre.ofthe underlying conduct,
grade the person as a career offender and giving the courts
therefore an option even'wiﬁhin category of 6ffense Level 7,
to deviate, to explain some reasons in a departure guideline
about the reasons that thé court could deviate.

The final comment I will make -- and most of the

other areas are covered in our written comments -- is the.

guideline on criminal liveliliood. We believe that the present

amendment cures an economic discrimination that was in the
earlier guideline. There was told to me, not based on my ex-

perience, one of the horror stories where an offender who had

Aéommitted a Federal offense, who otherwise had been amenable

to probation, reports to the probation officer and the: .
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presenténce investigation report that he or she has been

eating by virtue of shoplifting and has been‘feeding him or

grade for criminal livelihood and therefqre an increase that
required that person to gd t6~prison.

| ‘The Commission hés placed certain baseline require-
ments for'the application of ériminal livelihood that'we bé—
lieve minimizes the economic discrimination that that guide-
line}posséSéed, and we comménd the Commission in that regard.

I will not make any more comments. We have a written

Commissioners.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: ~ Thank you‘very’much.

With criminal liVehood;‘we.werezstruégling with the
statute, as you recall, and we appreciate £he help from the
ABA in.this resolve, at least oh first.glance_at the directive
that you gave us a 1ittlé discretion. Perhaps this_amendment
doés meet the concerns that you all have expressed énd I. hope
it does, and we need to follow up on thié working Qroup of
practicing éttdrﬁeys. The working Qroﬁps have worked wonderfull

in the past, the attorneys, probation officers and judges, and
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it has been éxtremely beneficial to the Commission. I think
is an excellent idéa, sovlet'é don't loée that idea. We will’
communicate and:work 6ut the details;

Let mé put this in the'perépectiVe a little bit. We
have been talking about somé;pretty big numbers, 20 years and
30 years-aﬁd so forth. We do have énother statutory problem
with special offenders. Theré‘may be differen£ wayé to inter-
pret the language, but is someone who.isia speciai offender
commits unarmed bank robbery, they would fall.in the category
of 32 and the judge could sentence him fo 17.5 years.

If we inject acceptance of responsibility as a pos-

'sibility, which it is not now under special offenders, the

judge then could reduce that sentence t§’l4‘yeaf§ for this
ééecial offender who has afmakimum stétutof§~offense potenfial
of 20 years. I justvwonder,.would thét,move'toward_the.posi—
tion that the ABA would thiﬁk would be.reasonéblé? ‘We'could
give them 30.years'and let's reduce ié_ﬁé 20'yeérs,_that is
not réally what we are talking about. We are talking about a
17;year sentence as opposed to maybe reducing i£ to 14 years. -
MR. BUFFONE: If I Underétahd youf queétidn,

Chairman Wilkins, I thinklfheyj are'amdng the most dififCult

problems the Commission faces in dealing with career offenders
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and special offeﬁders.» One of the qﬁéstions that was‘askéd-
earlier today was should we'increasé the base offense level
or should we have enhanceménts‘iﬁ oxder fo deal with themf_ i
think that.is the root of your question and I would like to
addreés it on that level. |

- We think what the ﬁourts need’aré‘some flexibility,
especially in dealing withAa.potential range of‘speéial of—.
fenders, and it would be better to perhaps mediate somewhat
the baée offense level but provide a wide_iaﬁge of enhance-
menté, so that judges can look at the;specific nature of the
special offender who stands before them and,»whefe appropriate,
have incapacitating sentences that are going té put those
people away for long periods of time.

As an example, I can't helpvbut'thinking of in my
practice I, on a pro bono basis, represent a number'of demon-
strators here in Washington, and wé‘haQe a lot of.them, and I
on more than one occasion have waiked'iﬁtqithe courthouse.with
a minister or rabbi who has.a very 1oﬁg arrest:record, baéed
upon participation in civil‘disobedience aétivities; I caﬁ

see in appropriate circumstances that person starting to look

like a career offender.'

I think the courts need not only departure authority,
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but the ability to separate out the truly dangerous special

offender. I don't mean to place the demonstrating priest or

_rabbi there, but I think extremes are in order. There are

going to be special offenders who don't require that degree of
incapacitation.

MR. SALKY: There is another reason I think to

mediate or moderate the increase in the base offense level and

allow for flexibility in either a SPeéific offense character-
istic or a departure, because I think that will give the

Commission more feedback from actual sentencing practices and

give it, therefore, data in the future to base a change ‘in the

base offender level.

In other words, if the Commission, each time it

| promulgates a change such as a robbery,'where itlmay not have

—=- and I haven't had a chance to review the package of data

that the Commission handed out -- may not ha&e a great deal of
data; and then legislates a base offenSe leyel change of a
significance increase.

It seems to .me that it‘prohibits the judiciary from

providing the Commission with some  feedback through its own

i

.actual in-practice sentencing procedures, and then the Com-

mission six months or a year later can come back and look at
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that data, reassess that data.aqd deﬁermine if 80 percent of
the judges are going above, because of séecific offenée
characteristics or departures, the Commissibn'ﬁay then have a.
baséline data to justify an incréase in the base offeﬁse level.
But I think experience will be that‘thé judge, and I think the
Commission ought not to legislate without_sufficient informé-
tion.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you very much.

_Let me s;art the gquestioning with‘éther Commissioners
to my léfﬁ. 'Judge Breyer?

COMMISSIONER BREYER: “Just quickly,'if1we'could get
a legal memo on career offender.- I don't know if you notice
that, as you pointed out, we haye some sﬁggested changes that
will signifiéantly change the.éafeér offendér'provision. ~Now,
theré is a legal question as to whether We can do that, because
the sta£ute éays that for thfee—time violeﬁt and drug

offenders, we should have a sentence at or near the maximum

the maximum authorized by statute,.and therefore when we went
to the bank robbery statute, it says 25 years and it says we
have to put them in prison for 25 years.

Now; I know that wasn't the intent of Congress, but
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I am séying do you think pérhaszyou éould'ébnferrwith the
Justice Department attorneys? It would.be wondérful if the
diffe;ént lawyers involved in this.-could reach the same pro-
vision, but after talking to thém ér not talking to them, you
give us‘your advice on the legal éuestién involved.

MR. BUFFONE: Judge éreyer, we have representation
from tﬁe U.s. Attorneys Office‘aha the Justice,Depértmenﬁjon
our'cbmmittée'and we would be hapéy to take that up and share

the‘-é

COMMISSIONER BREYER: Iuthink it would_be-important
to have that before a week from Tuesday.‘~ |

MR. BUFFONE: I think an important point that you
made is that this may well be a legislative anomaly.

COMMISSIONER BREYER: Well, it is and Congress has

MR. BUFFONE: I share your view of the legislative
history that the "at or,near'the-étatutory ﬁaxiﬁum".is -
| COMMISSIONER BREYER: It says at or near thé'magimum
authorizéd. | |
MR.. BUFFONE: -- at-dr néar the maximum authoriza--
tion; ih’my.viéw contemplated ériminél.Code'refOrﬁ, which

didn't happen.
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COMMISSIONER BREYER: Yes, right, so that is not the

first time in history Congress would have passed some languagé'

on something that didn't come about, so now one is forced to

_interpret that language in light Ofvwhat we have, in light of

what didn't happen. Therefore, the question is do we try to
carry out what they wanted or does the language prevent that?

Maybe it does and maybe it doesn't.. I am simply saying there

‘is a_legal question and I think the Depattment will ine us

their iegal.views and I think it wbuld be useful ﬁo'know:if’
the.American Bar Associétion; which is an associétion of
lawyers, if they too have those legal views which are similar
to thefDepartment or other legal views and what they are based

on.

As far as the other things, if you look at your data

.you go through totally different subjects. I think you may

find, goiﬁg through this data, that a 1o£ of detailed work,
the numerical data, rather tends to validaté the data that we
put out initially. It alSo tends to éhow that our prison
impact sfatement‘might nét be so.wfong, “the prison impact
model that we are going to uée in.order to get just what you
want, namely, what are the impacfs of these proposéd changés.

Thank you.
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'~ CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Commissionér Nagel?
COMMISSIONER NAGEL: . No questions.’
CﬁAIRMAN WILKINS: Commissioner Caruthers?’
COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: I notice that YOu'did ex-
press great concerns,.both.of you, that we evaluate.the po;
tential impact on prison population of amendment.to‘the guide~‘
lines. I would certainly want to assure you on that mattér'
and perhaps at the éame time disappoint you, but we have di-
rected our staff to provide‘us with an impact statement per-
taining to guideline amendments, so that is done.

However, if I understand it from this perspective

.that we establish penalties based on whether there is "space

in the inn," because this would be contrary tb establishing
penalties based on the burposes of sentencing as established
by Congress. |

It is éssential'thatvﬁe knpw wﬁat the iﬁpacf is and

I recall personally putting a request in writing."It'is

'essential, because Congress should not be caught unaware of

the impact. They did not mean to be caught unaware. I think

that is the reason for their concern expressed in the legis-

lative history, that we assess this, so they should be advised

of the impact so that they can assure that the Bureau's
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resources are édequate, and it iS'my personal position that
the Commission should take care thét wevare supportive of the
Bﬁreau's request for adeqﬁate fesources. |

MR. SALKY: Could I just coﬁment briefly?

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Surely. |

MR..SALKY: I don't understand that position.to be
inconsistent with the Commissiénfs 6bligations to make asséss-
ments of its own guidelines and its owﬁ deliberatiohs baséd
at least in part on that factor. Thus,'Judge Breyer, talking
about the sort of cost-benefit in the career offender aréa,.i;'
in part a consideration of the available space and how to best
maximize the utilization of that space éeems to me to be part
of‘the Commission's obligation as weil as‘Céngress' obligation.

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Cértainly, we will aésess
the impact. We have asked fhe staff fo advise. us Qf the im—‘
pact. Once we reéeive that; we do havé a mandate to recommend
to Congress any changes we deétermine advisable for the Bureaﬁ,
whether it be in terms of utilizafion of facilities orkin
changes pertaining to classification or any correctional change
that.we deem worthwhile in terms of élleviating their con-
geéted situation certainly is within:our'authority and 6u;

mandate to go beyond looking at the impact and saying, okay,
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Congress, thisvis what the impact is, ahd I didn't mean fo
imply that. I reélly.meant to assure féu how we would not be
looking at that with the intent that we would establish pehal-
ties baééd on space in the end..

MR.‘BUFFONE: Commiésioneeraruthers, we go with you
right up to thé.eﬁd and when we come to that we rééd theb

Commission's statutory mandate differently. The last sentence

of 994 (g) says that the sentencing guidelines prescribed under

this chapter shall be formulated to minimize the likelihood
that the Federal prison population.ﬁillvexceed.the capacity of
the federal prisons as determinédlby_ﬁhe Commission. What that
tells us is that you haQe to, 6n an bn—going basis, know what.
the capacity is, and if you éver_prpject'that YOu are going
over it, yéu cannot do it.

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Well, What that says to me

-- and that is personally -- is that_We should always use the

least restrictive method hecéssary to adequately punish an
offeﬁder forvan offense, so that'is.my personal interpretation
of what that means. |

COMMISSIONER BLOCK;?va} Chairmaﬂ;fmay'Iimake*jﬁst
one comment? I wanted you to hold onto that'thoughf about thé.

cost effectiveness of the career offender provision ‘and
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perhaps help us_over_timevto develop some balance.in‘this area,
in the sense ;hat I-waﬁted to feinforce all the oﬁherACém—

missioners' éssurances thaf é‘prison.impaCt staﬁemeht is being
done for eaéh‘of the signifiéant éhaﬁges. I think we oughtvto

work together; though, over time to make sure that we do a

crime impact statement also. I think you will agree that, as

a body that is supposed to ratidnalize sentencing, we should
not only be concerned with the costs of the capacity.ﬁut also
the benefits, and in thaﬁ sense you coﬁld work Qith us to get
both prisSn impact, which ié.the.cost_side,_and the crime
impact.

‘Now, I am perfectly aware that the crime impact is

a larger and more difficult problem, but in some sense you can

see the Commission as an institution Which in fact can take
systemic &iews of sentencing, and iﬁ_that senSe we ought to
develop our expertise and come to .the amendment:proéess as we
mature with both ah impact sfateﬁénﬁ; which Y6u were arguing
before, but I‘wish you would giVe some considerétion to
helping us think out the crime impact sﬁatement also.

| Thank.you.v | | |

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you very much.

Our next witness is Jonathan Macey, Professor of Law
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at Cornell Law School. Professor Macey, we are delgithed to
have you with us. |

- MR. MACEY: My remarké and repcfted-expértise is
feally'confined tc insider trading and my remarks will fall
into two categories. The first concerns the questions.of‘the
extent to which insider trading invoived fraud. Of course,
thQVSentencing"guidelihes for insider trading fall into the
category of offenses ihvolving fraud or deceit, and while it
ié true that insider trading dces'involve fraud in certain
circumstances, in other circumstancés, which are clear cases
of insider trading, they will; as I wili describe a little bit
later, involve breaches of'fiduciary duty, they are bad things,
arguably, but they don't involve fraud, and to that extent may
genuinely involve quite a diffcrent thinc from the standpoint
of someone trying to impose a cehtence on such people.

I_tried in my written comments, and I want to touch
upon‘those briefly, to identify'what the best arguméntc might
be‘for increasing the sentences Oh péoplelwho have been in-
volved in insider t;ading as that has bécn defined by the
Supreme_Courc in Chirrell v. Dirksen and its progeny.

The first, and the one that Congress reélly talks

about when they passed the Insider Trading Securities Fraud
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Enhancement Act of 1988, in which they suggeéted toughening up

the sentencing guidelines, is that it is hard to detect insider

tréding. That is certainly true, pafticularly the abi1i£y of
péople to consummate illegal.transactions through conduifs,'
through accounts located offShbre, but it is glso_impoftant to
keep in mind ﬁhat theAreaéon it is so hard to detgct'insider

trading is because the kinds of activities that the insider

‘trading laws are addressing themselves to go well beyond the

nqtion of affirmative miséﬁatements, that is, fiduciary duties,_
violations of fiduciary duties, and é&en'outright fraud'as
that term is used in the context of insider trading don't
involve actual miéstatemeﬁts of the kind that;we learned in-
law school comprises common law fraud.

Nonetheless, I think that is really the best reason,
the most sensible reason fbr increasing penélfie5~for peoﬁle
who have been convicted of violating rules against insider.
trading. .

The second reason, the one that really the Securities
and Exchange Cémmission.most often addresses itseif té is the
idea that insider trading penalties ought to be particularly .
stiff, because such activi£§ underminés the c6nfidence_that

small investors_have in the capital markets and therefore
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‘about involving insider trading, in order to obtain a con-

' therefore, where the connection is between this idea of trying

_insider trading. But more to the point is simply the imperical

.90 -

impairs the capital formation procesé, and there are two

First, purelylas a-legalvmatter, the Supreme Court
ha§ made it clear time~and-tiﬁe,again that violations of Rule
1d(b)(5) and other rules cdnstréinihg insider tréding do not
exist to police a generalized fiduciary duty owed by traders

to the marketplace, rather, in all of the cases that we read

viction under the law, there must be a violation of a specific
preexisting fiduciary duty, and it is that fiduciary duty that

is-being policed by these rules, and it really isn't clear,

to police ‘the capital markets, which is obviously something

that is within the SEC's charge, and the specific crime of

evidence that, for a variety of reaséhs having to do with the
investor's ability to have‘bﬁy and‘hqld‘étrategieé andAdiver—
sified portfolios assets, fhe evidenqe.frbm markets, particu-
larly Japan, where insider tradé is not only decriminalized
but rampént, suggests that simpiy as an imperical matter
there doésn't:seem'to Ee'a cofrelation between the tineg;ity

of the capital marketé and the robustnessAof the capital
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markéts and the incidence of'insidér ﬁfadiné; We'obsé:ve a
very robust éapital market in TokyoAand othet placés,
Singapore; Osaka, Hong Kong, with ﬁo pénalties, ériminalv_
pénalties for insider trading;‘and ﬁo civil penalties that
are enforced.

.The final reason that people talk about as a justi-
fication for éuniShing insider tréding qﬁité severely is be-
cause the activity affects a large number of disagg:egated
shareholders and these large nﬁmber of disaggregated share-
holdeﬁs'aré particularly Vulnéféble as Victims and, as a
consequence, a sérious benalty is warranted.

But if you look a£ the Supremé Court's dpinions in
Chirrell v. ‘Dirksen, which for reasons I:can discuss I think-
are correctly décided as providing a theoretical basis for
iﬁpdsing penalties on insider traders) the fact of the matter

is that, generally speaking, the‘rights that we are séeking

numbers of disaggregated,shareholdefs.“ The fécf of the matter
is that in most of thése caséé it is'the right of a specific
entity or firm to whom a fiduciarykdﬁty Qas‘owed and has been
breached. |

At times, for example, the case of Basic v. Levinson,
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a recent Supreme Court case, there will be a confluence, there
will be a large number of people harmed, but in other cases

that involve equally serious miscohduct, the number of people

‘actually harmed may be far lower.

Cieérly, it is pot a popﬁlar.thing tqisay that’we.
should go slow in increasing penalties for insider trading.' 1
know few crimes thét have come tb the center stage of populér
conscigusness with more abruptness and force than inside:
trading,‘and leaving that ra£her_thorny issue to the'sidé, I
would like to_address‘the mbre;specific question of what about
the specifiC'criteria that aré~invol§ed as far as how they
ought to impact upon somebody's actuai sentence, and I am
concerned that there is very.little correlatioh'betweén whét
I believe to be instances of serious insider trading.and
criteria to }ead to serious penalties,vsimilarly,'l think that
criteria that woula cut the other way. In otﬂér words, some ’
of thése-criteria would lead to sérious penalties for benign,
relatively benign instances of insider‘trading, and some of
#hese would lead to minimal;genténces for what I regard as.
egreéious exanples of inéider.fradihg.‘

The suggestion, for example, that offénses that in-

volve moré than minimal planning should be puﬂished more
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a pretty serious case of insider trading.

‘we can get more of the stock and avoid the disclosure penalties
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might involve an on-goihg takeover attempt,_théAinéumbent
management has filed a motigh.for inﬁuncfivé relief in a trial
court( and a law clerk of'the judge engages in ihsider trading
on the basis of his or her prior knowledge of the judge's
decision.regardingithe'graﬁt~of injuncﬁive relief. There is

very little pianning.involved in‘that,'but I think it involves

By contrast, there are very Byzantine schemes thét
vinvoive insider trading Violatibh, where a fifm that is trying
to take-dveranother firm_willyédnta;t an investment_banker or
an arbitrageur and say wevhave some prdblems with the Williams
Act here, because of the rquirément in the_Wiiliams_Act that
sayAwe‘have to disclose a 1qt.§f information wé‘don’t want to

disclose within 10 days of acquiring 5 percent of the stock,

by teaming up_with you in a kiﬁd of.secrét coalition and

purchasinQVShares of the target. | |
There, téo, we have“a violatioh of'rules Qf insider

traaing, bu£ our assessmént bf:hoﬁ bad'ér ho& striét the

setence ought to be appiied.in,this partidular exémple'is_
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purely a function of our assessmeﬁt of the Williams Act, very
technical disclosure prbvisions; énd don't involve in an over-
wide range of issueé the kind of cleérlf egregious over-
réaching and a breach of: trust that the former exémple did.

Similarly, this idea about we ought to have stricter
penalties for schemes to defraud more~thaﬁ one Victim, I think
the;e cén be very serious schemes that only defréud a single
victim, particularly because of ﬁhe.idea that the party whose
rights are being vindicated in these actions is the party to
whom a fiduciary duty was oﬁed.

For example, in cases involving -- these cases that
seem to come up quite often involving'journalists who work for
organs of the financial press who trade in anticipation of
publication of certain financial data, there the courts have
decided liability is predicéted on the fiduciary duty of the
trader in these situatioﬁs to his or her employer, i.e., é
siﬁgle victim, and it is not obvious to ﬁe why the penalties
should be lower or diffewrent than when you have lots of
victims.

Finally, as far as the specific offense characteris-

‘tics, is the relevancy of the chart that draws a correlation

between loss by the public, presumably by some party on the
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one hand as a féctor, and the problem here is that the Supreme
Court has made it quite clear that the damages, the losses, if
you will, in an insider trading case should not be calculated

on the basis of counting up the losses of the people who were

but while the insider was buying; rather, the losses revolve
around the damages borne by the party to whom a fiduciary duty
was owed.

To cite a VeryISimple,example; drawn on the facts in

printing compaﬁy and-he decoded information.that allowed him B
to 1earn in the context'of his employment as é printer the
targets of takeqver aftempts; where thé,Bidding firﬁ had
purchased the services ofyhis printin§ com§any tQ‘publish the
necessary documentations surrounding the offer, andlhevgoes
out and buys shares of the target. | |

The Supreme Cbuft made it cleaf that if'criminal
liébility-iS‘to cbme out of the actibﬁs_ofné defeﬁdant-in a
case such as this, it is going to ﬁe prediéated upon .the breach

of the duty that the printer. owed in the context of his employ-

that is owed by this purchaser, the printér_who knows about
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the tender offér in aavance,_to the- disaggregatedgéellers of
the stoék, to . whom no preexisting fiduciéry duty.was owed.
Therefore, it is inappfopriate Eo iook at their lésses, since
the Supreme Court has said that.his'culpability isn't predi-
o ) J
cated upon any duty owed to them, because in fact no such
duty is owed. | |
Then you have got the.véry'difficﬁlt problem under
these circumstances that exist at every,Caée of figuring bﬁt
ﬁhat the losées are.. That‘ié, the losses are going to be the
diminution in the’probability}thatvthis tékédVer will actﬁally
occur, the lost«profité.to the bidder, and if the takeover is
actﬁally sucéessful, the higher pricé the bidder actually has
to:pay as a conée@uence.of the insider's purchasesf
Similarly,.in these financial pressvcéses that I
mentionéd a momént ago, the'lbsSes for'a breach of fiduciary
duty to the printing firm -- BusineSs Week, 'Wali Street
Journal, et cetera -- is the "loss in circulatioh as a cohse—v
quence of advertising revenues as a result of the diﬁinution
in reputation ﬁo the firm.
' 'So, the point simply is tHat.these loss calculations
may'notnhave a very close correlation éhd may'in fact be im-

possible to reallyvdetefmine. In our example of the law clerk,
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what are the loséés to the party to whéﬁ the fiduciary dﬁty
was owed, how do_yoﬁ pﬁ£ a number on sort of the reputation of
the jUdicial process or the'réputation-of the judgé that hired
this clerk or what have you -- very éomplicated ephemeral
and; it seems to mef perhaps misguided.

~ Thank you; |

CHAIRMAN WILKINé:  Thank Y§u‘Very much.

Let me sfart to my rightkthis time. Commissioner
Block, do you have any quéstions? 4.

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: I just wanted to get some
specifics. If you take for a moment‘Gﬁideline 2(f)(1.2) on
270, I jdst want to Qet your suggestions on a specific offense
characteristic., k

| Yoﬁ will notice that.the inéider trading Starﬁs at
page 2.70.

MR. MACEY: Okay. I'm with you.

COMMISSIONER BLQCKf-«You will notice that the base
offense level starts with an-8,kwhich'is, for various reasons,
two levels abéve fraud, but theh in the existing guidelines
the oniy specific offeﬁse ¢ha£acteristic is the gain from fhe
offense. Now; faced with that guideline, how would you chénge o

it, or would/you1 leave it alone?..
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'MR. MACEY: Do you mean‘would'i suggest -- to make
sure T understand( moving from»the_gain to moving froﬁ the
losses -- | |

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: -Yeé; faced with thisjguidelihe
which is now ﬁhe‘guideline on ihSiaer trading, fhe reference
in the fraud guideline ih order'to”scale doesn‘t use ‘loss, it
uses gain, therelare no other aggravators.. What would you do
with it, or would you leave it aioné?

MR. MACEY: Well,_if my choice is to leave it alone
versus move to the loss calculation,.I wouid'definitely leave
it aléne. The loss calculation may involve in certain cases a
far lower determination than the gainé aré”far higher. The
other problem is calculéting'gainris a’much sim?ler matter, .

but the cost involved, in terms df expert witness testimony,

"having financial —- just to give you some example of why I

think you would be much better to leave it alone} it is clear .
from the law that -- let's imagine an insider is selling short,
betting that the stock price is going to go down, there has

got to be testimony from financial econonists in a case like

that when we éompute losses of what the -- very complicated

calculations regarding the beta coefficient of the stock in-

volved, i.e., the economic prediction of how that stock is
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going to trade in relation to the_marketIaS'a whble, because
you have to segregate in these calculations the change in
stock price of the firm who is based on the insider trading,

insider trader's knowledge advantagé on the one hand versus

‘the aspect of:the penalty that is based on generai market

movements, which involves a pretty’sophiSticated‘éalculation_
that financial echomists will for a-fee perform, but again
even once that célqulation is performed, for thé reason I
deécfibed) it is not absoluteiy clear, it is not_really:cleaf
to me at all, really, how that links up.to how egregious we
view the offense to be.

So, if you have to pick»some.cri;eria; it seems to
me the gain is_at least é roughly useful guideline. The prob-
1ém aéain, you know, in the case of our law clerk whicﬁ I
would use as:an egregious example, the gains may be.very
minimél.A The gains in a more‘benign'céée, such as our front-
running, the Williams Act related insider trading, the gains
can bé astrbnomical. :SO, given a choice,.I would piék gainé,
I am not sﬁfe what I Would do if I had the world td‘pick from.

COMMISSIONER BLOCR: Well,.thenexﬁ several weeks
might be too short a periqd to do thaf; but'you might think

-- I was impressed with ydur written teétimony~ih‘terms of
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differentiating the cases of insider trading, and I think this

‘ guideline'probably doesn't do a very good job of that. It is

'better than some of the amendments, possibly, but maybe you
would give some thought as a homework aésignment'to hélp us.
better differentiate the péfnicious Vefsusvthe non-pérnicious
insider trading scheme.

MR. MACEY: Okay. If I think of anything, I will
write, if that is appropriate. |

'COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: cQﬁmissioner Caruthers?

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: I think if you address

‘Commissioner Block's question in your homework assignment, it

would satisfy my curiosity. _What I had 1istenéd to you dis-
cuss, the'extent to which insider trading involves fraud and
your belief that it involves bad. things but not fraud, I
guess I wasAnot'sure_how-bad.this.bad thing is. I know that
you are bpposed to increasing the.penalty; but I wasn't sure
whether you got the current offense 1evei'is éb§ut fight, or.
ﬁhether you feel that the current guideline is too high.

-Thén, the mbré i listened to you, I thought maybe
you are saying -- and I guess this.ié‘a gehefal;question o&er—

all -- whether you are advocating that we.go back to sguare

al
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one for insider trading, in terms of establishing the base
level, establishing losses, or how .we look at that, determin-
ing what will be the specific offense characteristics. The
advocating. Am I reading you correctly?

MR. MACEY: Right. I think that is a very fair,

very excellent gquestion. I guess my'point really is this: As

look at all of fhe thingS'tha£ that Act envisions as inéider
trading, and then_think about what are thé appropriate sentenc-
ing gdidelines for -those things, I guess in a nutshell my |
answer is some of the things that the Act envisions aé being
insider tfading honestly involve very egregious breaches of.
fiduciary, breaches of trust and things'thét are not édmmon
law fraud but a lot like'iﬁ, and therefore, you know, séntenc;
ing guidelines, the old ones; thé new ones, strict ones are
sort of éppropriatei i

On the éthef hand, some of the other things that éfe
called insider trading I would think are much more benign,
don't involve fraud -- some.do, but.sbﬁe donft -- all involve
breach of fiduciary duty of varyingkdégrées,‘ﬁut maybe somev

aren't as serious as others, and therefore to jump up all of
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 the levels, I think is a bad thing.

So, I guess my point is that there are two things

going on. We are increasing the penalty level -and we are

- broadening at the bottom end of the spectrum the kind of range

of activities éhat we are’talking about the penalties applying
to, and so my answer is - I.guéss you are quite right to call
me on it,,tovbe more brecise, I'guess I would séy it is not
so much that the penalties are too strict forreverything; it
is just ﬁhat.there are certain agtivitieélthat théy capture
tﬁat are_inappropriéte, in my view. |
COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Thank you very much.
CHATRMAN WILKINS: Thank you.
. Commissioner Nagel?
COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Professor Macey, givén your ex-
pertise, I would like to ask you, if you had your drﬁﬁhers
of sitting at a blank piecé of péper and éomeone asked-you'té
specify ﬁhe appropriate sancfidn, :anging'anywhere ffdm pro-
bation or fine or imprisonment for an individuai convicted of
inéider trading, what would that seﬁtence be, and’then Would
you make a’distinction betﬁéen the-éenfence fof one person.
convicted of insider'trédingkversus another and, if so, on

what basis, and essentially by how much would you like to see
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it increase? Assume ydu,Wére in7our place, what would.you do?
MR. MACEY: I éueés»this sortvof anticipates what
I was.thinking about in response td Commissioner Block's
point - | |
COMMISSIONER NAGEL:- You can put this in jour home-

work assignment.

MR. MACEY: I will have to dig up some research as-

sistants.

[Laughter.]

i will try - this is very vague, and hopefully I
willtmamore pfecise at some poinf -f'to draw a‘correlation be-

tween the gravity of the breach of fudiciary duty; which as a
matter of law is what we are~called'up§n to think abQut.when
we are thinking of inside'trader’s éulﬁability, Qe iook at the
gravity of the breach of thé fiduéiary duty and.somé are going
td be worsé than others. | |
Certainly, in my view,.soﬁe of them would rise to

the level of things we pu£ people:in jail for in -this spciety
without.f4

| COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Would you start at a base of 9
imprisonméht-and then uée that as a specific offense character-

istic, is that what you are suggesting?
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MR. MACEY: No, because that is a prerequisite:
Now, all of these cases will involve a breach of a fiduciary

duty, and the question is -- to talk about fiduciary duty, it

'is really a term of art in insider trading cases, that is to

say obviously we think of fiduciary duty -=z.it.comes into

our lexicon of corporations and it comes in our lexicon in-

tﬁe law, and in securities laws it relates to-insider £réding
-- and the range of fiduciary'duties,,tﬁe range of relation-

shipé that comprise fiduciary duties_in»the realm of insider

trading'is'far broader than it is in trust; and.far broader |
even than in corporations;

For example, if you have two corporations and they
enter into negotiations-with one another, in’a lot Qf‘caées
6n just this soft of facts, négotiations with one another.where
theée'two comﬁanies are thinking about a joint_&enture. It
miéht be that they are thinkiﬁé of a partnership, in other
words, and during the contexf_¢f their nego#iations the first
firm learns.sﬁuff about fhe.second firmband.the secoﬁd firm
learns stuff about the first.firm, and the negotiations break

off, they never enter into the joint venture, but one of the

firms, .on the basis of what it learned dﬁring these confidentia

joint venture negotiations, decides to buy or séll stock in
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forebear from engaging in insider trading.

pretty vague. Courts are split. 'As'I'say, under certain fact

| where a lawyer is in a position of trust with a client who is
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the other'firﬁ that has léarnedvconfidentialﬂmatfers about:
that firm. |

Now,'some courté have felt that set of facts dbesn't
involve a violation, because there was én implied consent or.

a variety of rationales. Other courts have held, by contrast,

this felationship’of a limited nature that would include

reading into this contract, if you will, an obligatién to

Now, clearly, this is nét a fiduciary duty as we
think about it from the law of cdrpo:ate.iaw, but it is a
fiduciaryAduty; soﬁe courts have held, and I think thefe is
some justification for it under a variéty of fact‘patﬁerns.

But in this area, should somebody go to jail for that? It is

patterns this would involve a breach of fidﬁciéry'duty as the
term is thought about insideﬁ trading, bﬁt>sénding somébody to
jail on tha£ really would_plague me.

"On the other hénd;’you kﬁow, there are other examples

of cases where the fiduciary duties have been breached merely

talking about a financial matter of great sensitivity, and the




. . ;

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

13'

19

20

21

22

106

lawyer goes out and trades. I am pretty éympéthetic to sending
that person to jail. .

.Again, they are all going to invqlve the court making
a decision that there is avfiduciary duty being breached, but
to say to a couft, on:the basis of which of’these schemes is
ﬁore complex or on the bésis of other kinds'of,ériteria that s
we télked about, that you maybe send somebody to jail for the
first ohe; merger and joint venture negotiations, but not the
second one, that gives me péuse. |

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Judge Breyer?

COMMISSIONER BREYER: No questioﬁs.

" CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Professor, thank you very much.

MR. MACEY:A Thank you.k |

CHATRMAN WILKINS: Our next witness is Mr. Tom
Rendino. Tom has téstified.oq several occasions before the
Commission and has worked with the Commission bn»the Probation
Officers Working Group. He is‘the.President.éf the Federal
Probation Officers Association.

Mr. Rendino, it is a pléasure to see ybu once again.

'MR. RENDINO: Thank you, Your ﬁOnor;

I want to thank the Commission for once again allowin

g
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the field probation foicers to be représented with some of
our thoughts and.feélings and comments on.tﬁe guideiines, and
Sﬁecifically the proposed amendments. .

I think i will reiy in largélpafﬁ on my prépared
statement and I would be happy to answer any questions related
to that, but I do have £hree 6r four_bther'comments that I
would like to bring to the Commission's attention.

First of all, T just came frém ﬁhe trainers session
in Nashville and I want to advise the Commissioneré_that, if
you haven't done so already, yoﬁ_really must salute Phyilis
Newton and her staff. It was an excéllent session.and the
reports, because the FPOA does monitorlall‘the sessions and
the previous session was_exaétly the saﬁé,_so you have a
winner thére and I hope you cén‘kéep her for a good long time,
as well as her staff,' |

The second thank yéu I want_tb bring to yog, becauée.
it is bearing increasing fruit‘for thelfield, is thé network ’

of computers that the Commission put out in the field in two

‘subSequent years. First off, there was some”paranoia on the

part of some field officers who got a little bit shakey when
they walkéd in front of the keyboard and the. screen, however,

in large part it has been a blessing and it has increased the
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efficiency of the field,'particularly in the preparation of

'the‘somewhat complicated presentence reports which are now not

so complicated, with the advent of the compufers and the word
processbrs. . As én adjunct, it has helped us.in many other
areas. It has bréught line staff ﬁore up to snuff as far as
beihg computer literate, and it has helpea in otheriduties
‘also When we are not having‘staff‘do‘those presenténce reports.

The third pqint I would like to emphaéize, and it
goes to page 4 of my prepared stafement, is basically that as
we in general endorse the home détention.proposal,‘l must

emphasize and reiterate once again that we just do not have

‘the staff currently nor the resources, such as the electronic

gear; to really implement that. It is almost as if we are
trying to shoot ourselves in the foot here in endorsing the
proposal that would probably send us under fof the third time
and drown us out there in the field., | |

i guéss what I am Saying is we_voﬁé "yes," but we
plead that if it is endorsed, fhat ydu'go to Congress or who-
eﬁer elsé'yéu may need to go toisee what impéét that willAhavé
on -us énd what additional staff and‘feéourcéé we will need to
implement that. I knowkit is_ndt a resblﬁed'issue,‘but.if it

becomes a resolved issue in the affirmative, we will do it, we
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want to do it_éredibly but we need e#tra hé1p to do it credibly
vI would like fo ask thelperﬁiséion of the Chair, I
queried the President of the new Fedéral Probation Clerks
Council, oui clerical component is organizeakinto a profes-
sional association, and due to,my'fravels_and a mix-up in
getfing paéers to me, her statement as to the impact -of guide-

line sentencing on the clerical staff in the various probation

offices didn't reach me until just yesterday and, if I might,

I would like fo offer up_hefgwriftén stétement'as an extension
of my own remarks, if that is»possiblef'

CHAIRMAN WI;KINS: Certainly,-itwwill be included.
In fact, the public comment §eriod wi;l.remain open’ﬁext week
as well, so we are going'to”haQe‘plenty‘of opportunity for
that. That is an important ﬁhing_fdr,us to know, but it is
alsb'soﬁething that probably is appfopriately submitted to

Congress as well, since the fihal decision will rest there,

but we will always support the probation officers as far as

pe:sonnel and resources, and you}know ﬁhe past few years have
proven that ﬁo be trug. |

MR. RENDINO: Thank.youA§efy much. -

My final commént, I think I heard the;Department‘of

Justice, Joe Brown, I believe it was he who mentioned that
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supervise, is it correct to say, between 50 to 80 defendants

'in a normal situation, depending on the intensity of the

- is that correct?
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money may not be as important as the robbery itself in a bank
robbery case. If I heard that correctly, I would like to just

give the flip side of that, based on 20 years of experience

There have been and there are and there probably will
be in the future the professional bank robbers that‘spend‘a
great.deal of time plotfiné and planning, and they invériablyﬁ'
with'iittle misses; thain large’sgms.éf money, as opposéd to
the amateurs, if we may use'that'teim, who go in and get $1,800

Now, the robbery ifself“is probébly the most iﬁpor—
tant factor, but I believe fhat the monetary enhancement or
the adjustment should nét be thrown ouﬁ.without due considef-.
ation of professionals.

I will conclude my remarks there, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: ~Thank you. Let me ask yoﬁ briefly

with regard to electronic monitoring, a probationAofficer can

supervision of some of them, is that about the rule of thumb,

MR. RENDINO: That is carrying a heavy load, Your

Honor.
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supervision. The home detention, with electronic monitoring,
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'CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Well, is 50_ a reasonable load?

:MR- RENDINO: Fifty is é.good Qperative number, yés.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS:' Assuming that electronic monitof—
ing is introduced_and a probation officer -is aSsigned to
ménitor éléctronic—monitored defendants, how many could that
probation officer reasonably Supervise?

MR. RENDINO: .The current state of the inférmation,
and we héve relatively littierf this éctivity in thé Federal
system presently, but the current stéte 6f ﬁhe information,
particulafly.that coming out of South.Florida,.is.that an
ekperieﬁced, very mature probation officer, absent any other
dutieé, éould probably supervise between 20 and 25 at the
maximum. .

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: And can’ydﬁ briefly state why that
is? . |

MR. RENDINO: Thé éupervision is much more intensive

than our so-called high-activity supervision. As Your Honor

requiresva great deal of extras. For instance, the officers,
the team must be on duty seven days per.week,_including

holidays. We have a number of incidents we could bring to
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‘that entails, and it sometimes goes into some very risky
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computer advises the officer on duty at 2 a.m. that the client

is no longer where he or she is supposed to be, and then what

neighborhoods. When tho sun falls, some of these neighborhoods
become even more risky, and it goes on and on and on; So it
requires a much closer attention, much higher intensity.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: 'It,requires immediate reéponse, a
call from the monitoring System, if the thino is going'to'wofk?

MR. RENDINO: You don't wnit until Monday morning,
Your Honor, you must get in the car and on your’waf immediately

CHATRMAN WILKINS: Thank you.

Commiséioner Block? |

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: I have a short question to
follow up on the'electronic monitoring'éxperiements; i‘know
that the State I am from, Arizona, there is.an_ekperiment with
electronic monitoring that went on for éome time.4.What are
the other districts that have front—end.electtonic monitoring
home arrest options or néve had.it in the past? I am sure
right now‘they don't have much of it.

MR, RENDINO: I missed the beginning;ryon said what

other districts?
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| COMMISSIONER BLOCK: I know Arizona has'had soﬁé.f
MR. RENDINO: Los Angeles and the»Sbuthern Distric£
of Florida.
| -COMMISSIONER'BLOCK: Do you ﬁavevsome'written
matérial Qn those experiences fhat We'could getvhold of pretty |
rapidly? . |
- MR. RENDINO: i don't have it hefé,fbﬁt I am sure I .
can get some funneled to you. | | |
COMMISSIQNER BLOCK: Would ybﬁﬂprovide that?.
MR.IRENbINO: Very definitely; | |
COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Thank you. -
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you;g
Judge Breyer?': - | |
COMMISSIONER BRYER: Thank_yqu.; I thoughthhé‘sub—
missioné were very interesting and-he;pful; Thank yoﬁ;
.CHAIRMAN WILKINS; Commissioﬁer Nagél?‘
~ COMMISSIONER NAGEL:' Thank you Very mﬁch. In par—
ticular; i want to thank the entire PfobationfServiée for being

extraordinariiy helpful and supportiﬁe‘throughout all of our

efforts. You have done a wonderful job and I just want to

express my appreciation.

MR. RENDINO: Thank you very much.
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CHAIRMAN WILKINS: .Thank yoﬁ very much, Tom.

ThglNational_Association éf'Crimihal_Defense Lawyers‘
is an association which has been activeiy involved with the
Coﬁmissionifrom the very beginning. Its representatives are
here today. YQu testified before and we aré deliéhted to see
you once again, Mr. Bensoﬁ Weintfaﬁb ander. Scott Wallace.

MR. WEINTRAUB: Thank you, Your ﬁonér.

Judges and members~of the Cpmmission, may if please
thé CommiSSibn: NACDL has a deep commitment to assisting the
Sentencing Commission in the public heariné process to hope-
fully impact in a material way upon all aspéCts of guideline
senteﬁcing, including the on-going ameﬁdment process.

. I am a partner in the Miami law firm of Sonnett,
Sal & Tunney, and my practiéelis limited ﬁo representing
offenders in séntencihg,véost-conviction and habeas corpus
proceedings; I am écéompanied today-by Scﬁtt Wallace, who is
the Acting Executive Director:and_Legislative Director of our
association.

NACDL was the only membership_bér organizéﬁion that
invblved itself in nationwide challenges té thé'constitution-

ality of the guideline system and its derivative legislation

- up to and including the Mistratta case. With the resolution
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of approximately 290 amendments may not reflect the same type
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commitment to continue monitdring fhe senteneing guideline"
promulgation process; and that wiil be the principaiifocus of -
our testimony_todey.

What concerns ue, Judges and Members, is the process |
by which amendments are enacted. ~We note, of ceurse, that
wnen the Commission originally developediﬁs initial guideline
package, it was the result of an exceptionaliy thorough and
exhaustive émpiricalibased analysis of pan sentencing prac-
tices.

While we, of course, accept that representation,
NACDL has for the past several years sought accees to the iaw
data that the Commission has.used in determining its initial
set of guidelines and it would be.of tremendous assistance to
ue'in éroyiding future éubiic‘testimOny and comment if we were
able to access that material,inot-necesearily 1imited'to the
raw data as Well as perhaps»fedemptive Veisione of the 10,000
presentence reports. |

| But we were particulerly impressed with this exhaus-
tive empirical besed analysis by the Commission in‘itslinitial

stages. We are, however, very deeply concerned that this set’
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'sion's initial guidelines should be validated or changed.
‘gquite cautiously to deliberate and ultimately to postpone

“action on the proposed amendments until the May 1990 submis-

in the exhaustive empirical based analysis that is necessary.

- of course, that in many other districts there is available

‘the Commission an opportunity to review its'past guideline
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of deliberative eﬁpirical based research and study hecessary
to enable the Commission to sufficiently ahalyzé existing
dafa, particularly newvda£a obtained from the District Courts.
with respect to past sentencing practices,.in.order to use

such data as a benchmark for determining whether the Commis-
In that regard, we ﬁrge the Commission to proceed
sion, which is required. We feel that if that action was
taken, it would afford the Commission the opportunity to engage
Since many districts, including my home district,
have not applied sentencing guidelines until sometime after
thé-Supreme Court's decision in Mistretté,'guideline sentenc-

ing in many districts is still in its infancy. I recognize,

data to be analyzed by the Commission in order to review sen-

tencing practices under the guidelines and to perhaps-afford

provisions, with an eye towards making amendments, if indicated

-
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and on the basis of empirical data.

- As my cqlléagues'from the ABA pointed out earlier,

it appears_to thé_Defense'Bar'that the deliberative procéss

leading to the probosal of’thésé_amendments are largeiy the
result of anecdoﬁal_expériences, and we feel that'amehdﬁent

by anecdote is inconsistent with thevspifit and intention of

| the -enabling legislation, as well as-the'Commission's self-

imposed limitations to base its proposed amendments and guide-

line changes on'empirically based data;yand we would ﬁrge you,

_theréfore,_touengagé in the Same_tyPe of exhaustive analysis-

that you did initially with respect to these particular amend-

ments.
.It appears, for example,vthat,the Commission is re-
sponding to a variety of comments, complaints, observations

which trickled in to the'CommissiOn,from;a‘sélf-selected group

of perhaps_District Judges, United States'Attdrneys, and per-

‘haps defense attorneys and probation officers.

~ What is more'disturbing'tévus; howeﬁér,»is Whatvthé
Defepsé Bér, speéifically through NACDL,'péfceiQeé to bé a . .
knee—je:kriéactibn;-fér examble, with fespec£kto_fhéApropésed
modification’of the telephone.cbuﬁt;

At the time the proposed amendments were_published,
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| guideline.

‘minimum sentences, for example, that such sentenes do impact

118
I believe that there was only one Court of Appeals decision,

Caraha Vargis in the Secdndicifduit, holding that because of

case,.the Second Circuit upheld the sentencing judge's impo-
sition of an upward departure, beéauée_it did not'adequétely
refléct the overall seriousnessrof tﬁe.offense apd perhaps was
not thé type of offense‘conauctitéken'into cdnsideration of‘ai

kind and to avdegree contemplated bY}the telephone count

- This particular guideline has Very,'very'far—reaching
implications. The representatives from the Department of

Justice commented this morning in the context of mandatory

in a very substantiai way upon the‘pleaipfocess;

The telephone count is the‘énly narcotics §ffense
not presently geared to the‘drﬁg'quéntity table'and, as spch;
serves, in our view, as a saféty Valve for‘applicatiOn_to |
relatively low culpabilitynoffenders‘or.éffenders‘peripherally’
involved in narcotics tranéacﬁions,.whose levél'of aécount—
ability should not be measured by the aﬁount bf'drugs involved,
bécause-even'giVen the adjusfménts cdntemplated BY.the role

and acceptance sections, such persons would not, consistent

[ .
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| with the sentencing prinéiples enunciated_in'Mistrétta'and the

Sentencing Reform Act,'be.adéquately held accduntabie, they
will be held tOO-accountable.
_ In short, it is our position that thisiproposed'

amendment was instituted in large measure simply in response

' to one isolated court decision. And whilé it is my under-

;standing'that ih the past several days the Third Circuit

reached a similar holding;'that was subsequent to the publica—

~tion in the Federal Register of the notice of éroposed rule-

_making;

The telephone count must - be pféserved in its'cﬁrfent
form aé front-1line Practitioners, as reérésentéiiVes‘of an
association.cqmprisei of’apprinmately.15,0Q0 criﬁinalfdéfense
1aWyers praéticing cfiminal law in Federai courté in every

State in the United States, we must be able to have some

flexibility in order to avoid a cbmplete'b;éakdown in the plea |

I am not suggesting that‘thevmainténance of the
present system for telephone .count dispoéitiéns'would be- in-

consistent with the Commission's own standards on plea agree-

‘ments, so ldng as the offense ade@uate reflects the overall

seriousness of the relevant conduct. And in many situations,
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| way on the merits to each of the proposed guideline amendménts,

next week a comprehensive statement in writing analyzing each

.statements. I believe that there was a comment from the bench

120

particularly with respect to low culpability offénders, the
Because of the inability to respond in a substantive

we héve~simply submitted preliminary written statements to the

Commission today. We do, however, contemplate filing early

particular proposed amendment .
I would also like to echo at this time some of the

concerns expressed earlier with respect to the prison impact

before ipdicating that the Commissibn‘may not havé,up—to—date
information with respect‘to current‘prison.population and'
capacity.

As a defense_attofnéy, I routinely receivévthis in-
formatién'on a weekly basis;.bréaking dbﬁﬁ thé population not
only system-wide, but by insfitution,~énd this ié avéilable
from the Bureau of Priéons,oﬁ a weekly basis.

I also feel that.Mr.‘Block's.éomﬁents‘with_respect
to a crime impact sfatément is also particularly‘impoftant. On
the general subject of impactﬂstatéments, we feel, in addition,

that a judicial impact statement may be indicated to assess
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~assistance. We feel that the guideline section 5(k)(1;1)

duty owed when the offender otherwise quaiifies in all material
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ﬁhe effect ofAthe guidelihes on the case management”of each -
Distriét Court, as well as each United Stat¢§’Court>of Appeals.
Iﬁ Short, there are a'ﬁumbér'of amendments which Qe
feel ﬁhe Commission lacks sufficient:aata at this time to passA
judgment on. | ”

One thing that I would like to mention before'clbs¥

should be preserved. Ultimateiy, throuéh legislative changes,
we feel that éenteﬁcing judges shoula have the abilify sua.
sponte to reward cooperation, becéusé tob’muéh-diécretiOn'in
this rggérd is now vested in the Dépaftment of Justice uﬁder
3553(e) and Rule 35(b). AndAwhilevmandamué prqceedings might

be initiated to compel a United States Attorney to perform a

feSpects for a cooperation départure, there.is no.;eal remedy
authorized undé; law, undervthe-lggisiatioh and under.the
guidéliﬁes, and wé feel that the_Commission should be”seﬁsitivé
to £hat. |

In conclusion, the current issﬁéiof‘the Fedefal
SenﬁenCing'Repofter contéins written coﬁments by Meﬁbers bf

thé Commission, including Ms. Caruthers, Judge McKinnon and
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.others, manifesting a consensus that before changes in the
_guidelines are made, there must be a thorough deliberative

‘process.

Congress to scrutinize the appropriateness of utilizing manda-
~congressional preference for a body of experts, the Sentencing
function of the Commission and the Commission's ability to

sensitize Congress, particularly through the sunset provision

- of experts.

“any questions that the Commission mayfhave at this time.
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We are also aware of the August 22, 1988 letter from
Judge Wilkins to Senator Nunn, referenced by Mr. Buffone

earlier today; and we support the Commission's position for
tory minimum‘sentences, particularly in view of the expressed

Commission, to develop sentencing policy. And I feel in this

regard. that the mandatory minimum legislation'underminés the

exercise discretion over actual sentences to be imposed would -

be furthered through more\stronger efforts on the Hill to

proposed by the Chairman, to review their_policies_on mandatory
minimums, so that any mandatory minimum sentence is consiSténtv_

with the overall'sentencing scheme contemplated by this body

We deeply appreciate the opportunity to appear and

your invitation for such, and we would be pleaéed to -entertain
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Thankvyou;

CHAiRMAN WILKINS: Thaﬁk YOg véry much.

Mr. Wallace,.do you have.énqubmmehts to make at
this time?

MR. WALLACE: I would iike to add oﬁé additional
issue that sweéps through ééveral of the guideline améndmenﬁs.
It‘is the éuestion of punishing peoplé for a crime other than
the one Qf which they weré convicted. Iﬁ'gets to the qﬁestiqn'
of real offense sentencing Versusvchérge of conviction sen-
tencing. It.crops‘up in Amendment No. 118, regarding méil

fraud,’Amendmenf No. 110, multi-count conspiracies, Amendment

No. 112, conspiracies where reasonably foreseeable acts of

others are to be imputed to the offeﬁder, Amendment No. 140,

regarding'impersonating‘a Federal officer_for the purpose-bf_
facilitating some other offense, and the telephone count that
Benson was.referring to'earlier.

This notion erpunishing_peopié for offenseé that
they intended to facilitate”or céntemblated as thelrésulfs of
a conépiracy,'a multi—count-cdnspiracy;'is-aépealing, perhaps,
in order tQ cut off the avenue of.pleé 5argaining as an escape
valverr as. a way of circuﬁvehting thé_guidéline process,

rather, charge bargaining is more what the Commission is’
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of that safety valve and the appropriateness of it. Theré is

"directly accomplished and the U.S. Attorney, if they can estab—I

| tate the plea bargaining, upon which the entire criminal

| preponderance of the vidence.
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But it does not take into_conSiderétion the necessity

a reason that Congreés created a telephOné count, as distinct
from the uhderlying distribution counts, énd there is a reason
that conspiracies and attempts and other offenses are treated.
sebarately in the statute than the undériying offénses, and
the congressional intent appears to be tﬁat tﬁey shduld be

treated less severely, because the underlying offense was not

1ish that the underlying offense waé accomplished;;is free to
charge and prove that.

To'give proper reflection,‘propef recognition to the
difference in these offenses and not tp_puhish them as if they

were the same as the'underlying offense is necessary to facili-

justice system relied, and withdut which it woqld bréak down
#nd strangle on the extra cases going to trial.

I£ ié also essential,.ihlorder to put the government
to its proper criminal.burden of prééf'and not to have peopie

Sufferihg additional punishments of evidénce proved only by a
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‘the underlying offense had been committed, and that includés"
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So, we would urge 'you to take this into considera-
tion throughout the guideline amendment process, whether the

telephone drug count or any other time this crops up. We

They péssed the BiFulco amendment in the'Drug Abuse Act, .

sayihg that conspiracies and attempts shall be punished as if

mandatory minimums.

But we think that both Congress‘and the_Commission
needs to pay particular attention £¢ this problem and the
severe ramifiéations.that itﬂwould havé,‘particﬁlarly in the
area of plea.bargaining.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you very much.

Questions from myvieft,.Juage Breyer? .

COMMISSIONER BREYER: I am cﬁrious ébdut -- I could.
not agree with you more about the ﬁeed fof.detailed numerical
stﬁdy before making significant chaﬂges invany of these numbers
and indeed the Cdmmissiqn has tQ las#~for‘20 or 30 years, 50
years, not‘for 1 6r 2, and we can't make’changes-on the bésis
of anecdotés, and pdrticular groups being overly sensitive'or

very sensitive to one point of view or -another, indeed your
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group or any other group.

I would be intereéted in whét yoﬁ think of what I
think héfe are two exceptions, where the data was fairiy well
looked into. One.is the bank robbery and the 6ther is the
career offender. I felt fhe staff iﬁ.fhis instance looked inte.
the matter very thoroughly ahd feally‘quite-well. "The data.has
only been recently put out, but that is because they spentla
lqt of time doing it. They uséd not‘onlylfhe,prison impact
statémént, ana.my impression is still thatgdur érison impact
model; which was developéd with the_Buréaﬁ of Prisons with
people at MIT, is as good a model as‘anione is likely to find.
So;,I would be surprised and I would like to knbw‘if any of -
the dthér Commissioners or the staff or anyone says it isn't
up to date: I would thihk it,wés up to date;‘and that wé
realize that. |

| Then you state in your written testiﬁony, YOu statéd
in respect to the career'offéhder-or theAchangeé that appear
to.reéult in longer guideline senténces, ahd-that isn't trué.
The changes £hat Qere putvout for career éffenders are de—
signed to do the opposite. Maybe iﬁ éomé iﬁstances they are

longer, in others they are shorter, but whether they are

longer or shorter is beside the point.
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that the'data'sﬁows'is'that in bank'robbery, which
is a fairly good segment of the Federal prison population,
people in column 6 are gettingAsentencés'fo:.unarmed robbery
that avgraged around 5 years réél timé, 5 to.6 years real time.
The career offender prdvisiqns raise that.to befween 17 and 22
years. That was an increasé of, say, a~factor of 4. _Armed
robbery in columh 6 still had an average.f—‘méybe~it is too.
low, but'the average past experience was 5 or 6 yea#s, aﬁdAthe
career offender-faised it méybe 22 to 27 years real time.
Well, those were ehormoﬁs changes and we  had receiv—

ed complaint, not just from offenders but fr¢m prosecutors as

was in light of thatvthat the staff really looked into the
numbers and came up with ratherrdetaiiedvhqmbefé éboutiwhat
wés,going on in bank robbery and‘they primarily cdnfirﬁed.thatv
oﬁf bahk robbefy1guideiines weré on aVerage, based_bn"pést |
practicé, but that past pracfice waslrationalized in a variety
of ways, and these chahges :eflect that data.
SQ,}I would be qﬁite interested in what you think

about that. |

':MR, RENDINO:‘ Well, wé clearlf épplaud_the Commi s-

sion for undertaking an empiricai study'based on past numerical
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;eferences‘in these two éategories, and no bne questions, even
members of the benéh bar, the:peed téradequately hold serioué
and violeﬁt offenders adéquatelyiaccountable to sociéty fox
éommiséion §f<theii offenSes;‘

HdWever, at 1east‘as-of this date and'I'believe‘thét
the data dnly became available,felatively recently, we haveA
not had the épportunity to asséss that daté‘ourselves but,-of‘

course, relying on your«represehtation that it was thorough

‘and exhaustive, we hope that the data will validate the pro-

posal.

COMMISSIONER BREYER: I don't know, it is what it is

and it is put so that other people can look at,it'and make

any comments.

MR; RENDINO: On .the ofhér'hand, with respect to

‘both categories, for example, we are not insensitive to the -

concern that you expressed earlier, Your Honor, with respect

to a 70-year-old offender whd‘is'largély'incapacitated‘by

" definition, perhaps even medically incapacitated; ‘which might |

render that person legally or functionally incapacitated, a_'
legitimate sentencing objéctive, according to Mistretta, why |
shouldn't we make bed space available for the other offenders

coming in, rather than warehousing?’
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We would also appreciate having access to the prison
impaCt data so that we would be in a position to ‘assure our

constituency as to the validity or, if we perceive by consulta-

the gﬁidelines are being amended.

Waé there a guestion tha£ I left unanswered there?

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: "I think you co&ered pretty-weli
most 1if it. | | |

Any other questions? 'Commissionér Nagel?

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: No, I just Qanted to thank you
again,kespecially Séott-- I knoﬁ that you éome'a loﬁg Qay -—
for always being responsive to our requests for being here with
comments and sﬁggestions. It is‘very helpful. |

| MR. WALLACE: It ié our pleaéure and we appreciate
it. | | |

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Commissioner Block?

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: .I just wanted to clear_up.any
misinterpretation that ﬁight flow from my fequest to'Mi.
Dennis for additional info:mation.‘-You can rest aésured that
the Commission has the prisqn‘capacity-information. The
request was simply to get the out—yeér fundiné fdf thé'buildiﬁg

program and the projected building program. The question was
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really to anticipate what the capécity might look 1ike'é numbeé
of years from now. It is not a queétion about the incident
capacity. -

MR;LWALLACEi In clarificatiqn of our position, as
well, we have supported the Bureau of Prisons_in their re-
questé for additional construction funds,.because,'in addition
to sérviné és Vice Chair of the Sentencing Committee, I am also
goéchair of the Prisoners‘ Rights'Committee.‘ We feel that
through constrﬁction, the conditions of confinement for our
clients will be larggly ameliofafed wiﬁh the construction of
additional facilities, and we feel that systemically there is
an acute need. for more institutions. We are not part of the
priéon moratorium movement, although wé, of‘courée; promote
the preference of alternativeé, including home deteﬁtion,
'discretionaryielectronic monitoring, et cetera. We want
prisoners‘to be housed in édequate and de@ent facilities,
which can only be accomplished through.additional construction,
and Qe have consistently supported the Bureag in that regard.

COMMISSIONER BLOCK; I juét wanted to~§1ear’up any
misinterpretatién of wﬁethériwe did have gccurate capacity
information.

"Thank you.
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determining that the Commissioh would be full-time, so I think

131
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Commissioner Caruthers?
COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: I would just say that you
are on target in your pe:ceptioﬁ that the process is extremely

important as we go about our work. I think there can't be

I agree further with your rationale that it was the -
congressional intent that process be important and, of course,

they established that intent through their deliberation and

that is an accurate_ﬁerception.

Beyond that, I simply wouldksay fhat we appreciate
your group's continuous inppt’in our.work, and I think that you
said that.there.would be some specific ;ecbmﬁépdations_coming
in and I look> forward to that.

Thank you.

'MR.,WALLACE: fTﬁank you.
" CHAIRMAN WILKINS: 'Again, thénkAyou both.

MR. WALLACE: Thank you, Judgé.';’

.CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Our nexf two Qitnesses, Mf; Derek
J. VanderSchaaf,'Depﬁty_Inspector General, Department of _
Defenée, and éccompanying him is Mr; Morris Silverstéin, who

is the Assistant IG for Criminal Investigatioh, Policy &

l .
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Oversight.

We are‘delighted.to see'you:both and we‘welcome your :
oral ¢ommenté and, of course, your written éomments will be
made a part of this permanent record.

MR; VANDERSCHAAF: Thank you, Judge Wiikins.. I am
happy to be here and I will try as best I can to express the
Department of DefenseAInspector_Generai's viewpoint on the
matters that you have before you, and particularly addreés
some aspects of these proposed amendments fhat.are under con-
sideration. |

Let me state right up front that I don't purport to

"have any special or specific expertise in this business of

determining appropriate punishments, but we have from time to

time commented to officials in the Department and to United

| states Attorneys with respect to certain categories of frauds

Where we have had difficulties in achieviﬁg what we consider
to be appropriate punishments.

The Office of Inspector General in.the Department of
Defense was establishediin iaté”l982, and Congréss vested us
with oﬁerail‘respohsibility for éreatiﬁé‘and iﬁblementing
policy and guidance'fof conducting-ove:$ight 6ver ﬁatters of

fraud, waste, and abuse within the Department of Defense.
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The conduct of criminal investigations by our office
is a relatively small poftion:of ouf wofk,,but it is a very
imporfant pOrtion. By far} fhe iargestkamdunt of'our_effort
goes into audit and inspeétion_functidns'of,the programs=
functions, activities.and the managemeht responseé and manage-—
ment actions of officials in the»Deparfment of~Defénse.

But we have a special situation.in DOD where we have
four major criminal investigative organizafions, and I have |
with me today Mr. Morris Silverstein, who serves as an
Agsistant Inspector General fo developIPOlicy_and provide -
6versight to those various four criminal‘in?estigative organ-—
izations. . | |

Now,. from the very start of our organiZation, we'havé
focusedvon_procurementAfraud,;becégsé'that_is where we felt the
problems were, where the»big‘mdney was; and éo éorth, I can -
go back in my memory of histdry and some feéearch that goes
back to the end of'WorldAWér'II,-and befween World War II énd.
mid-1980, thefe was not a éingle con&iction'pf a major defense
contractér for fraud. |

Since the mid-1980's, we have 17 of the top 100
defense conﬁractors convicted; severai on more than one occa-

sion, and I want to tell the Commission that the dollar amounts
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involved in these convictions has iﬁcreased{substanfiaily.‘
Some of the dollar amounts have gfownlféther iarge. A recent
conviction inVolviné the-Sunstrahd Corporafibn involved-somé
$115 million,.so those kinds of fraudé'have greatly exceeded
the current limitafion,_the_CUrrent total $5 million 1imita;
tion in tﬁeuéﬁidelines. |

Now, in matters involving defénse procurement -fraud,
we focus in three areas primarily and place a'priority Qh

them. The number one priority is on what we call product ‘sub- |

‘stitution. We also place priority on mischarging, which is

the éharging of labor or matérials or other aspects from one

contract and moving the cost to another contract, or charging

~the Department of Defense for commercial work on one of its

conﬁracts.

We also focus on.defective pricing, which is in fact
providing the Department of:DefenSe'with cost or pricing data -
that is inaccurate in orderyﬁo iﬁprove one'$~profi£’position
on a fixed-price contract;

~ But number one and firét and-most'im?ortant to us
is product substitﬁtion, and let me divide that'into threé or
four categories where wé 1ook there. We are talking about

false testing, failure to test products, defective products,
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and substitution of products.

Now,'false testing‘is<obviously~self-explana£ory,

~somebody tests the product, it doesn't meet and certifies that

it does meet the specifications and shipslthé product aﬁyway.

failure to test, again, is simply.the tests arelnot conducﬁed

even though the Department'haé paid to have thé.testé completed
Defective products are producfs which do hot meet

the standérds required by the conﬁract and thefefore are prob-

ably non-conforming or otherwise will fail, either catastrophic

failure or more likely result in premature failure and expenses

to the Départmeht from that'aspéct. This is a.critical éroblen
and 6ne that is very difficult to éeparate criminal -activity
from just the problems df manufacturing items to speéificé-
tions. -

finally, we héve.sﬁbstitutiOn of products, wﬁich
includes simply providing usIWith a product othér than'the oﬁe
that waS specified in the caﬁfract> substitutiﬁg metals or
substituting any kind of item for the one in the contract.

Now, these productzsﬁbstitutibn categories éver
interrelaﬁe. When.someonevchéats.the Department of Defeﬁse in‘
one of these areas, they have a tendency to do it in a number

of areas. For example, the gbvernment may request original

1
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equipment from the original equipment manufacturér and a.

foreign ménufactﬁrer.counﬁerfeit will show up on our she;ves
that didn't hawve any testing at all, either. As I say, they
get mixed together. |

.Now, in 1988 alone, the four Defense criminal in-

vestigative organizations, with Department of Justice assis-

tance, of course, obtained 679 convictions‘in'these_aréas that
I just spoke to, and we recovered some $445 million in fines,
restitutions, penalties, civil recoveries, settlements and so

forth, and those amounts and those convictions apply to large

' contractors and small contractors.

Principally, what I am here to try té discuss with
yoﬁ this morning is our interést'ih Amehdment No. 119 of the
émendments that you have proposed. This is direct faliout

\ : . E . :
from the Major Fraud Act which was enacted by Congress last
year. |

The«?rdposed legisIation-proﬁided for an additional
2 years'incarceration for‘mattefs'covéred by tﬁé Major Fraud
Act,-"where conscious or wreckless risk ofrserigﬁs personal
injuri.results from.the fraud." The applicability, hbwever,

is limited to contracts of over a million dollars, and we

believe that that applicability should apply, irregardless of




10

11

12

13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

137

the aollar 1evél’pf the contract inVOlved.

Establishing a dollar damage or a dollar threshold
in defective pricing and ‘cost mischafging, thét makes a lot
of sense. But when you try to put a dollar figﬁre on product
substitution cases, you have a lot.of difficuity in.doing it.
WeAsimply are unable to do so, and we will get into the
problems where thosé.difficulties come. They are largely

built around latent defects and inability to determine when a

~part will fail, cost to identify,the parts, cost to remove the

parts from a weapons system, and so forth and, of.course, such
pérts,.if they are in fact defective, cah cause Catastrophic
malfﬁnctions and have in some occasions apparentlyvdone SO now.
We believe it is imperative that ail'sentencing in
product substitution cases, where there is a riSk of serious
injﬁry was created, that the guidelineS»pro§ide fof incarcer-
ation, even if monetary loss to the government hés not béen
provén. It is generally difficult, as'I just said, to prove
such losses. For example, in éome cases.the replacement
failufe of the ihdividual part may be a,measuré of the les.
Well, in others it may be_the larger.compoheﬁt made inefféc-
tivé-by the defective parf. In other cases, fﬁe loss ﬁay be

the cost identified to gét'the'comp0nent'out~of the_major




10
11
12
1

14

15

16

17
18
19
20
21

22

138

component which it is a part of.
Now, we do the product substitution review of cases
that have been around between 1985 and 1987. This review en-

compassed cases that involved high dollar losses. There were

15 cases involved, ‘and we felt these cases had a serious impact

on readiness or mission requirements within the Department of

Defeﬁse;

We conclude that few of the sample cases involve
sentences of significant”deterreht valuéf_ We further‘concludéd
that the montary penalties wéré also<genera11y not'significant ;
in these cases, and the séntencing pattefn that resulted from
these 15{cases wés as follows:

Those:receiving a minimum of 18 months 6r more.were
3; 4 were 12 to 18 ﬁonths; 1 was 6 to izlménths;'G were in
the cétegofy Qf.l day to 6 ﬁonths; aﬁd fhére was no incarcer—:
ation in 9 of these cases.

) 'Now, the courts have‘téken'I,tﬂink -- relatively
lenient'sentences were haqded down in many of these cases,
becauée Irguess of the white collar nature of the cfiﬁe. The
Ideféﬁdants were shown td‘be billars of their’community,.the
courts'wére told that the contracﬁor found it nécessary.fo

commit the improper conduct to stay in business, the jobs in
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better sentencing memoranda, and the Department has attempted

| has_improved considerably.

“send a clear message of zero tolerance on product substitution.

139

the community would be hurt if the contractor had tested the
equipment properly and found that it didﬁ't work and there-
fore had te lose it or lost money aﬁd had gone out of businese-
for failure to produce. |

Other times, the courts_were told that the product
substitution was of no great-consequence, in other.words, the
Department couldn't prove that the part‘was not working, even

though it had not been tested,as required. So, under those

taining appropriate sentences.
Now, since this time, we have worked with the United

States Attorneys around the country, we have tried to develop

to provide the United States Attorneys with information on the

damages resulting from these cases, and I think the situation

Overall, through fﬁe entire period, September '82 to
February of '89, about 53.percent'of those.convicted'of éro-
duct substitution have beeﬁ incarcefated.

In conclﬁsiop,'we’ﬁould urge that you adopt the

amendment to the guidelines as you haVeAprinted it here, and
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- We think  that will work to improve the quality of the materials.

which the government relies on in the deféﬁse éf our-céuntry.
"I will try to answer yéur»questions and'take up any
other matters you desire to pursﬁevalong this line. Thankvyoﬁ.
CﬁAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank ybu‘véfy much. | |
" Mr. Silverstein, do_You intend to make rema:ks?
MR. SILVERSTEIN:' I would jﬁsfvreiterate what Mr.
VanderSchaaf has said. |
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Good. We are glad to have.ydu
both.. | |
‘Are there any questions frém my right? Commissioner
Block? N |
COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Just a question about thesélls
cases. As I understand it, you 1o§k§d.ét 15 cases_from '85'to
;87; and the screen for £hat was either a lafgé dollar loss or
when the product substitution had a serious impéct'on reédi-ﬁ
MR..VANDERSCHAAF:;;Thét_is corrgct;'sir.
COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Now; it'i§_a very small number
of cases. ﬁsually, we have ‘tried tQ ha§e more NUMErous Cases
to write speéialfprovisions.fbr} bﬁt hefe_We have a spécial.

case, we have a congressional directive and we are trying to
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vdeal with fhat in a sensiblerway;

So, let's take the émall.number of cases. If you
look at one side of the screeh, that'is.jﬁst serious impéct on
feadiness, ére‘those the caées_that mdstlof the'time'get.in—
carceration? Is it the dollar valge that is being.devalued in
these '85-87 cases, or is it aomix?

VMR. VANDERSCHAAF; I think it iéla mix and I think
principally itiis when we can show.that:thére'is poteﬁtial
harm, phyéical harm to individualsvif the part haa in fact

failed before or was likely to fail and cause.harm.‘ I think

‘| that is what gets incarceration in these cases, more than the

dollar loss or the impact on feadiﬁess. I think people tend.

to relate this to a product that is liable to hurt someone.

I will'give you an example. We had a firéjhoée that
was used aboard—ship, the noézle ?aft; You know what a fire
hose is, it takes two or three good strong men to~h§1d one of
these fire hoses in place and'put it on a.fire. As soon as
you tgrned this particular ohe‘bn;,the'mahufactgrer_ﬁad-sub—-
Stituted a product in it, the ball;iqsidé of the nozzlé came
loose and you were unable té tufn it off. Weil; if.ypu drop
a fire hose and it starts swinging all over the deck and it -

is loose, it is liable to cause personal injury. When that
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was presented, the individual received a substantial jail

sentence.

In other cases, where you have an electronic part

" that is not tested, it is placed in hundreds of items, you are

not even sure where it is placed in total, and yet you can't
point to any specific danger or harm to anyone, you are less
likely to have a jail sentence handed down.

MR. SILVERSTEIN: In regard to the number of cases

in connection with this héaring, we basically looked at all

the product”substitution convictiéﬁs by the Defense Criminal
Investigative Service since they~were formed.in 1983, and
there were about 136. Now, this’éovered.both-significantg
p:oduct’substitution-cases that were referred.to in our prior
teStimony_and some that were of é lessof»nature. Of,fhe 136,
we found that there was no incarcerétion in 56 cases, that
onlf approximafély 48 of thosé individuals incarcerated got
more than 2 years in térmsiof real time{‘ﬁot Suspended sen-
téﬁqes ofbincaréeration;- |

One of the things that concerns us is that dealing

‘'with courts in trying to-establish victim impact to the

Department of Defense is_very‘difficult in some instances to

show that actual harm occurred, because we caught it ahead of
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time and in fact we aré_glad.wé caught it ahead.of‘time.and‘in
some:ways thét lessens the.sentences that Are-going to be given
out because the harm didn't occur, so therefore our problem is
'inithe-deterrent aspect of the sentence to othéf'people in
similar situations. It is much more so in.this type of case,
where the dollar amoun£s are_difficult td prove and the crim-
inal fines may or may not maké a difference than in the ac-
counting contract fraud case.

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: ‘Your>judgment,.though, is that
the adjustment suggusted suggested ié.helpful in that regard?

Will the adjustment that was suggested be helpful in that re-

YOﬁ don't have a high demohstrated7risk.or an actual 6ccurrénce
of-harm?

MR. VANDERSCHAAF: ‘Well, we in the Department had to
do a better job of dembnsfrating thé risk and I think we havé

done that. We have alerted the entire system that we have got

cases, plus this addition_that-YOu are proposing here will be
helpful.
COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Would a rectification cost in-

clusion in the loss be helpful? . I mean one way to judge the
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seriousness is how much is spent on --

MR. VANDERSCHAAF:‘ Sometimés‘the losses are so‘tre-~
mendous that I‘dbn't think you ——,first of qll, I d6n't know
how we would add those ﬁp, énd you would néver be able to re-
cover. Many of the companies are far, far too small to even
beéinlto -

| COMMISSIONER BLOCK:' In the scale of’penalties, we
can't handle this in enough timé; but one'way té hahdle the"
loss-may be to try to scale the penalties to include not only
the most obvious loss, some accbﬁnting.profif loss, but what
it costs you to remedy the prodqct substitution, it might
help witﬁ this-problem of --

MR. VANDERSCHAAF : tIf.might.

MR. SILVERSTEIN: In regard to that, in the prior
comments.regarding the organizétional‘sehtencing sanctions, we
recommended,in‘estimating the‘loss would not 6nly include the
actuél dollar loss on the‘codtraét, but»thé’loss 6f seeking
out disCovering, removing thé parts, fhe losévdue-to.the test-
ing of the parts, loss due to in fact putting thévﬁew parts
back in.

, COMMISSIONER.BLOCK;v You see, it might bé helpful

here in setting a metric or setting the offense level on.it,
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since the defense levels are driven in large part by dollar
loss and that might be a way. in this context of alsd dealing
with the dangerousness of prodﬁct substifution.:

MR. VANDERSCHAAF: I would agree with you completely

on some of our others, as Morris calls them, accounting-type

fraud, that there is a great tie-in betweén the dollars and

the kinds of sentences one;ought to hand out. Yéu know, you

don't lose a War or a battle or something.bécause somebédy

;overcharges‘yoﬁifor a product, but if youbhave QOt a product

out there that doesn't work, that can have a real impact and

‘effect, and I don't know how you put that --

COMMISSIONER BLoCK; No, I am not suggesting that.
I am suggesting in fact_thaﬁfyoﬁ use‘the‘dollaré to get a |
better manager of the risk of harm, where_itzis difficult --
I mean a two—levél adjustmenf,

MR.,vANDERSCHAAF£ <Qkay}1

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: In part, that is not enough,

“but one of the'ways to get at‘this_is4to,inc1udeithe rectifi—

cation costs in setting the base offense level.
MR. VANDERSCHAAF: If in fact --

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: I am not saying that the dollar

| of the accounting loss is the important part.
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'MR. VANDERSCHAAF: If in fact we can establish the
rectifidafion costs’.

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: I am not saying that is.majér,
but it is someﬁhing maybe we shouid think about. |

CHATRMAN WILKINS: Commissioner Caruthers?

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Just aléomment'that I am
very concerned gbout this areaTand'therefore_appreéiate your

testimony. After studying your testimony, perhaps I would like

won't bother to do that now,. because it would_be a matter of
great detail. ﬁut'thank you for yoﬁr testimony in this area.
MR. VANDERSCHAAF: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN WILKINS:. Commissioner Nagel, any questions?

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: No. Thank you. I appreciate

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank yoﬁ very much.
MR. VANDERSCHAAF: ' Thank you.
. CHAIRMAN WILKINS: . We abpreciate the vaioué effort
that went into your written testiﬁony:as well.‘ Thénk you.
Catherine England is‘bur nékt Witness.. Ms.‘Englahd'
is a representatiyé of CatovInstitute..‘ |

© 'Good afternoon.
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MS. ENGLAND: Gopd afternoon. i would like to again
thank you for giving me the opportuhity to comment today on
the question you raised, should there be a highé;.éffense
1evei for fraud iﬁvolving a feaerally chartered or insured
financial institution.

| First, I need to apologize, however. I discovered
yestefday that there was a typographical errér in my writ£en

statement and it made a couple of the paragraphs almost un-

anyone interested.
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you.

MS. ENGLAND: In think about this question, you know,

kind of normal petiod of time, if we know what a normal period
of time is,- it probably wquldn't have e&en been‘brought to my
attention..

Bﬁt with a $100 biIlioﬁ‘déficit'fécing“tﬁe savinés
and loan.industry and coppléd with President Eush's_request

for more Justice Department money to pursue fraud within the

promise for the financial institutions industry.

My'bottomAline, the point I would like to make'today
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isbthat,-to the extent that reviewing the penaltieé fo: fraud
at federally insured savingé and loans and dthér federéllyAin;
sured institutions, is an atteméﬁ to address the sévings and‘
loan problem,lit'probably wiii not lead td.the desired results.
The $100 billion deficit we face tddayévin my view, was not a
failure of the legal system, it was»afailure of the regula-
tqu syétém, and I think that'there is some confﬁsion about
that. | |

So, one of my purpbseé is to'grgeAYOu'or.tb urge you

to urge Congress to first clearly_define what we mean by fraud

at federally insured financial institutions.'.Thefe is certain-

1y—some confusion among financial institution managers now and
?erhaps eVen'amoné regulato;s in fhe way that»the use of the
wo;d "fraud" is. being used,Athe éhafges éf fraudlare béing,
levied in the press‘and by regulators.

Certainly, there is a feelingvthat} you know, with

| $100 billion in losses in thfs”industry,'we'couldn't have lost

it all legally, and that is the frustrationbi think that is

out there among taxpayers'aé well as regulators and Congress.
There must be sbme way to recoup these huge deficits through
the legal system and thereby»rélieve taxpayers of the burden

that is facing them.
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But as I explained in my written statement, the vast
majority of the_losses.amonglﬁhe hundreds of insolvent insti-
tutions were generally incurredvthroggh investmeﬁt decisions
that were acceptable from a regulatory poiﬁt of vieﬁ. Many
thrift managers are certainiy guilfy of incompetence and a_léck
of financial sophistiCation,>bﬁtvwhethér their,actiohs should
be viewed as_cfiminai from ajlégal point of view is éﬁother
question and one that I think deserves some attehﬁién._

I generally spend my~time‘studying_the iﬁcentive;‘
structures creafed by differeht regulatory environments, as

opposed to concentrating on the legal environment, but regula-

we talk about undé: which our economic éystem works. .Another
vital element is clearly the'legal structure; the definitions
of cfiﬁinal activities, the likelihood 6f being ¢aught, ana
the penalties for those crimiﬁal.aétivities. Thus,_i View
criminal definitions aﬁdvpénélties és'having two purposes, _One
ié_fetribution-andléunishmént; but the othér is déterr§n¢e.
_The wa& in whichvwe define the'ruleé bf fhe-game de-
termine who will participate and.how théy will.behave and what
decisions they'will make. This is’frue in everything.from

more simple criminal aCtivities we think about, about whether
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to break into a house or not, to insider trading and financial
institution management issues.
My concern with financial institution managers con-

cerned is not ohly with the individuals whose institutions are

~already decapitalized and who are-aWaiting buyérs or liquida-

tion, though sense of equity woﬁld lead me to argue that we
should counterac£ the current witch hunt aﬁong the joufnalism,
the press in some cases, by‘recognizing that most of these
manégers did play by the rules as they perceived them.

My concern is also for the messagé we are sending
existing and‘potenfial‘depository managers. by basing loqsely—
WOrded.chérges of fraud on an e# éost evaluation performance,
and that seéﬁs to be what is going on inwa,lot of cases, that
if the investment decisions.dithﬁ work.out,~then we étart
asking quesfions about wﬁether ffaﬁd was'ihvolVed.

If managers are constrained én‘the one hand by
Federal regulatory authorities and what they can do and évén-'
when they. can close their institufions,;and‘then.face charges

of fraud if their efforts prove unsuccessful, we will find it

‘difficult to attract the kind of managerial talent needed to

steer our financial institutions through increasingly compe—

titive and potentiall volatile conditions in the future.
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As I noted in my written sfatémeht, a well-function- |
ipg market based ecénomy, qf course, must punish fraud, but
poor financial pérformance, incompetéhce or ‘a lack of finan-
cial sophistication generally are not the elements of crimin-
ally fraudulent behavior. Managers placéd in én untenab1¢ 
situation by a flawed regulatory systém should not theﬁ have
to face ex post judgments by Parties.attempting ﬁo’defléct
criticisms from themselveé,

In the effort to identify the villain, I £hink we
have tovlook at certainly thefe were prbbably cauéeé of fraud
that did occur, but we also need to loék:at the broad fegula—
tory system and not  just to_thé private sector. -

I would be glad to answer any questiohs. Thank you.

 '¢HAIRMAN WILKINS: VThénk you -very mﬁch,

Judge Breyer?

COMMISSIONER BREYER: Thank,you. I see yéur point.

'CHAIﬁMAN WILKINS: Commissioner Nagelé

COMMISSIONER NAGEL?Z Thank you. I read your testi-
mony and it was quite interesting. | |

'CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Any quéstiohs to my right?

.commiséioner Caiuthers 6r CommisSioné: Blocké_ |

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: I just have a short clarifying
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question. I noticed several weeks ago a report by the General

Accounting foice that fraud was predominant or at least it

- was common in ‘a number of cases that they had looked at, it

was a relatively lérge number'oftcéses. _How do you reéoncilé
that with you -- | | |

MS. ENGLAND: With my poéition?

'COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Yes, the point that there isn't
a lot of fraud out there?- |

MS. ENGLAND:n.ﬁe1l, I think itvgoes'back to how we
define fraud. I wasn't invol?ed‘in.the GAO sﬁudy, of course,
but my understanding from talkind to peopie within the induétry
and from the regulatory agencies is that there is not a clear
legal definition of fraud for financial managers in these
cases, that we usually look to intenf-in their making in&est-
ment decisions, and there is a great deal of misundefstandiﬁg
in the way that some of £hé new prodﬁcts‘are being offéred.

For example, one,spécifié'example is difecf invééﬁ—
ments, and thére is a lot of gray areas and the.ﬁendency now

is to look at those as -- to raise questions about fraud in

those. One specific example, for example, is direct invest-

ments in.real estate and providing theAlending to build new

office buildings, particularly in Texas, there has been a
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particular problem there.

Lending to.build.new'buildings and taking an equity

granted in the 1980's to sbme of lﬁese institutions that were
finding themselves_under~water;.construction loans generally
the lending takes place.3 to‘5.yea£s.before the institution
begins to get ény money back én it.  In fact, there is'én '
initial loan to start the cbnstructioﬁ and theﬁ an reevaluation
a couple of years into it for improvemenfsAand things.

Now, there can be an argument'madé -- sometimes, you
know,'part of the depositéry ins£itﬁtions is very closelties
to the business community,yfhat is why we have decentralized
depqsitory.institutions. What happened in Texas, of coﬁrsé;
is that 'a lot 6f office buildings weré put'into cdnstrucﬁion_,
and in 2 or 3 years-latér,'when‘the deciSions were made whether
we lent to finish up this bﬁilding to provide'fhe iméfovemenfs,
real estéte values had faileﬁjsubstantialiy. Now,.the deposi-
tory institution managef faces a decision, does he go ahead -
and.make those.loans to finish the building or does he take
his losses now.

Mény of them went ahéad ahd4maae the loans énd'hoped

that the real estate markets would'bounée.baék and they didn't.
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You know, if he has a close business tie with'the-guy who is

doing the construction work, was his decision to go ahead and

make the loans, some of those are'decisions,are being looked

at bordering'on fraud. It seems to me what I am.suggesting is

that business dgcisions'shouia be-—; and if.ﬁhatbhad worked
out, there is an admissioﬁ_fhat if that_ﬁad Worked'out, if
real estate values.had rebounded and those‘loaﬁsvhad béen re-
paid,-rather.than'being loésgs_and the Federal GoVefnment
taking over millions of'squéfe feet of office space in Texas,
it wouldn't héve been 1ookedlat aS'ffaud; it wéuid have béen
looked at as a shrewd busihess decision.

And that is partbof the probiem here, is there is a
lot of-unquestionable decisibn, therévis reél éoncern about‘
the fiduéiary respOnsibilitieé‘certainly of those invéstmeﬁt
decisions, but the ex post factor is.playing, apparently erm
what I-havé been able to gather, is piaYingvinto the decisiéﬁs
Vto call it fraud or not. If it succeeded, it woﬁld‘have been
a éood business decision, éoing ahéad to support those build-
ings. Since it didn't su¢cééd, now we staft'looking at the
business ties betweenﬂfhe bﬁilder and the i |

| COMMISSIONER BLOCK$_~Let me just:follow that up for

'a minute here, and that is, as I interpret your comments, if
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financial institutions as reaction to the predominance of that

point one.

MS. ENGLAND: Well, I don't have any problem with
charging managers who abscond with funds or if they use the
funds from federaily insured depositsvto line their own pockets
or build their own houses or those kinds’pf.things,,placing
severe penalties on them. | "

I think that the gfay area we ére in now.is that a
lot 6f:new activities were allowed tb these iﬁééitutions, when
it didn't work out then questiéns were raised, and we just
need'a clearer definition to make it work. |

COMMISSIONER BLOCK¥ Help mé'with what is;the down-
side of raising'the penalties fdf ﬁhat sub-class economic act
of someone .

MS. ENGLAND: Well, as.long.as there is a clear
definition goiné in, I dén{t.see'a loﬁ dfvdowhrside and I
wouldn‘tVSuggest that we should‘raise the penalties._ As:long
as it is clear that you,maké a decision}'whethér iﬁ works out
or it doesn'f work out, when you make a_decision you know wﬁat

kind of legal ground you are on, are YOu:making a_legal
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.investment decision as a manager.

If we_leave.some'of the‘ambiguity that is currently
being used, we don't know how it is going to-play'out in the

courts, obviously, because a lot of these cases are just now

being brought to trial, so they have been charged by the

regulators but it has not been determined Yet'in court. But
if we do ieave thevambiguity in»the law and raise'thé‘penalty,
it seems to me that the down-side is then it will then affect
the way financial inétitutions are managed, in the éeﬁse of
to provide for a 6yanmic economic, financial institutions have
to be able to make certain decisions about when to in&est and
when not to invest. That is important ih providing.investment
capital to neQ firms. |

If We 1ea§e manageré with uncertainty about whether

they are goinq to be charged with fraud later, then I think

that we will see a lot less df,the kinds of funding that banks

and savings and loans are pafticulérly in a place to do, and
that is to lesser known risks. It is easy to get someone to
fund IBM or GM, but Joe's Pizza Parlor down the street or

somebody's business they are trying to start, use a business

relationship they have had before to start a new business in

their garage, there needs to be clear guidelines I think if
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we are going to allow directlinvestménts for savings and loans
in business in building office buildings, then we sﬁouid have
some guidelines about it, qtherwise:we just woﬁ't see the
kinds of lending that we waﬁt_depository’institﬁtions_to make.
COMMISSIONER BLOCK&I I just wanted to crystallizé |
tﬁe point_ﬁha£ since we have only control over the guidelines
forrsentencing_and nothing to dd really with asséssment of
liability, so if I interprét your comments, given_the fuzzi-
ness in this area, raising the pénalties ié likely to have 3
a disincéntive effect throughouf'the économy?_’ |

MS. ENGLISH: Right, is likely to have disincentives

think -; you know, if the ﬁenaities were much higher 10 years
ago, I don't think we would have seen a lot of difference in
the lossés‘thétkwe are suffering“today,;so I am trying to
suggest’that it is hot —-'agéin,'itvis not a legal éyéteﬁ
failure that we are seeing, it is ﬁore a fégulatory failure.
. COMMISSIONER BLock: Thankkyou;.
CHAIRMAN WILKINS@; Thank you very much, Ms. England.
MS. ENGLISH: ~Thank'you. | |
_CHAIRMAN WILKINS: As amazing as it may~seem, this

hearing is running on time, so we will recess now and reconvene

~
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promptly atll':30° At 1:30, Oﬁf lead-off witnesses wiil be

Judgés Warren Urbom and Vincent Broderick;.DanvFreed and

Marie Caspar on deck, SO wé will see all.of YOu.at 1:30.
Thank you very much. We Stahd in recess.
[Whefeupon, at 12:30 p.m., a recess was taken, to

reconvene at 1:30 p.m., the same day.]
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AFTERNOON SESSIoﬁ
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: The Comﬁission will be in order.
'Distinguished.Judges, Judges Warren Urbom and
Vincent Bredefick, come around. We ere.glad to see you at the
witness table. We all know, and‘I am -sure many of you, that

Judge Urbom has been using home detention very successfully

and I guess began one of the first real experimental programs

with this some three or four years ago,'I guess, wasn't it,

Judge? -

JUDGE URBOM: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: And you communicated with the
Commission in ‘a very extensive letter outlining YOureexperi—
ence ahd we appreeiate your apbearance and testimony today.

.Also,_Judge Broderick_isva member of the Probation

and Criminal L.aw Committee, and is representing that committee

today. Judge Broderick, we are delighted to have you ée well,'A

sir. . o
| JUDGE BRODERICK:. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: = We will:be:glad‘to hear from you.

JUDGE URBOM: Judge Wilkins and Memﬁereeof the Com-

mission, I am glad to be here so you could hear me.

I begén with the view a few years ago that there was
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some kind of place for something other. than ordinary probation

or ordinary imprisonment. 'My first opportunity to impose home

"confinement or, as it was then called, house arrest came in

1982 when a series of coﬁfracting bid riggers, highway coh:
tractor bid riggers came before me, a little struggling group
that was tryingvto get going inALincoln; Nebraska, called the
Nebraska Commission for Sentencing Alternatives proposed home
confinemenf. I rejected it out of hand then, because these
people were fairly prominent persons in their home cémmunity,
in Lincoln, where I was, and it seemed.to me thaﬁ the last
thing they needed was to stay at home. Their homes were nice
énd I don't have any opposition to nice homes, but it seemed
to. me that home confinement for them dia'nét offer énything
that the sentencing goals -- and I believe in all the goals
that are set out in the statute -- was reaching for.

So, I thought what they needed was some brashness.

I caused all them to go to jdil,'I caused them to do substan-

tial community service, confined community service, so that

they were confined some place other than jail for a substan

tial period of time, followed by a lot of community service,
plus a large financial obligation toward community service.

Then, a few years later, in 1986, I was confronted




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

160
Qiﬁh a yoﬁng man who was a éetty‘thief; he.had stolen a
bicycle and word got around that he‘wanted to-sell it fo; food
stamps,.So.a Service Serviceman got soﬁe fobd stamps ana
boﬁght his_bicycie froﬁ him for $250 worth of food.stamps.,
| When it came before me,>the‘proposa1 was that house
arrest or community confinement or home confinement might be
a reasonable alternative. After investigating the situation,
including what his home situation was, all his attitudes, it
seemed to me to fit, so I eXpefiméntéd with it on him.

He was a young man who had a job. It was a job -that

lasted from about 4:00 o'clock on Saturday night until 1:00

o'clock Sunday morning, and that is thé only job he had and
he said he was quite coﬁtent‘With it'and-thaf was éood enough
for him.

It;séemed to me what hefneéded,Vhe.had not only his

own livelihood to'try to:take care of, but he had child sup-

port which was due, and it séemed to me_What he needed was an

organized life, some way to put his life.together so that he

‘had some self-diécipline and some responsibility'for his

obligations, and I thought home cbnfinement had an opportunity
to do that, so I required him to live at home with his father,

which for him was a pretty .traumatic kind of experience. 1In
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my own judgment, he would have felt very much at home in jail.

I think he would have fit nicely, he would have taken to it

like fish to water, and it is doubtful that it would have done
anything for him except perhaps.give him some‘new ways to geﬁ
into mischief.

We put him onﬁhome;cdnfinémént,iand then I,offered.
him the option that he would have to be at home fof 30 days,
be inside the house all the time night and day, except wﬁen

he was out learning how to find a job. I required him to

-attend a training program for learning how to work and find a

job, and he could go help get his GED.. At.thoée periods of -
time, he didn't have to be in his.hbuse, bﬁt all the fest of
the time he did.

Then I said, in additibn to that, when ybu are-
through your_30 days, you willihave to spénd another 100 days

inside your house, unless'you get a full-time job, if you

‘work 40 hours a week, you don't have to be in the house any

time at all.

He did get_a job, he did get a full-timeijob. He
finished his probation time satisfa¢torily, and the last I
heard about him he still.was working and waé doing reasonably

well.
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That experience gaVe me enough coﬁrage to try it some-

more when a group of drug‘persohs came before me for sentencing
They were user-dealers. None_of £hem had made énj monéy to
speak of ffom their operations, they sold drugs for the pur-
pose of getting the drugs for themselves, as far as I could
tell they earned no money. They were cooéerative pepple,
eager‘énd wiliing to cooperate with the.autho;itie§<wi£h re-
gard to what they knew about the drué business in Nebréské,
and Were'pebple who héd made a commitment of their own;td have

drug treatment.

That proved successful, too, and I was pleased with
the result of that. A few months later in 1986, I was con-
fronted with a proposition that the facilities in .Lincoln,

Nebraska for putting people in jail were very limited, because

or closefby,'it is ohly a jéil contract situation, and they

were getting full of their own people and so were declining
It seems to me that an alternative that I had to try

than - the ones I had before, would be home confinement, so I

took the chance of putting them in home confinement for a very
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substantial periods of time and since that time have used home
confinement on a selected basis. I think when I wrote to ydu
a year ago, I said had put 50 on home confinement, and that

number is up now, but not radically. I suppose it may have

i. reached the 60 level by now.

They have been instances.whe;e fhéf have always’been '
people who are willing tb cooperaté with thé:authorities, I
have had one or two pebple who were reluctant.ﬁb do‘that and
so I was reluqtant to use home confinement, but'qffered them
—-- I delayed in an instance or two sentenciné'so that they
could think about it some more éﬁd'ultimatélyAthey}deéided
they would rather cooperate than go to‘prison. They didiand
home confinément was the reéult.

Wé have not used electronic monitoring, not because
of a matter of commitment, but as a matter of whét'we thought
necessity. We dia not have enough péople on homé confinement
at3any given time to make electronic monitbring.economically
feasible. |

Our program has been one where we have sought to

| make it self-sustaining, that is, we want the defendant to pay

the costs of home confinement. What we have done is have a

retired Deputy United Staﬁes'Marshal be the monitor. He then
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calls on these people by telephone at‘ail_irregular times, he

visits them in their home, he visits them in their place of
each_person to become involved in making up his or her program

confinement other than stay at home.

So, I set out the times when they don't have to be .
in their héuse, wheﬁ they are working, when they‘are taking
drug treatment,'when they are taking counseling for some other
reason, going to the doctor, and that is about all. All the
rest of the time they have to be at hoﬁe;

Théy also have to make out;a schédule:a week in ad-
véncé_§f exactly whete they are going to Ee,'whom they are
going'ﬁo see and why they ére going to be there, then at thé
end of the,Week‘they have to méke out énother'sheet that tells
exactly Qhefe.they have been,:when they-weré there, whom thef
saw thle they weré there. The monito;, of'COurse} then Cross-—
checks that with the monitor'é ownvinformatidn as td where the
persoh has been and why and_whom they»héve.seen;

We have not found;so far anyohé Who has not been
able to afford the monitor. He.chafgés.vefy littie, $100 fo

$150 a month for what he does. We insist that they have a job.
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If théy don't have a. job, we help them get a job, that ié,
the defendant. Thus far, £hat has worked all right. We have
an'understanding that if the person cannot afford this monitor,
then the monitoring will be done by a probétion bfficer_with—
out any charge to the defendant. That is why we héve been
able té find opportpnity for the person.to make enough ﬁoney
where he:can be self-supporting, plus supporting the:monitdr
for that period of time he is on house arrest;

. We have followed the house érrest program with a
period of usually intensive community séfvice, and one of the
values we have had.in all of this is the eplistment of other
people's help. It is not just a matter of the probation of=-
ficer trying to keep track of or evén the monitor trYing to
keep track of the person, but engagehent of ﬁhe other people
who live in the house. A spouse may bé.wondérfully helpful
in the monitoring of the person, a chiid may be, a father in
one instance. Whéever lives in ‘the houée;.if that person is
enthusiastic, we can gain considerable hélp.

We aiso get help from the police department and the
sheriff's office. They are.persons whO'have bought -into the
program and are:éager-to help. We let.thém know whé is on

home confinement, where they are. supposed to bé'when, and they
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assist in the monitoring. So, We have been able, without
electronic monitoring, to do what I think is én adequate job
of supervision. | |

The ex?erience has been that -- ﬁy insistence is
that they follow closely and tightly the restrictions I put
on them, on the home confinement, and lecture them clearly
that if they do not, they‘aré telling me.they don't buy that,
that they would rather bé in prison and I am.quite willing to

accommodate them. I pull no punshes about that when they

‘violate, the result almost always is imprisonment, although I

have backed away on an ‘occasion or two, depending upon the.

circumstances. But I want the word to be out that I am very
serious about their following exactly the conditions £hat I
put upon them, and the times that théy can and cannot be away
from.home; |

We have -- I don't know exactly how many, I think
in the communication I made with you,a year ago:I said we had.
50 persons on'it at one timé or ano#het.;'There had béen 6 at

that time who had been revoked on probation'because of viola-

tions during the home,confinement, and 6 that have committed

violations after release from home confinement but still on

intensive supervision, and that made about 24 percent of the
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péople whom'I.had put oﬁ home confinemént who at one time.or
another‘had beep reVoked.f_I am.sure that the statistics aré
approximafely the same now. We continué to'get épme vioié—'
tions and I expect that‘and want it.to be that if the person‘
violates, he or.she underSﬁand that I ;m serious in saying
that I consider yoﬁ, I have always coﬁsideréd you a risky
product.aﬁd if you cannot perform on house arfest and home
confinement, then I am quite Qillip§ tosee that you aré put
someplace else.

| I think that is é brief description of our program.
I am hopeful that home.confinément‘cénlcontinﬁe to be seen as -
a viable option to imprisonment. _I think it can be ‘used in
that coﬁtext, I think it.can.be>used in ére—release, prgtfial
situations. I think that is siﬁpiy a weapon of an option thét
thé Federal Judge needs.in order to fulfill all‘of the ﬁequire-
ments and.thevrules.of sentencing.: It needs to beISimpiy.aq
opportﬁnity for judges £o fuﬂbtibﬁ._v

In my judgment, the windéw tﬁfough which we 6perate

ought to be expanded somewhat'sobthaf ouf.épportunity for.
using it as an option will be iﬁéreased béyondehere it is
now. It should not b¢ opéned wide;4§ut it should be incréased

some beyond where it is now.
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CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank.you very.ﬁuch.

Judge Broderick, woﬁld it bé your preference to de-
liver your remarksbnow and'fake qﬁestions jointly, or nét?

JUDGE BRODERICK: That is fine.

CHATRMAN WILKINS: All right, so why don't we hear._
from you. | |

JUDGE BRODERICK: Thank you"very much, ladies and
gentlemen of thé'Commission fo:kthis opportuﬁity to appear
ﬁere. "I am, as the Chairman said, speakiﬁg on behalf of Jﬁdge
Becker, Who*is head of the Judicial'Conferehce Committee on
Crimipal Law and the Administratidnvof Probation. He regrets

that he is not here. He will be submitting a statement with

‘respect to all of the various matters, except home confinement)

so I will confine what I have to say to the subject of home

coﬁfinement.

It is my opinion‘and Judgé ﬁecker's bpinion and the
dpinion I believe of most of ‘the membe:s of’the‘Cfiminal'Law
and Probation Administration Committee thét—home confineﬁent
is a sentenéing bption which should be aﬁéilable, and there 
are varidus reasons fqr this. |

One reason -- and I think this is perhabs the reason

that our Committee got interested in the subject in the first
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place -=_is  the matter of-evailable'prison spece..:We_had a
meeting seﬁe_time ago with at least fwo of.the Members of the
COmmissioﬁ and prison authorities aﬂd prbbation people in
which there was a discussion of projections‘of what iﬁpactithe
Sentencing Commission's guidelines will have, ahd I beiieve
that‘Comﬁission Block suggested that the impact was not going
to really be felt uhtil 1991 or 1992. Well, that means it is
here today, beeause if we are planning for the future and in
way contracting on behalf of the United States:Government,
that contfacting for 1991 and 1992 should be going on now. .
There has been.——fend i know everyone on fhis éom—
mission is familiar with it.-- anvexperiment,'a‘jqint experi-
ment between the Bureau of»friéenSrand’the Probation Depart-
ment and the Parole Commission on early release and on the use

of home confinement, with monitoring, with electronic monitor-

'ing with respect to that early release. - This is an experiment

that has been going on for some time and it will continue for
some time.

But if anyohe on this Commission has. any question

' about the punitive aspectS‘ef home confinement, I would sug-

gest very strongly that'they_should inspect and 1ook into this

experiment in Florida and the experiment in the Central

i

|
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District of California;
We, the members of the Judicial Conferénce Committee};

are very much of the opinion that home confinement is puni-
tive. I think what we have just heard about Nebraska rein-
forces that,: We don't have statistics, of course. We are
déaling mostly with anecdotal information, bﬁt that information
is quitevpersuasi§e,'that there are many, many people who
would prefer to serve time in a community confinement, rather
tﬁan under strictly superiééd home confinement. .

| We believe that permitfing héme confinement as an
alternative to a limited segment of pdssible prison‘sentences
will be an extremely useful alternétivé sanction to be avéil—
able, and it Wili certainly be an alternative fhat ing fhe'

long run is going to be an economic one. It is much less ex-

that same person either in a full prison or in a camp prison
or in a community facility. 'So expense is one consideration.

Another consideration, of course, is that Congress

finement should be a sanction, with or without elctronic .

monitoring, but only as an alternative to prison. ‘Now, that




10

11

12

13.

14

15

16

17

18

19

120
21

22

171

seem»tolme directly conflicts with the present requirements of
the guidelines which»do'notApermit home cbnfinement to be an
alternative to prison. I say alternative tovprison. I do

want to stress that we are not talking about an alternative

to Lewisburg or an alternative to Atlanta. We are talking

about an alternative to community centers and we are talking

~about an alternative on the low-end of the'séntencing guide-

line range.

Professor Daniel Freed is éoing to bé testifying
befqre you -this afternoon;-and he has I believe -- unless he
has changed it since yesteéerday -- sdﬁe very.specific language
to suggest in wéys of amendments tb the present‘provisions-of
the guidelines on home confinement, aﬁd‘the language that he
suggests seems to me is Veryvadequatg to handle the situatio#
as it should be handled. |

What he is suggesting, what he Qill_be éuggesting
is going to make it possible for the Senteﬁcing Commissiqn to
oversee this area while the judges éré operating in this_area.
Now, Nébraska has gone all out.'.The experiments in Florida |

and.in:Californié have certainly indicated the utility of home

-confinemént‘at the least end of the process, and I SQe no

- reason why it Should not be-equally applicablerat the front
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end.
So far as what crimes it will be applicable to, I
would suggest!that the very process of confining it to the

lower end of the sentencing range is going to be an effective

' control, and that three or four years - from now, when there has

been éufficient data with respect to the use and the effec-

‘tiveness or the lack of effectiveness of home confinément,'

then éerhaps the Commission will want to be,more,specific in
those areas. |

7A£ the present timé, I do not believe that there
should be a specific with respect td'cfimes,that it will or
will hot be applicable to. I think>that Federal Jﬁdges do

have.a certain amount of balanced judgment with respect to the

types of crimes and criminals that home confinement will not

| be helpfui with respect to, and,that that matter could be'left

at large.

| I think I should also say that a week:ag§, ét a
meeting at our board of judges in the_Sauthern District-of New
York,‘I told the jnges that I was coming dowﬁ heré t§ speak
and that the thrust of my talk was to urée that home confine-
ment under the guidelinés be permiﬁted as an alternative to

imprisonment. It was also agreed, unless I heard to the
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contrary, that could be expressed aé—the sense of the judges

not belie&é in home confinement, otherwise I believe what I
héve said does expfess the sense of the'judges in thé Southern
Districf of New York,‘and‘I‘think thé Members of the COmmissioq
know that the Eastern District éf New York; to whom we in the
Souﬁhern Di%triét do not talk, have gone pretty. far down this
road and thé judges there are quite enthusiastic about if;

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank.you-very much, dudges. I
ém-sure all of us égree with you that we §hbuld; and I know

we will, respond to the new and recent changes in the statute
Did I get the sense, either Judge, that wealthy in-

JUDGE URBOM: I have hot_founa any so far, but that
doesn't mean there won't be. ™
" CHATRMAN WILKINS: Well, I.just wondered’if;that is
something we OQght to write into thé.guideiihes. That is so
hard to ao,.you know. Maybe wevﬁeed to rely upon thé good
judgment of the senteﬁciﬁg judge inAsélecﬁing the appropriéte

home confinement or intermittent confinement or community
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confinement alternatives that would be évailable, if we change
" . _ '

JUDGE URBOM: I think we would have to~leavé that to
the discretion of the judges. |
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: What is thé'longest time you can

reasonably put someone on home detention?

- JUDGE URBOM: The longest I have put anybody on is

is the maximum, but that is.ﬁhe highest I remember.

_CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Would you both éuggest a one-for-
one tradeoff confinement to’homeAdeféntion; one dayyfor one
day, or some other ratio? |

JﬁDGE URBOM: My own judgment is it varies witﬂ the
situation. You can't say it is'a‘ohé to one or three to one
6r something else. I suppose my'owh View of it is there not
say. ’

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Well, I guess under the guideline
arrangement a judge could féshibn'some.type of ratio, but --
jUDGE BRODERICK: i would urge very strongly that, at.

least initially, and until you have had a chance to study the
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should.be on.a one to one ratio.' ﬁow, that is.the ratio that
presently is in terms of commuﬁity coﬂfinément.
| CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Well, the guidelines would give
some flexibility, a judge could giveré months_intermittént_

confinement, but in the same guideline range he could very

.likely give 4 or 5 months home detention, so you could work

-that out.

Let me ask for questions on my left. Judge Breyer?
COMMISSIONER BREYER: There was a Rand study, I

don't know if you have seen it, there was a Rand study a -

couple of years ago on alternatives, and one of the things

that they mentioned with respect to community confinement .and

home confinement was a concern -- I don't know if it was

' demonstrated or simply impressionistic, but after a certain

number of months, people on home confinement just got fed up

and walked out, even if they knew they‘Were going to get

caught, they would go do it. 7They just said I haveihad enoﬁgh
of this, and that was a conern that waS'flaggedyés a reason
for not having home confinemént'beyond,a:certaiﬁ period of
months. I think iﬁ might have'said‘-- this is my memory and

I méy be wrong -- may5e>6 months_Or 7 months or 8 monﬁhs or

somewhere in there; I wonder if you have any view about that?
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The door is there and you mightvjust get:fed up ana say I am
goihg to walk out, I know I will get'caﬁght but I don't care;A

- JUDGE BRODERICK: I think, 3udge Breyer, that is one
of the reasons why home cénfinement iévéunitiﬁe;kbeﬁause'there
are no jailvdoors. The man or the womanAwho~undef home con-
finemeqt has to discipline himself énd it.is very tough té dé
this. |

COMMISSIONER BREYER: Do you think there is a period

of months from your experience, éfter thﬁh it becomes riskief
to impose?.

JUDGE BRODERICK: Well, I can't speak from my ex-

,perience/.because I have not had that experience, but I do

think that the maximum that you would be dealing with under

the guidelines as we are suggesting they be amended would be

‘no more than a year.

JUDGE URBOM: I think home confinement is very puni-

tive. I have had people reject it because it was too hard.

I think that how long a person can reasonably be there depends
upon the circumstances, because ifbthe_person has to be there
24 houfs a day and never'leaves; it doesn't fake vefy long
before he might reach the point that ybu mention. If the

person is going to work on a full-time job, then it can be
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substantially longer, because the person doesn't.spend all

~ that much time huddled in his or her house, so the time that

a person is given some relief .from thqt, just as a jail, I
am sure a prison which gives no work—reléase; for insténce,‘
is quite a different experience from the:peréqn in a jaii or
prison whére.he can.get work-releése. So,'I.thiﬁk.the relief
from.it depepds and makes a difference on how 1ong‘the person
caﬁ be there wiﬁhout going out 6f hié mind;‘ So, that4hés to
be fashioned -- I don'f think thégé ybu can say it can't be
more than this dr tﬁis, because I think the circumstances de-
tgrmine it. | ‘ | : },. .

i.think I have uéed.two; maybe tﬁreé where a_yeér
was invqlved and they finished their year éﬁd I didn'ﬁ hear
from either the monitor or the probétion officer thatrthese
peoplevwere about to walk oﬁt. They finished their fime. It
wasﬁ;t éasy, but they finished it._ | |

iCOMMISSIONER BREYER: _fhank‘you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Commissioner Négel?'

.COMMISSIONER NAGEL: :Jﬁdge Broderick, you know, at
your urging I.didvgo_énd lbékfat the:Florida‘proéraﬁ and was
persuaded to have a View'other than which_I.started, because

it was so.-impressive, so I support your urging of everyone
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doing the same.

I guess one qqeétion I have for bo£hjof you is thaf
my per¢eption of the Florida program aﬁd ité sucqess‘was in
part based on the electrdnic monitoriné, thé'jobkrequirement
and the random drug tesfing; as well as the“inténsive super?.
vision of thé officer, and the question is -- and maybe
Professor Freed_ﬁill address this when he gives his.testimony
-- how do we write that into the statute ana héw ﬁany of.those
or.is i£ a period‘—— do we know anything about how.it works
when wé don't have that kind ofveifher electronié_monitorihg‘
or physical,'intensive supervision, and the job requirement --
and the Florida program is much likebthe one you described,
you either work or there iSnft_an opportuniﬁy to do many other
things unless he earned it over a perioé'Of time, and thaf is
what £he detaineés articulated as‘their reasonjfdr thinking
it Was_gohstréining and punitive, eépecially:in comparison td
the commuhity-confinement. So, would you suggest we write
that in? 'Woﬁld you suggesf - is-it'feésible_to-make elec-
tronic mchitoriﬁg or intensive probatioh.a condition, can the .
syétem absorb that right_nbw? Wha# ié your view?

VJUDGE BRODERICK: Commissioner Nagel, I think that

it should not be méndatory that there be electronic monitoring.
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I think the test of experiénce_speaks very loudly to the con-
trary. There are various areas of consideration with respect
to possible differences between the‘Flbrida‘and’California

experience, on the one hand, and the'experiehces that we will

| have with home confinement at the threshold, rather than --

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Back in.

JUDGE BRODERICK: - —- the exit. One consideration is
the vefy'puniﬁive nature of the handlihg ofiany violations.
Anyone who violatéd in Florida is out éf the“program, and that
was'absqlute. |

Now; you are going‘to have 600 judges making the de?

.cision, rather ‘than having the prison authorities in Florida

making the decision, you are always going to-have the judgés
mékiﬁg the decision and that is 'going to be i thihk.a problem.
The 600 judges not aiways think aiike,-and céttainly one
asbeét of the Florida—CaIifornia~prdg¥éms that_has been very.

important -- and I think this was also an aspect of the

Nebraska program -- and that is that the rules are very strict

for them or you're out.
What Professor Freed is also suggesting-that will

address this, he -- I am paraphrasihg what I'think'he will

. say, what he is saying in effect is we don't have ‘data and we
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need data and the source‘of the data should be the judges who
do the sehtencing. You should know why they use'hbﬁe}confine-»
ment, whatvthqir experience has been with the home;éonfine—
ment, what feaéons theyfsaidlthey had‘for‘pufting particular
people into it and for not puttin§ people ihtd it, and then
eventuélly when it gets on track Will-be:cominé to the Com-
mission and in two or tﬁree hences you-cah séeiif.you need
something more definitive fhan tﬁe Qay of providing this.

' JUDGE URBOM: It is my judgment that the principal

value of home confinement is in causing there'to be put to-

gether an organized -- most of these people have not had

organized lives, they are leose ends, and they need some kind

‘of structure, but it needs to be self-imposed structure in

order for them to turn themselves arQund; I think they ought
to take on the job»of self-discipline and}self—responsibilitf,
bevresponsible for themselveé ana learn how to discipline
themselves, which is vety unproductive in the prison sétting,
I think. It is hard enough to leérn at home, but it seems to
be_easiefbthere or more likely to be accomplished there than
some place else.

| I think they need the watchfulness of somebody.

There is drug testing always avaiable. I think there needs ﬁo
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be a reasonable search and seizure for drugs or alcohol, so
that  any given time a probatioh officer can_réquire that and

violations result if they are found with it. Electronic

monitoring is not necessary and I think'is‘Certainly'not a

difficulty either.

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: “Thaﬁk_;you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Cémmissioner Caruthers?

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Coﬁcerning the Nebraska
experience, could you elaborate a 1it£le_bit on the type'of
offenses and offenders that you saﬁ in.thé proéram?

JUDGE URBOM: Yes..VI senténcédfthe"people who come
before me, obviOusly, and so I don't much pick and choose what
kind of people they_are going to be.'rwhen they come before
me, then I decide this is:a persoﬂ Who:is a.good choice for
that or not. Most of thé people whé.cdme before me since

1986, when I first began uéingAthat,’have been drug offenders,

that is because those are most of the people who come.

The other kind of people we got a fair sérinkiing‘of
are éeople who are guilty of émbezziemeng, farmérs who make
false statements to banks'in order to’gef loans or get an ex-
tension of a loan, which I have not'fbﬁndbtb be sﬁsceptible»

to this type of sentencing. Most of the'ones I have put on
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home confinément have been drug foendegs. They have been of
the  same catégory.i mentionedlearlier;_that.ié,'ﬁser-dealers;
not high4lével deaiefs who'have ﬁéde their living on this, but
the‘peopie who sell drugs in Qrdér'tofget d;ugs and'use them-
selves. .Tﬁey have to be people in my judgment who are willing
to lay their souls>'bare, by fhat i mean willing to say I
cohmit myself to a drug—free‘sociefy._ It may not mean I am -

going to tell everyone I know about it to the authorities to

‘help rid societykof this plagué;lsecondly, they have to be

willing to .lay themselves-oh'the line for getting :id of the
drugé in their_own lives. vThey havé to be willing fo go,intd
treétment, whatever kind of tréatﬁent_it takes;.loné-term,
short—term,‘whatever itfis, théyrhave to be ready‘to do that.
I also require that thgy:be an intimatevpartvof the
pulliné together of their program, their plan. That is a part |
of thié selffdiscipline and respoﬁéibility that I think is |
necessary. I can't just-impbse it'on them and expect them to

lap it up. They have to be a part of thé planning effort, to

be personally involved, not just their attornéy,'pérsonally

involved to pull the program together and carry it out.
COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: I think since the prdgram

is strict, you would of course have the violations, I would
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cali thém techhical violatiohs;"fo what eXtént did you ex-
perienCe préblems with the offenders,;ommitﬁing new'offénses,.
as compared to.the'te;hnicél'violafions?f

JUDGE URBOM: Excﬁse ﬁé, I émvnbt‘sufe‘l heafd'you.
COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS:V To what extent'did_you ~
ekperience the pafticipants comﬁitting néw'offenses;,as cém—
pared to the technical vinations?'-And.Iwaﬁld.exfect thét
to be high, because of the strictness.of'thé prOgram;*' |
fJUDGE’URBOM: Very rarely dé théj,commif éther
crimeé. I don't know £haﬁ_I have had more:than maybe two or

three -- I doubt that many~f- violationsvbecaﬁse of the crime,'

another violation like they use drugs.; That is a typical one.

They come up with a dirﬁy urine or'fhey‘have usedAf?

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: I considér.that suécess
wﬁén thé violations‘are‘due'tp'techﬁical probleﬁs,'that shoWs
the'prograﬁ is éuccessful.

JUDGE URBOM: It has been my iudgment,'£hat.iétfué.'
I have been sﬁrict evéﬁ about'that, though;,ioﬁe'of the things
is that they"not use drggs of fhat.is.a §idiatibn of their
érobatioh, whether it is a crime §r ﬁét;

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: .Thank yéﬁJvéry-much.j

JUDGE URBOM: We have not seen any'substantial';;w




10

11

12

13

14

15

16
17

18

19
20

21

22

something to that answer?

184

incidence of crime, but there have been other violations.

COMMISSIONER CAﬁUTHERS: So, even though yoﬁ_are
handling; as you say, people who come before'you;'you have had
a pretty good;group if you haVe had a low numﬁervpf people who
coﬁmit new offenses,lso you~haven1tvbeeh‘doing too 5adly in
terms ofvyour seiections.

JUDGE URBOM: I have been very pleased with that

fact. That remains true to today, but of course things may be

different tomorrow. But as of how,,we héve success and the
succesé is meaSurea by neﬁ érimeé.
| .COMMISSIONER.CARUTHERS:' I wouldn't measure it in
that mannér., Thank you. |
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Commissioner Block?
COMMISSIONER BLQCK:» I just want to follow up on
Judge Wilkins' comment. |
JUDGE BRODERICK: Commissioner Block; may I just add
COMMISSIONER BLOCK: All right;
'JUDGE BRODERICK: .We do have some statistics from
the pilot prégraﬁs at the halffwdy mark. that may not directiy
be.responsi§§ but may be Helpful-; Theré‘Were lSpreople who

had been in the programs as of the half-way mark, and 72 were
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| rections, you know, it operates both up and back. -

the appropriate sentence is to address all of the people who
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actively being monitored.atvthe half—way,mark, 80 had been
discharged. qu, of fhosekSO, 57 had COméletéd the program
and had gone én out into the world, and 23 had beenvrevoked
and had been revoked for violations of‘some sort. One was a
doméstic disturbance, thére were 3 curfew festrictiqns that
were violated, and 2 failed té show up for work they were
scheduled td show up on, and-l7 commiﬁted drug.vidlations.

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: 1Thank jou;

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: T just had a short quesﬁion
ébout restricting the applicability of home confinement. Yot

mentioned something, Judge Urbom, that bothered me . somewhat -

were reluctant to use it. -As you know, we dre bound in our.

guidelines and policy statements not.to let socioeconomic

I am wondering whaf'the_argument really is against
usihg hoﬁe confinement for "white coilar“ offenders..

JUDGE URBOM? There‘is no argﬁment again;t‘using the
white collar peoéle: It déﬁehds upon the particular defendant,

in my judgment, as to what his or her crime is, therefore what
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 need to be addressed as well as.the‘factors:that need to be

addressed, factors that we know of that are set out under thén

‘guidelines in the statute. People also are a consideration,

and we have'to address the defendant and we adaress.the
aefehdant's family, and we have to address the vicﬁim.and the
victim's family, people who ;ead the headlines iﬁ the.news-
papers, all of that. We haQe to addresé_the oﬁﬁer people.who
méy even attempt to do this same kind of-thihé, who may or may
not get the wofd by.wordfdf mouth orvwhateQer: 

What I am saying is we have gof to addréss those
people iﬁ we want to think of society accepting.éur'judgments
about what kind of sentences‘we‘are gi?iﬁg,”and we:have.to

address all of those people, in my judgmeht, in the data. T

| think that, given the particular person who is -- I had the

oppbrtunity to sentence people who have nice houses and were
ﬁot disqualified just becauﬁe they Had nice houses; because i:’
can see no relétionship between what théy need and what other
people perceive.they need and being confined to the home.

What was needed, in my judgment, was a short-term of imprison-

ment for shock value from the people going to jail;'that

scared them, that affected them. I had a conference With each

one of them after it was over; I sentenced each one and after
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it was over, the probation finished or Qhatever,Athey came in.
and we ha@ a conference.

Whatvthey needed -- and I aff{rmea this by my.con=
versation With them -- wés ﬁhe shock value ofbbeing in jail;
Secondly, they needed to héve a sense of giving béck té their
community. They had to get'rid of this guilt,’express their
guilt, express their regret at having been involved in this
kind of thing by giving té_the community,'and that is what

they did. - I couldn't seeing that being‘at-home added anything

'té that and that the idea of other people thinking, well, all

they are doing is sitting in this nice plush home, it would

reduce the opportunity for the public to accept it as the

| sentencing alternative.

I don't think that rich people ought to be disquali-

fied from any kind of sentence, but I think that in pafticular

circumstances, the deféndént invblved} the circumstances of
the crime, and the economic situation in which they fiﬁd.them-
selves may speak to what kind of sentenbe they need,

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Thank you.

CHATRMAN WILKINS: Thank you very much.

'JUDGE BRODERICK: vMay I just add sométhing.to thét?

CHATRMAN WILKINS: Yes, sir, Judge Broderick.
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JUDGE BRODERICK: I think the public perception is

important, for two reasons. One is that‘public_acceptance of

the fairness of sentencing is important; and the second is the

deterrent effect. I think a.béd'name was given to home deten-
tion by the young fellow who was confined to é $l,000 a month
chalet in Hawaii. This is somethiﬁg that can‘be‘easily
handled. Home detention can be in a commuhity facility. CIf
the hbme is too palatial to warrant punishment by confineméﬁt
to the home, they-can be confined elsewhere.

CHATRMAN WILKINS: Thank-you very much; Judges. I
am confident that your testimony -- | |

JUDGE URBOM: May I add one other features. I think
the people in the home-also make a'differéhcelin that sense,
what their attitude about all of it is.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank'you very much5

JUDGE URBOM: Judge Wilkins, I mentionéd to you
eérlier, but I want to say to all of you, I have here a video-
tape that I ém going to 1e£ you have, if you want it. It was.
madé'by a television station in Oméha with fespect:to its news
program that it ran three nights‘in‘segments'én,its'news
program of Nebraska's home confinement program, ~and our pro-

bation officers are going to Phoenix for a recent Conference
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of the Chief Probation Officers_and added to thaﬁ by each.of
the pfobation officers telling their evalﬁation-bf.the:programr
and they also asked the monitor td'do.the séme thing and the
Chief of Police of Linsoln. ‘They all héve-fheir little say
on the tape and I am glad to‘ieave-it‘with yod if fou would
like to have it. -

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: 'Judge, thank you. 'I.know we wiil

all be interested in seeing that. If you would take it with

yoﬁ -- I see our General Cbunsei, John Steers there, and he

will take charge of it, sb we wén’£ misplace it. Thank you
very much.h

Our next witnesses are Professof~Dan-Freed and Marie
Caspar. We have long been the beneficiary of Professor Dan
F;eed's expeftise and his counsel. Since we know Qhat
Professor Freed's tesfimony will include, we will only hear
from Ms. Caspar.‘ |

[Laughter.] ]

Professor Freed?

MR. FREED: M;..Chairman énd Members of the Commis-
sion, we very much.éppfeéiate‘the opportunity to‘be here tbday.
I have delivered to each of‘you ;- too late fof yéu fo have

read it in advance, nevertheless you have it before you -- the
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am delighted to have her answer the hard questions that you

-héve, and I will take the easy ones.

~the public domain. You have heard some very significant testi-

.District of New York that jﬁdges would like to try this, but
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thﬁough very briefly a summary of the amendments that we
propose and. some observations about the pblicy'ﬁrocéss that
has brought home confinement,before.thé Commission today!
Befo;e I begin, thodgh, i would like to ihtroduce
Marie Caspar, a second-year étudent iﬁ the law schoél and
workiné this year on home.confinemeﬁt and has dong.some fas-
cinating field reséérch in interﬁiews with judges, probation

offiéers, and offenders who have been subject to this, and I

When the Commiséion issued its guidelines origihally,
iﬁ-authorized home cohfinément; home.detention, as a coﬁdition
of probation, but it forbad the use of home confinement as a
substitute for imprisonment. The act of congress in theAfall
of 1988 requires you now to feconsider that decision. |

The two years that have ihtervened since your first

guideline have been years in which a tremendous amount of

very valuable information about this sanction has come into

monyAtoday,‘not‘only about the shared consensus in the Southern
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you have heard from the.chief architect of home COnfinement
in'thé Federal system, Judge Ufbom('talkiné about how it works.
And I must séy from reading a number of the_transcripts of

sentencing hearings before'Judge‘Urbom and a iot of the ordérs

and procedures that are used in that districf; that nobody

~could doubt the punitiveness and severity, as well as con-

structive nature of this sanction as administered in the.

United étates District Court for the District of Nebraské.'

But theré are bther sources of public information
that méke this sanction,impgrtant to considef today. There
are the two pilot projects'run‘by the ParQlé Cbmmission that
have already been refefred to. There is this wonderful mono--
éréph put out by the Federal judicial Center, entitled "Home
Confinement: An Evolving Sanction in thé Federal Criminal
Justice System," which details in extenéive and illuﬁinating
details the problems and the'accompiishmentsvdf hpme confine;}
ment and the.issues that femain to be resolved.

In addition to that; the Federal Céurts in:the
Eastern District of New York, the Dist;icﬁ'of ¢dnne¢ticut, £he
District of Columbia, the Eastern District of.Wisconsin, énd
the District of Arizona are among Fedé;al Courts which have

imposed home confinement as a direct sentence, rather than as
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a back-end form of release.

| There is an important Rand stﬁdyﬁmentioned by Judge
Breyer whichvtalks.about home coﬁfinement on a national basis.
There have peen a number of articles ih'Federal‘Probation
that give interesting details about ﬁheluse of home confine-
ment in the Sﬁates, and it is significant to see the number of

States which have been using this sanction over a period of

years and the large volume of cases that have already been

subject to home confinement. Florida is.probably the leader.
Florida's statute allows home confinemént.to be imposed as a.
direct sentence, not even a condition of probaﬁién, oh any
felony offender other than one charged with a capital crime.
SO"in terms Qf seriousness, Florida, a Stéte Qith serious
crime pfoblems, serious prison problems, hés seen this as a
Very large volume credibie.sanctibn toluse. |

The most dramatic revelation bf the,use of home con-

finement by a Federal District Judge prior to today's appear-

~ance by Judge Urbom is found in the decision of Chief Judge

Jack Weinstein in the Easterh District_of New York, in 1985,
in the case of United States v. Murphy, reported at 108 FRD
437, spelling out why the Judge imposed .a 2¥year sentence on a

woman charged in a serious financial fraud and obstruction of
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justice'case, and spelling out the details on which the sanc-

tion would be administered. It is a wonderful set of guide?

lines for anyone wantingsto see therappliéation of this sané—
tion in é.single case. o

From all of this infofmation that has céme out,
mostly in the time since your initial'gﬁidelines, it is hard
to avoid the cbncluéion that the time has come to authorize
home cénfinement.as a prison substitute on a limited basis,
and ih our statement we_épeli out_thermanﬁer in which we think
the Commission can 1imi; the use of homé confinement in a way
that is fair and usable to the juaiciafy.k .

There are three components of that»amendment. The

first is to amend Guideline 5(f) (5.2) which now permits home

detention to be used only as a condition of probation, and

add the words "but only as an alternative to incarceration in

accord with a schedule of substitute punishments" in Guideline

5(c) (2.1). .

The second amendment is to change 5(c) (2.1) so as to

add home confinement as a sanction every place where community
confinement appears, and this includes adding it to the

‘schedﬁle of substitute punishments, so that home confinement

counts day for day with prison confinement.
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Finally, we recommend that‘in each place in your
guidelines where the term "home detention" appears, you change |

it to "home confinement,' for‘thé reasons spelléd out in de-
tail in the Federal Judicial Centér_monogfaph and summarizéd
in our testimony. -

In addition to these amendmentsi—— and this has al-
ready been referred to by Judge B:oderick_—— we list a numbef
of questions that we think the Commission should put in com-
mentary to the new guidelines,vthat ask judges to respond in
detail to information about the crimé,che offender, and the
appropriateﬁeSs of thisiéaﬁction being'ﬁsed in the particular
case. We have a ldt of detailéd,queétidns, and ﬁndoubtedly
others can add more to them, but weAthink‘that repbrts by
judges on their individual home confinement cases that respond
to these questions will mean tﬁat you may have aozens, pefhaps
hundreds of éases that are describedvin the kind of detaill
that Judge Weinstein went intbvin the'Mafie Murphy case, and
would give a riéh'data base to the Commission when it considers
a year or two down the line whethér there ié a need fof further
guidance. | | |

Before I close, I would like:to just take a.moment,

to contrast the manner in which this issue comes before the
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to use this sanction.

{ past from sentences without réason, decisions without publi—‘

| tion to offer to judges for use in a sentencing opinion, and
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Commission today. With thé concern expressed by‘some witnesses
this morning about the_adequacy‘ofvwhat they saw.as.sﬁfficient
information,>systematic information és oppqsed to anecdotal
information, aé the basis for-changing guidelines, it.seems to
me that what you have here'is a rich baSe of information in
State and Federal experiehce by judges, by parole commissions,

by researchers that allows you to take a modest step in ac-

The guideline that.you adopt can also help judges
spell out in greater detail than they have in the past how
they arrive at a sentence so that other judges can learnyaﬁd,‘

in the process, diminish the disparityrthat has existed in the

cations.

We think thét'the kind of iﬁformation-reéuirement
that you pan put here will enable not énly judgesj.but lawyers,
prosecutors, defense lawyers, and p;obation officers, tell |

them how'to plan for a sentencing year, -what kind of informa—

in turn'those decisions will help educate the public.

I hope that the process by which you proceed to
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embrace this sanction on a.limitéd basis Qill7sét a'precednet‘
for ﬁhe way in which other alternatiVe sentences might be
broﬁght”to the éttention'of the Commission, sd‘fhat it can
try to ex pand the range of.intermediaﬁe punishment that can

substitute for imprisonment, which may not be nedesséry_and

Thank'you.
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: ‘Thank you véry mucﬁ;'
Commissioner Block? N
'~ COMMISSIONER BLOCK: I just have a question for
Professor Freed, following up on.a quick perﬁsal,of the written
testimony; I notice thaf your rep}§ to our inquiry of whether
electronic monitoring ought,to bé required, your feply is that
there ought to be éncouragement; hbt required. I guess 1
would like to have you expaﬁd on that, in terms of Qhat re-
quirements you would put in this initial stage on the compli%
ance monitoring at least in this system.
- MR. FREED: Why don't I let.Marie answer that.
MS. CARPAR: Wéll, it appears froﬁ the work that we

have done that the effectiveness of a home confinement sentence

ty with which it is monitored than the means used to monitor.
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As long as the offender knbws from the beginning

that his movements are going to be verified and that any vio-

‘lation is going to result in swift reaction, the sentences

seem to work very well and it doesn't matter much how you do
it.

I have also noticed in my comparisons with differ-

ent Federal Judicial Districts that the districts that are

geographically large and not dense, that the electronic

monitoring may not be very economically feasible; whereas, in

" the Eastern District of New York, which is very dense, is

small, they use it very Qeil there. -
COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Thank'you.
CHATRMAN WILKINS:  cOmmissioner'Caruthefs?'
COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: ‘Ms. Caspar, would you
elaborate a little bitzon'what you found concerning offenders, |
the types of offenses, or various baékgrounds of offenders?
| MS. CASPAR: Well, ‘the States have,ﬁsed this tech-
niqﬁe with all kinds of seriousroffenders. Florida, for ex-
ample, which has used it on the gami£ Qf cfimes almost, has
a fairly low revocation rate, of about 20 perpent, and this
includes technical Vidlatiohs. |

' The Federal courts have been much more cautious in
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their use to date and have used it much less, and genefally on
pretty low—lével crimes. ‘But thé Eastern District of New York_
has used it on an assault casé, a minor drug case; plus fraud,
embezzlement—types‘of cases. In Connecticut, ﬁhey have used
it only on lower-level white-collar crimes.v :

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: .' Steve?

COMMISSIONER BREYER: I think it is a very useful
statement.. The questions particularly I think we cquld‘aSk
the judges! and I hope we find out the answers to them; Do
you have any feeling about the length of time‘after which this3
may or‘may not become problematic?

MR. FREED: I agree with whaﬁ the Judges said earlier
that the sanction is too new and the imagination and resource-
fulness of different judges and different'districﬁs is too
wide for the Commission tO‘réstréin any of the variables at
this time.

Howévér; if you accept~the.recommendation.thqt we
made to amend-s(é)(Z.I), you will efféctively be cqnfinding
home confinement as the guideline sentence for no less than 1

month and no more than 16 months, because that is the range
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It is perfecfly true that jUdges wili be able to de;,
part dewn_eo zero and as high ae theylwieh if they-can satisfy'
the statuﬁory~test for departure; but it-strikes me that nhe"
Commission did:exectly the right balence_as a firét gojronnd
on.alternatiye sanctions when'it limited-cemmunity‘confinement
and intermittent confinement in 5(c)(2.l), and I think that is
the way you want to begin:here.-iThen when you see the way in
which judges use.this sanction; you.can make‘adjuStments;in;u
the length. | : |

COMMISSIONER BREYER: Thank ybﬁ..

CHATRMAN WILKINS: .Thank you.

MR. FREED: If I may answer one question fhat was
asked 5f the Judges beforeiabout:thefdetails.of guidance:- that
the Commission mignt want to iﬁpose‘over and above what is now

in the guidelines for community confinement, it strikes me,

ifrom examining the manuals and the'instructicns put together

by United States Pfobation Offices in the few districts where'-
home confinement hés been used to some extent - Wisconsin,
New York, Nebraska, placee like thetj-—,that these probation
officers have been,very eenscientipns_and very_detailed[ and
it seems to me that guidanee ought tqlbegin with the United

States Probation Service, that local units ought to develop
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their own details of supervision and monitoring and other as-

pects,’ some of which is spelled'out in'Judge Weinstein's

opinion.

.Eventually, I think‘thé Probation Division of the
Administrative Office of thé U.é; Coﬁrté will pull together
the best of the guidance that.comeé’from local offices, and
then you will have available to the Commission‘something put
tdgether by a skilled'Probation:Service with a natioﬁal over-
view, and you and they cah discuss what is neceésary to put
in the Commissiqnﬂguidelines.  But.fighﬁ now I would.say trust
the Probation Service. |

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thénk you; I am confident that
we will respond to the statute, ProfeSsor’Freéd'and Ms. Caspar,
then we will monitor what we do, but we Qill also be seeking

ways to improve whatever we do, to seek better solutions. 1In

. that regard, Commissioner Caruthers is chairing a working

group in this area, and she_Will be working for some time, I
am sﬁre, seeking bétter.solﬁtions on homé detenﬁion and home
confiﬁement.surveys, one of the areas under her umbrella of -
reséarch, and I am sure she‘will be calling upon you, with
your permission, to continue this dialogﬁe; |

MR. FREED: We would be pleased to work with her.
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CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you very much.
Our next witness is the Acting Assistant Attorney .

General, Tax Division, someone who is no stranger to . the Com-

l mission as well, Mr. James,I;K._Knapp.

Mr. Knapp, you and ydur coiléagues are welcome at
the witness chair. |

MR. KNAPP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is a
pleasure to be back here before'YOu and other Members of thé
Commission again, albeit this.time we are wearing é siightly
different hat.

With me today on my left is Bob Lindsey, whq is
Chief of the Criminal Appea1§ Section iﬁ thé‘TngDiQision;
also With me in the‘audiepéé if Mike Karlan, with,the Tax
Division; Glenn McAdams, with the.Criminal Investigétions
Division, Internal Revenﬁe'Sevices; and Martin Clark, Chief
Counsel's Office, Internal Revenué Service;

I appreciate the opportunity to address you this
afternoon'regarding proposed changes in Part T of,thé sentehc-'
ing guidelines pertaining to tax vidlations.’ My appearance
todéy'is intended to underscore the critical importahcé we
attach to effective sentenciﬁg deterrence in the overall‘

Federal tax law enforcement program which the Tax Division and
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the IRS administer. I ptoPoSe to read selectéd,éortioﬁs of.

my prepared téétimony. We have fairly 1engthy prepared

testimony which we have submitted with some attached exhibits,

ésuwell as our comments, and I hope ybu will cénsider those

in full,.but I will proceed now to highlight-soﬁé key éoints.
Our tax systém brincipally relies én taxpayers to

voluntarily determiné their.own'tax liability and pay their

taxes on time. The IRS simply would notAbe able to édequatélyv

administer the tax laws without voluntary compiiance‘by tax-

It has been estimatéd that the amount ‘of unpaid taxes
is now more than $84 million a Year., The IRS uses a Variety
of methods to encourage Volﬁntary com?liancefvbut criminai
prosecution is perhaps one éf the most cfitiééliones, It is
the ultimate fallback position. .It is not enouéh for those
contémplating cheating on their téxes, however, to believe
that there is a good chance that they will get caught. They:
must alSo'beiieve that if theyAget caught andAsuccessfully
prosecuted, they will pay a stiff price in terms of their
uitimate pehalty for non-compliance wifhlour Nation's tax

laws. Our taxes as a whole are, what the Supreme Court has
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said is the life blood of our whole system of government, and

voluntary compliance is absolutely essential.

While paying a fine'will be.ecénomiqaliy burdensome
to éome or even perhaps financially ruihous in é few extreme
situationé in terms of overall deterrent effect, we believe
prison time is the most effective detérrent sanction.

.Commendably, in drafting the original guidelines'
of 4 Part T, the Commission'éought to increaseithe average
length of sentences imposed upon those conQicted,of tax crimes,
ana reduced the number of purely probationary senténces. Un-
fortunatelyf‘however, we do not beiieve}ihat this ijective"
may be achieved with a great majority of tax casesi

If implehented as presently propbsed,_particularlYA

with the amendment now déleting interest from the calculation

~of the Part T taxation sentencing guidelines, that only would

not increase average sentencing length for many tax cases, but
could actually reduce the percentage of cases in which a term

of imprisonment is imposed. As shown by the chart attached to

my testimony, roughly 55 percent of convicted taxpayers in

1987 were sent to prison -- and i am just talking.about 55

percent of those convicted under the general enforcement pro-

‘gram, which typically involves evasion of taxation on legal
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income. _ —

But if you applied the guidelines to tﬁose offenses,
more-than_three—quarters of those-convicted:wogld have fallen
in the Levelle or below category, that is, ﬁndér a_$40,000
tax loés. ‘And if you applied the two-level.adjustment for
acceptanbe Qf responsibility, that figure would go to over
90 percent.

So, while it is possible that thoée-perSons falling

in the Level 7 t6 10 éategory could receive a prison sentence |

under the guidelines, our concern and the concern of the
Internal Revenue Service is that it is far more likely that

courts would be prone to impose community confinement when

| permissible. This would be a particular danger if the home

confinement option was adopted in this situation. Perception
is very'important as an aspect of deterrence, and I think a
lafge portion of the genefai-public would'perceive that if -
the vast majority of convicted taxpayers”are.giYen Community
confinement or home confinement of anyfhing.like that, that
this in effect is favoritisﬁ to thé rich and this would not

serve as a strong deterrent towards compliance'with the tax

laws.

Consequently, we believe that certain changes need




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

| minor changes in our testimony, but the three major changes

calculation, that it should compensate for that with a one-
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to be made in order to ensure that imposition of ﬁhe sentence
of imprisonment is more of a certainty, af leasﬁ'if interes£
is to be withdrawn from the calculations.  In addition, we
believe that some of the Commission's ﬁropoéals fail to clarify
certain key aspects of the senteﬁciné calculus to avdid need-
less sentencing related 1itigéti§n. |

Now, we basically propose three major and a few

are as follows: Number one, we believe that if the Commission

is determined to give up interest as part of the tax loss

level increasé'across the board in terms of the guidelines,
and we are prepéred to discuss the célculations in that in
more detail. |

Secoﬁdly( we believe that there is a need to clarify
the term "tax loss" by consoiidating the definition that we |
believe it is pqssible ﬁo'CGHSOIidate fhe definition'for all
the vériéus Title 26 offenses in one secfion, relabeling it
as a criminal tax deficiengy and thefeby excluding}so-called
civil or noh—goalfui, non—criminal tax deficiencieé from thaé
calculation.- This would resolve some dffthé quéstiQns which

I have seen come up in conferences with thé_defense part.
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VFinally, we thinklit is nécessérthd clearly‘specify
that all provable criminal tax deficiencies, including those
from non-indictment.years, inclﬁding those from barred years,
may be used in determining the relevant .conduct.

Let me jusﬁ briefiy touch on the interest issue for
a second. The elimination of interest would produce a sub-
stantial chaﬁge in the percéntage of likely.incarcable cases
by decreasing defense levels by one bn average. Higher risk
calculations shown by Attachment B to my téstimoﬁy indicate
that for a three-year évasion case.involﬁing a $30,000
evasion, indicted two years after the filing of the last
fraudulent return, the.amount of tax loss is:incerased by 26

percent, at an 8 percent interest rate, 33 percent at a 10

'percent interest rate, and 41 pércentyat a 12 percent interest

rate. In reality, I think it is probably more typical'thét
cases are indicted usually in three or fouf years sometimeé,
after the last return is iséued.'

 This erosion can be offset by indreasing the offense

levéls in the tax table by one level at all levels of tax

loss. More importantly, for all tax offenses, this one level

across the board increase will insure:that'the guidelines'

stated goal of increasing the average sentence length in tax
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I did soﬁé calculations on my own to sée how this
would work out if this proposal was adopted and, assuming
that the two-level.adjustment'for acceptance of respohsibility
applied in most situations,.what you would héve, the nét ef-
fect would.be an increase from roughlf 7;5 pefcent to 13.5
percent of tYPical cases falling into level of 11 and.above'
mandatory prisoh category, thle} cofre§pondingly, where tﬁat
adjustment applied, wéuld only be a decrease from 28 to l5-
percént of those entitled toAstraight'probation, fﬁétvié
levels 6 or below, éo the éffécts‘arefnot quite as dréstic asv'
one might think. from a first-blush analysis.

I would like to briefly‘touch on the'other éspects

of my testimony. 1In terms of the need to redefine and clarify

"criminal tax deficiency,f we beliévé that any confﬁsion in
this regard can be eliminéte& and'we.havé suggested some
language not just for the gﬁidéline’but for the'épplicaﬁion
notes to.answer some of the many specific intéfpreti§é queé—
tions that havé come up regardiﬁg the types of things“that
should ér should nbt be taken‘intovconsideration, and I_commend

that to your attention.
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i would like to spend just a couple of minutes fin-
ally on the third matter, which is the clarification of the
scope of relevant conduct. The Commission has ﬁroposed to,kin
effect, set out a presﬁmption that.ail_tax violations are re-
lated aﬁd put the burden on the defendant to prove qtherwise.'

The problem with that is it d§esn?t provide any
guidance forrdetermining what constitutes related conduct be-
tween one‘tax violation and another. Dées that mean relaﬁed
in a functional senée, in a-moti&ational sense, in a transac-
tional sense, to juse time or‘type of teéhniques that were
used in a particular violation? There is just a whole myriad
of situations one could«hypbthesize where you couid have a .

violation separated by 5 years,‘one could be a deduction

violation and one could be a non-reporting of income viola-

tion -- all kinds of questions would arise'as'to whether or
not'this was related dr non-rélated conduct.

ﬁnless the‘governmént is prépafed to litiéaté tﬁis
issue in e§ery case right ﬁp to the,appeilate court, I could
conceivé of a situation where the governmeht basically or
at ieast'advising prosecutors in the fieid to say stick with
a plea of conviction, stick. with thé ﬁaxﬂloés for ﬁhatiyear,

forget about everything else.
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The need to considgr prior yeafs I.think is demon-
strated, for example, by the recent case involving Lyndon
LaRouche; who_failed to file ahy tax-return at all for in ex-
cess of 10 yeérs, 12 years. Well,mhe could only bércharged
with a conspiracy based Qn ﬁhe last 2 or 3 years, but you Cén
be cértain when thexcourt impdsed a lS-yeaf sehténce»dh~him,

it took into‘consideration the fact that'this man had never

All we are asking the Commissién to do is to_basic-
ally allow courts to do what they‘presently.do and provide
some sdrt of clear and specific guidahCe thch would avoid a
lot of unneceséary litigation at both the trial and'appeilate
level in that respect.

I will be pleaséd at’this time"tolaﬁswer any épecific
questions that you have. I wou1d just direct YOur attention‘
to the fact that we have made some comments on the'monéy
laundering guidelines and some other lésser issueé regafding
the tax guidelines-whicﬁ we hope.thaﬁ YOu_will give ste’at—
tention to as well. |

Thank you.

FCHAIRMAN WILKINS: We will, and of ccurse‘YOur

wirtten comments will be included in the record.
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Judge Breyer, do you have any comments or questions

COMMISSIONER BREYER: I cohgratulate you on your
new position.
MR. KNAPP: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER BREYER: Judging from the briefs that

the United States Governmeﬁt.v They'haﬁg a Qery, very difficult

-- to me, I am continuously amazed at the job that the Tax

Division does in thislvery complex area. They édhcate us.
MR. KNAPP: Thank you. |

COMMISSIONER BREYER: So I think it is a very, very

difficult -- you see, what we have been saying, we have been

going through your numbers and they seem to work out fairly

If you take all the people who in 1987‘were not con-
fined, in each of these areas there wefé quite a few poepie
who got pure probation -- |

MR. KNAPP: That's correct, even ét thekhigh ievels.

COMMISSIONER BREYER: - eveﬁ éf the'hiéh levels, so

I don't have it exactly, but it looks to me 1iké_about 3Q0,
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' stead, we could turn the,statlstlcs rlght around and flnd the

on the theory that some conflnement was a shock, even a short
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maybe 400 people out of the 924, and so nearly 50 percent got
some form of probation. Now, once the guidelines.go into ef-

fect, instead of 54 percent, even if all were tohplead guilty,

MR, KNAPP: I,guess that is where the difficult
question comes in. If in fact everyone .at Levels 7 through.10
is glven some sort of meaningful, substantlal conflnement,
that would beé correct. Our concern 1s that the vast majorlty

of the cases fall in that category, Levels 7 through 10, that

capa01ty or whatever or crowded docket or whatever - dec1de
that they are going to put these people on the most lenlent

form of communlty confinement, you are going to find that, in-

reverse occurring, with only --

_COMMiSSIONER BREYER: - What,we'were trying to‘doy-—t
and what you were trying to do, because you were very much'
involved -—_is to take a'iot of the people who previously got

probation to a probation and impose some confinement condition,

period compared with no conflnement, and I take in your p01nt
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that,éf'éourse it dependé_dn Whaf'confihement and how lbné
and so‘forth, but it seems to me that. is the variatién.

If we lower i£ to deal with_ihterest, do you think
the'way to do’it Qouid be.to saf,_iﬁétéad of monkeyAwith_ihe
table‘-; you see, the table has other things turning, it is

conVenient to have one table'for‘tax fraud and theft. If Wé

‘do that, maybe you just simply have to say one additional level

because that reflects the interest which wouid otherwise be
too7comp1ex.to calculate. |
MR. KNAPP:V Well, I think-whét'we are prbposing; if
the Commission is going tb take iﬁtéfeét out of the‘céicula—
tioﬁ, that they should substitu£e é.one-level increase,fihr. 
stead of Q—Y |
COMMISSIdNER BREYER: But you didn't mean neceésafily |
monkey with the table? | i
MR. KNAPP: No, but wha£ is Level 7 now iﬁ térmg.of
dollér loss.would become Leyel.é.'
. COMMISSIONER BREVER: Level 6 would. become 7;;isp_
that cqrfect?' | |
-MR. KNAPP: Level 6 wouldAbecome 7, yes.

CHATRMAN WILKINS: You're right. Judge Breyer, we

- could add that one any other way,rany‘ﬁéy we could figuré-that.
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Now, do yOu‘advocaté that wé'do away Qith interest?

MR. KNAPP: If you aovthat}.I_think'4— |

CHAI?MAN WILKINS: ﬁe shoﬁld leave it alone-if that -
interest in the field. i

MR. KNAPP: The problem I:sée-ﬁith it, you coﬁla'
calculate it all right with a combuter dr whatever, the service
or something, once YOd Qet to a certain amount. The.préblem;
I see two basic problems with. the interest calculation. _Nﬁmber'
oné} it does put a premium on comingﬁup with a specific tax
loss, 5écause that‘in ﬁurn mééns_you‘aré going to need é
specific amount over which to calculate the interestland it
could_very-wéll be at the cutoff point, so it does‘pﬁt aivéryv
strohg premium at coming out,with a-very predise aﬁount. |

Second:of all, it is very much a function of the

berson, for whatever reason,’waé indicted, later is in a more
vuinerable positionvin terﬁs of.pbteﬁtial senteﬁce, pefhaps:
through no fault of his own, énd £hat has always bothered me 
as a_conceptuél méttér, éo-I'think those are the two<pr6blems
ahdvI wouid probébly preferlthat ydu just suﬁstituted a one-

level increase and took the extra step.
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CHAIRMAN WILKiNs:,'Thénk you.

Commissioner Nagéi?_

COMMISSTONER NAGEL;"Nothing,‘“

CHATRMAN WILKINS: Commissioner Caruthers?

COMMISSIONER CARUTHERS: No. | |

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: - Commissioner Block?

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: .Mr,.Knapp,'i£ is good to see
you again. | | |

o MR. KNAPP: It is nice to be here.

COMMISSIONER BLOCK:V‘A couple of questions; bécausé
as with Judge Breyer's questions, I thiﬁk fhat-youf particular
qonCerns go to the core of'Whaﬁlwe tried ﬁo dé in the property

area, which was essentially'to reduce substantially the number

MR. KNAPP; Yes.

COMMISSIONER BLOCK; In the property'area genefally,
what we‘tried.to do is haveAsomewhat shofter sentences_for
those that went to some forﬁ‘of'iﬁbarcefafion,.buﬁ ﬁore peopie
.would be incarceratea.

lMR. KNAPP: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Now, in the tax area it is
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to go over this so that I understand your concerns. .As T

understand the first concern iS‘that.if you.look at the way

Levels 7 to 10's, and those are the area where you get into

theré, down,to_no meaningful Confinément.

MR. KNAPP: No meaningful community_confineﬁenﬁ'of
community confinement in name only.

'COMMISSIONER ELbCK:YOkay.l,I ha&e two obserﬁatiéns on
that. One, it appears from very_preliminary evidence in:the
fraud area, where we have é few_hundréd cases, that we are not
having a hugé problem in.thosg'lower 6ffense.levéis, That is .
very preliminary.

i guess what I would 1ike‘is that YOu"help us monitor

that by giving us information on where, whenkthese come up,

It is fairiy sefious. When we desigﬁed the system tb'get to
certain -- and if your assertion coﬁes frué,'then we ﬁaveﬁ't
accomplished what we set outAtb anomplish; buth think there
may be a little more time for that, haybe.a little preliminary

guess what will,happen without the evidence.
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MR. KNAPP: It is going to be difficult to do that
in tax cases, because the guidelines On1y7app1j to tax of
fenses that were committed after I guess November of 1987,
which -- |

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: _Well,.we might be.getting éome
evidence from -- | | '

MR. KNAPP: We_h&&e isblated cases, conspiracy cases,
but it is going to be some;time before we_can.do it.  Under
our éalculations, if the twoélevel reduction applied in the
vést méjority.of cases, 93 percent of those cases would be
Level 10 or below. Now, if the th-lével didnft épply, it
jumps down to 77 percent,~but'tﬂat iskstill é véry substéntial.

percentage, so the vast majority of cases are subject to this

| concérn, namely tha; there will be no meaningful sort of

confinement and that does not send a very'good deterrent

message, regardless of what really happens‘inkindividual éasés.
COMMISSIONER BLOCKf VTwo'poiﬁts again. One, let me

get.somé evidence at leasﬁ from oﬁher areas closely related.

I mean I réalize that tax is particularly difficult, but

there are frauds with somewhat shbrter fuses and we .get evi-

dence next year that this is happening, we will have a firmer

. basis to react. I think we all share a concern that if this-
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occurs, it is not what we iﬁtended té occur.

The second is I>am concerned about the calculations
and, as I'rememberAit, the'pfediction was that on:average
séntences‘would be 9 months. . I don'tihave a supplementary -
report in front of me, so I am~going“£oAdo this,from ﬁemory.
I think that prediction was for an average sentence of 9 months
and a reduction and probation'from:sﬁmé 50 éercent down.to 25
percent. I think that is~what it ié;‘

The probétion numbers look about‘right when you cal-
culate your calculations with.the 906.. I-wonder Vhf we gét a
higher average sentence figure than I guess you would come out
with. Did you'éaléulate what thé-average seﬁtence would be
in thése '87 cases, if they say we are.in fhe middle of-the
guideline rates?

MR. KNAPP: It méy very well be Qhen you did>ydur

calculations, you took into consideration tax cases involving

culation. That may explain it. But‘according.to-the study

the typical taxpayer, legal income, general deterrence type

of case, if you applied the guidelines to the '87 cases, 10
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percent would fall Level 6 or belbw,’and that is'stféight pro-
batioh. But an additional 66, for a total of 77 pgrcent,
would fall Level 10 or below. And if youvapply'the two—boint
adjustment to aéceptance ofvrespohsibility, which I suspect
will be applied in the vast majority of those cases, almbst
whenever there is a plea, that numbér jumps up to 93 percent,
so, only 7.5 or 8‘percent.are facing'the clear-heaVeré§el 11
or more type imprisonment.

COMMISSIONER ELOCK: - I want to follow up‘bn that.
It seems to me that it really tufhs on wﬁa£ happeng in those
cases. I mean we have to wéit a While to see whether in fact

we get imprisonment in those cases, because that is what we

are predicting, that we get meaningful confinement. -If we get

meaningful confinement, we have done whét we set 6ut to do,
we shorten the sentences. We have reduced the straight prof
bation inside the guidelines, we have reducéd thé straigh£
probation much below the levél.thét ydu havé in 19877 You
héve 45 percent of yéur cases Qhere therg is a straight walk,A
and that has been reduced to about 25.percent. Your argument
is hypothetically,-though; judges aren't going to use that
discretion in‘thev7 to 10 range to give real sentences. We

need some evidence that that is not occurring before we act.
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and with the two-level, then the corresponding two-level

that is 7 through 10, and 13.5, which is not a humongous

‘native to the interest, and in addition will still enable you

to test this because you will still have a very significant

maybe I am misreading it or maybe there is - look at Levels

‘7, 8,'9 and 10, look at what happens now. What happens now
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MR. KNAPP: Well, I think when you made your original

calculations, you probably also factored interest into con-

COMMISSIONER BLOCK:  But you made the point about --

MR. KNAPP: If you make this one-level adjustment

reduction for acceptance of responsibility, my projection
would be that you would have 15 percent fall in the straight

probation category, 71.5 percent fall in this wobbily area,

number, in the upper category. So, what I am suggestihg is

that perhaps this one-level increase is a reasonable alter-

number of cases falling in this wobbily area.
| COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Thank you.
' CHATRMAN WILKINS: Judge éreyer?
COMMiSSIONER BREYER:} There ié-a mi#—up here, i
think I may be the dne mixed ﬁpf-»Now, I don't see how the

guidelines weaken the penalty at all, in any sense. I think
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is, well, a little less than half the'peoplé get fewer proba-

tion, that means they are out on the street, and the other

have get some term of prison, right?

MR. KNAPP: Wéll; I_don‘t‘know'thét ﬁhey are on .
probétion, it is just simplyl;—iﬁ

COMMISSIONER BREWER: - Half of them get prison and
something happens to the other onés?- |

MR. KNAPP: Somethihg, yes.

COMMISSIONER.BREYEﬁ: I ﬁean‘pfobably they are ouf
on thé streét, but I don'f know what else -- | |

MR. KNAPP: Not neceséarily.-

COMMISSIONER BREYER: My point is that now go over

to the guidelines. 1In Levels 7, 8, 9 and 10, the sentence is

the judge may satisfy that sentence by a sentence of imprison-

ment. I mean I don't see any reason why —; you are lawyers
and I am impressed by lawyers, andvI aSsume‘they Willlstill
be in court'arguing today juét‘as ﬁhey did in 1987, Judgé,
this man belongs in prisén,;he-is.a_Lével 7, he's a Level 8,
he;s a ievél 9, he's a Level 10, send‘him to prison, just as
you did in 1987. And I don't know why the judge_wouldn‘t do
it. If he did it before, why wouldh't he do.it now?

The'only bite that.the guidelihes have on Levéls 7,
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8, é_and'lo is thosevpeople who weré being'seﬁt to prison in
'87. They éan‘t just go walﬁ on>the Streét. Thosé»people
who were being sent to prison ih '87 have to be given a
term of confinement, so . the guidelines are only tougher, tﬁey
are_hot 1énient, more lenient in any‘senge.‘ The peoplé who =
were sent to prisonwstili go to prison,<énd:tﬁe people Who
are walking around, they’go to coﬁfinement,_too;

| Now, the other sense in whicﬁAthé guidelihes afe
tougher is that the nuﬁbe? qf people overall who can't walk
around, overall, on'your'OWn.calculétiéns, aré,eithér 9 per-
cent or 14 pércent are the maximum numbér;that can be walkiné
around in the street. ‘Right? And currentlf;vthere~could be
up to 46 percent walking around in the street.

" So, we have doneitwo things. First of all, there

' can't be more than, let's say, maximum 20 percent walking

around on the street, wheréas today there ¢buld be 46 percent
walking around in'the street;'ahd the second thing is that
anyone who is going'to.prison in the paét sfili could be sent
and should be sent to prison in the future.. So,.I don't see
any way in the tax area, for better or fof worse, I don't see
any way in which these guidelines are moré lenien£ in any

respeét, and I do see, I think from what I have said, they
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have accomplishea £his objective of téking tﬁe_people,-many of
them who are'walking around the streets, saying théy afe going
to get at-least a shortvtéfm of confinement; so that is how I
am reading this.- |

MR. KNAPP: I think what happéhed, I can see why'you
réached that conclusion. One thing yoﬁ wili note of intérest,
that the percentage of those~goiﬁg to prison at the different |
levels is rouéhly the same, from bottom_uplfo top, and I ﬁhink '
what that reflects is the fact that in the past_the judges

only weighed the amount of the tax loss, it was a relevantly

has made it the driving force, said thié iS‘really the pre-
dominant thing, I think the tendency of the courts is going
to be, well, éll‘right, this is a case Which an the Commission‘
has put down.in the lower part, haé,put in ﬁhe Level 7 to 10

category, and itvis‘a Category lISituatidn, which almost all.

thege situatibns are, I think the tendency of these judges is
going to pick the least onerous alternative available, becéuse

these are all individuals, these general enforcement people

criminal activity.

You have got a lot of drug traffickers out there




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

221

22

"going to be to say no, we are going to give these péople the

‘keep track of what is going on' and why and let us know this.

You did make one compelling point, that some of the guidelines,

because of the interest, the longer the government waits to

_2’2 3

ready to go to prison, and the tendency in all these cases is

least onerous form of confinement we can.get away with.

COMMISSIONER BREYER: So you will have to try to -

It is --

 MR. KNAPP: Well; we will get,ihté that situation
to begin with, because once this arises and the WOrd gets.out,
if the word gets out that the vést majority of people are,‘ini
effect, if they are suffering any sért'ofwcdnfinement, it is-
an easy sort of confinement and tha£ is going to seriously
going to diminish the deférrent efféct of criminal tax enforce-
ment. |

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Thank you verywmuch, Mr. Knapp.

indict,-potenti;lly the highér.fhe senienée bécomes;
MR. KNAPP: That is correct; |
CHATRMAN WILKINS: ‘That is not a good cénséquehce.
MR. KNAPP: Right. |
 CHAIRMAN wiLkiNs: well, thank you very much. We

appreciate not only'your'comments; but yéur Written.teétimony
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as well,_ahd we look forward to continue to work with yéu and
your division. |
Thank you.
MR. KNAPP: VThank you verf much.
CHAIRMAN WILKINS: Our néxt witness is Mr. Lucien
Campbell. Mr. Campbell is a Federal Pubiic Defender from San

Antonio, Texas,‘one of the Federal Public Defenders who has

worked with us since the beginninglof this Commission's work.

Mr. Campbell, I too want to'note_that we appreciate

not only your attendance but your very comprehensive written

submission. I know it took many hours to complete it and we

appreciate that very muéh.

MR. CAMPBELL:  Thank you, Jﬁdge'wiikins.'

CHAIRMAN WILKINS: I must‘éay}one other thing. ’I
apologize to you and tobﬁhe other witnesses.. I have a loné—'
standing commitment to represent £he Senteﬁcing Commission'aﬁ.
a Brookings Iﬁstitutionfactivity and I must leave now in order |’

to meet that_commitment at,3:30. But I have your written

Atestimony and I read it and I will continue to refer back to

it, ‘as well as the others. That is why'the written testimony
is so important. We have a lot of‘give and take here, but we

can go back and study the the other.
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in_any event, I mu§t 1eavevyoﬁ‘and I am going to aski
Commissioner Nagel if she would chair the remainder of the
éfternoon of the Commission's activiﬁies, i enjoyed‘havingA
lunch with you. |
MR; CAMPBELL: Thank you, Judge;'
Mrf Chairman and.Membefs of thé.Commission,ilbam

pleased to submit my testimony on behalf of the Federal

Offenders. We operate under the Criminal Justice Act in 47

out of the 94 judicial districts, and we undertake representa-
tion in over half of the appoin£ed cases in the Federal Courts.v

‘What I would like to do is  summarize our response
to some of the Commission's key‘proposals'and, ifitime permits,
to mention some of the poihfs that are important to me.

First, ‘it is proposed to amend the‘bank £obberx
guideline. ; would poinf out that tﬁe guidelines.are‘going to
have a 1eveling influence on sentences across thé country.
They arebgoing to,téke them ﬁp in Some éfeas and take them
down in ofhers, and I think therquéstioh is nqt whethef some-
one is 6ffended or someéne complains ﬁeré or there‘: E&en if

the data that the Commission has gathered showed that the

‘average may be lower, I think that is the beginning of the -

inquiry and not the end of the inquiry.
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I think the.question is does the present‘guideline
serve the statutory purposes of sentén;ing.‘ As we speak, . the
guidelines have been in effeét nationwide something less than
three months, aﬁd I thiﬁk it is well to.fécall that_that par-
ticulaf guideline is a rathef comple# one. It haé_a number éf
specific offense characteristiqs capturing.a number df difféf;
ent things, it is going to cover a‘lot of diffefen£ cases and
produce a lot of(éifferént results, and I #hink it simply- |
néeds some time to see eXéctly how it is going to work.

| I am particularly cbncerned with the first offender

note robbers who I think are fu11y puni$hed by the present-

guideline: and I would be concerned about seeing them swept

upward in a general revision of that guideline.

The career offender guideline I think stands on a

‘different footing and perhaps I should say why I think it is

different and why I am not saying Qo slow in a fevision of
that guideline. | . |

First, there is a difference'in.the way it operates;
Whereas thé'roﬁbery guideiine is'complex and wbrks.mény'dif-

ferent ways, one can look at the career offender guideline

and see the result in any given case. I think also the mag-

nitude of the error is important. If the robbery guideline
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is wrong, it is a much smaller error than the error produced

by the career offender guideline if that one is wfohé. And I

Where the Commission'is'able'to identify a guide-
line. that produces an excessive sentence, then I think there

is an imperative to amend it. Apart from the question of

carefully, an excessive sentence is a form of governmental
extravagance. Of course, the Commission is charged with the

responsibility of managing valuable government resources and

I am not going to repeat the arguments against it.
I think they,are collected rather completely in ﬁhe p;opésal,
but I am especially impfessedjby the‘way<£hat the-maximum.turhs
on this patchwork criminal éode_ﬁhat~we‘ﬁa§e that has not been

rationalized. - It is a terribly_-rude.Way to fix;the'maximum

punishment, when it is going -"to depend on what happens to be

On the question ofiwhether'the Commission has
authority to make a change, I. think the Commissiondoes. I .
think it is very significant that. 994 (h) does not speak to the

statutory maximum. I think there is room to»interpret it to
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mean a functional maximum ao'déferﬁined by the Commission,
which the Commission seems to be in'the'pfocess of.doiné.

Thé.Commission has already intefpreted'and imple-
mented, as I thiok 994 (h) intended,_thé oohgressional mandate
did not séy cut off remote coovictions, which the Commission
did, or foreign convictioos, which fhe Commission did,'and the
Congress let that guideline pass into iaw. So, I certainly
think there is room to.interprét it.

Option H that is presented in thé prooOSal, I am not
sure exactly why it is.thére} bﬁt I céftainly:think that is
not what.Congress intended, ﬁhat'is, to autoﬁaticaliy'give
everyone the‘statutori maximum.' If the Congféss intended
that, it is a simple ﬁatter for the Congress to do that by
statute, as tﬁéy did in a similar statute in the last drug act,
There would certainly be no.need:to,tell'the.Commission ﬁo
address by guidolineQ

Criminal livelihood,:l would subit, is still in need |
of somé attention from the Commission, because it feaches
peréons on the basis of socioeconomic condition. If two
people stéel'$10,000, it‘cafries a iikeiihood'that one}who has
a job will not go to jail and the one who ooes not havé a job

will go-to jail. I would suggest that the Commission look to
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the time period involved. I have seen instances of £rying to’

interpret "substantial period of time" to mean a period as

‘short as simply a few weeks, and the one-year péiiod in the

proposed_amendment does not reach that at all, because it

merely establishes a maximum period of tiﬁe that the.govern—

ﬁent can look to to try tq identify the $6,?00 in the proposal.
I would also suggést that . the éommiséion not dele#ei |

the exclusion from minor .offenses, because I have seen many

instances where in minor offenses, by that I mean misdemeanors

or petty offenses, that could arguably apply to take someone
up-to Level 13 and I don't think those are the kinds of cases
that the Congress infendedito feacﬁ by 994 (i) .-

We do favor home détention dn a one for one 5§sis,
I Qould submit.- I think to do it oﬁ any oﬁher basis on a
lessor equivalehcy»would be rather arbitrary, because I think

there is a considerable overlap in the restrictiveness between

. some community confinements. and some home detentions. Also,

making it something less than one for one would have the ef-
fect of restricting the availability of it.

I don't think it is-necessary to restrict it to par-

ticﬁlar kinds of offenses or offenders, because if the Com-

mission retains some limitation on the maximum length in the
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_think that that process has already happened. I think by the
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commentary as there is now, that will have‘a natural effect'
of limiting the kinds of ‘offenses for whlch 1t would be avail-
able.

We are pleased to see the Commission is con51der1ng

We would suggest, rather»than_Levei 10, that Level 8 would be
the proper level for a walk-away from a non-secure facility.

I see that the Bureau of Prisons recommended a 10. I am not
privy to what’is behind that recommendation, but it simply
seems to me that a non-secure walk—away is less serious andv

certainly not any more serious than a walk-away from a secure-

I think the voluntary_return ie Valuable and should
be retained. I am sure that'among the-target audience in the
half4way houses, the 9n—hour:figuredis well known, beCause
this is frequently an impulse offense; 1 think-it;is going
to. induce a number of‘people'to return,-thus affecting the
offense conduct and saving the time of marshals from having to
go out and hunt people down.’.

I don t see a need to dlfferentlate between offenders

types of offenses for whlch someone 1s 1ncarcerated because I

-
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“time someone arrives at a community treatment center, they .

have been equalized. In other words, some people may have -

served more time inside in hard conflnement before they ar-

rived there, but once,they arrived_thererthey have been equal-
ized and the offense conduct is basically the same. .

On acceptance of responsibi}ity, we oppose the chang%'
from "made a goodffaith effortf to "provided substantlal assis-
tance," because it would seem to require‘concrete results:in
order to entitie someonelto relief_forcacceptance of respon—
sibility.

I thlnk it could ‘cut out con51deratlon from the per—

.son who provides valuable a551stance but, through some happen-

stance or law enforcement error, there are.no.results; someone
Who proffers,or tenders very valuable a551stance, but the
government elects, for whatever reason, timing ornlack of
resources, not to act on.it;.and’there are no results; I
think both people in those categorles are deserv1ng of some
consideration. I thlnk results are ev1dence of entitlement
to consideration,'but lack of,results should not cut someone
out of it. N

If I may mentlon‘one other item, I .am concerned with

the interplay between 1Kb)(l.2), appllcable guldellne and
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acceptance of respon51b111ty ' They were both amended back in
January 1988.‘ To "relevant conduct“ there was‘added the
language‘that when a person stlpulates during a guilty plea
to elements of a more serious offense, use that guideline and
treat it as if the person had heen convicted. At'thefsame
time, “acceptance of respon51blllty" was changed from accep-

tance of responsibility for the offense of_conv1ctlon to

acceptance for his criminal conduct, and the net results is

that 2 defendant can be whip-sawed between these two pro-
risionsi' “ |
Someone who, for example, durlng the course of a,
gullty plea acqnlesces in or agrees in a full statement of the
factual basis I belleve 1s at rlsk of hav1ng l(b)(l 2) apply
Someone who does not is at risk of hav1ng talked hlmself out
of acceptance of responsibility. | |
Now, there is evidenCe_here and there in'the guide;
llnes that it is not intended to work that way, but I have
seen efforts in the .courts to.apply it that way and I thlnk it
is a- 31gn1f1cant pitfall for the unwary. I think it should
be ‘clear that what is referred to ls’an express stlpulatlon,

an agreement entered into with the full knowledce and under-

standing of the defendant and counsel before l(b)(l 2) should
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come into play.

The defenders apprec1ate thlS opportunlty to present
testimony and participate in thls,process. I would 11ke to

mention that we wish to be available'to the Commission and

that it appears that it would be productlve to cohfer‘on
matters of mutual-interest.

Thank you.

COMMISSIONER NAGEL [pre51d1ng] Thank you Vety much,
Mf. Campbell. We appreciate ydur-testimonyvand your very
comprehensive commentary on the proposed amendments;

Any questions to my left?

COMMISSIONER BREYER: .Yeu revieW;legal work rather
quickly, very well. Do‘you think that you will have some sort

of memo on whether we have the legal power to adopt the career

MR. CAMPBELL. We would be happy to --

COMMISSIONER BREYER- It 1s a dlfflcult questlon and
I think a week from Tuesdayy when we are going to be dlscuss-
1ng these thlngs, I thlnk it would be helpful to have the best

legal advice we can have and you mlght see what the department




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

234

thinking is.

MR. CAMPBELL: i agree that it is an interesting
question and we would like to turn our attention.to that. I
might‘mention also.that a good attorney, of course, submits a
proposed order setting out exactly Qhat he wants. We did not
have the time to do thatland submit a draft guideiine every
time we made a suggestion. But‘if-the Commission‘finds that
it would be helpful to come'upkwith a draft,.We would likevto'
have the opportunity to do that;

COMMISSIONER.BREYER: Well, the career'criminal is
the policy question and the -- one question is the policy-
we have got to follon.‘ We could come to‘one anewer{'.l mean

I favor these changes first of all, and the other is the

rquestlon is whether we have the legal authority to change and

I ‘hope that the statute is flexible enough to glve us that
authority. It is that second question that I think we’ mlght
need legal help on. .

The other thlng, it seems to me, is your last point,

because you are quite rlght that the purpose of that stipula-

tion has nothing to do with acceptance of responsibility. It

was a way in an approprlate case, as the statute provides, to

escape the'llteral language of the career offender prov1510ns




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

_of-the'statute. You are aware of that?

- have any consequence to the acceptance of respon51b111ty or

"of that.

235

) MR. CAMPBELL: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BREYER°A I don't think,it was meant to

vice versa. 1 am not sure what language we should put in,

whether 1t'is commentary or whatever to make that clear. This

is the first time I have ever heard that unlntended conseguence

MR. CAMPBELL: ﬁell,:in a setting whereltnere is an
attempt onrthe part of any'participants in the process to in-
crease the result --

COMMISSIONER BREYER: I see it.

MR..CAMPBELL; -- it certainly provldes a way to at-
tempt to do that. |

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Commissioner Block?

COMMISSIONER BLOCK*' I just have an observation on
that last point, and I want to get 1t clear pefore 1 attempt
myvcomment.’ Your p01nt in terms of relevant conduct and the
acceptance of responsibility is that with stipulation the
conduct is really - say bank robbery, letlsjtake that, and
in arranglng a plea, one'pOSSibility according to‘the.guide—

lines 1is to take a plea to the-. lesser 1nclud1ng bank larceny.,
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let's say, but to stipulate the elements of the robbery and
then to be sentenced under the robbery guldellne.

Was your concern that the defendant faced with that
optlon .or not acceptlng the tradltlonal stlpulatlon, would not
get the acceptance of responsibility unless he or she stlpu—
lated to the robbery elements?

R. CAMPBELL: Because of the breadening of the ac-
ceptance of respon51b111ty, and having just made that change a
year ago, I am certain the Comm1551on does not w1sh to retreat
from it, so I thlnk if the CommlsSLOn sees the need to address
.it,'it would be on the othercend of making it‘clear that what
is contemplated is an express-stipuiationdinjreliance on
1(b) (1.2). |

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: There is a little evidence on a
related but'not_identical point, and you w1ll pardon me for
the relatedness.and not the identical, because we have nothlng
on that point. But in looking at the first several-hundred
bank robbery cases, we noticed that there are.both a dropping
of counts and'aCCeptance'of responsibility, but that is only
a related question, but it doesn't appear as if the courts
are requiring one tc'accept pleas fOr_all'ef.the'counts.before

giving acceptance of responsibility._»NOw, that is not
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identical, but it is a related issue;,and.thedother guidelines
seenm to be working out okay:in the Sense:that there is.no
whip—sawing between dropplng counts and the acceptance pro-
vision. The: 1nformation<is available_and we are distributing
that now and you might be 1nterested in that.

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: ‘Thank you very much,.Mr.
Campbell.v

MR. CAMPBELL: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER NAGEL’I Our-next witness is Professor

Larry Rlbsteln, Professor of Law, George Mason Unlver51ty

Professor Rlbsteln, we are very happy to have you
with us today.

-MR. RIBSTEIN: I apprec1ate the opportunlty to be
here. I admlre your Stlmlnl at this p01nt in the afternoon,
and I w1ll try not to presume on it more than I need to. |

I am here to talk: ‘about 1n51der tradlng penalties
and spec1f1cally the sugéestlon in proposed Amendment 119 that |
possible insider tradlng penaltles should be increased beyond

those for other forms of fraud and also the adjustments in the

basic fraud penalties that will be applled to insider ‘trading

under 2(f)(l.2).

Very briefly, I have three kinds of problems,with
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insider trading penalties and with not qnly the amendments but
also the'preeent,system. |

.Qne, the problem of the'penalties being based on
ioss, there.are two sort of sub—problems with that. ‘One is we
don't really have a'theory or a good explanation.ferzthe kinds
of losses insider trading causee. ‘There is a considerable
amount of debate on that.

The second. sub-problem is that the way loss I think
is computed now under 2(f)(l 1) is that you look at the way
that the market has been affected by the 1nformatlon that the
insider was tradlng on, and that I think is not only totally
inappropriate ffom a policyzstandpoint, but alsovlncon51stent
with case law, statutory law, and so-forth.

The problem is that 1n51der trading is not the same.

“thing as deception. What the 1n51der is d01ng wrong is trad-

ing and nothing more than that. If anythlng, he is helplng

the market more than he is hurting it, to the extent that other
people trade on the basis of the'information’about what the
insider is doing. We are hotftalking about a lie or a misrep-
resentation to the market. Se, again, I think it is ih appro-
priate to base inSider'trading penalties'on the same theory

that is being used for deception under 2(£)(1.1), and to the
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extent that you even increase'insideratrading penalties beyond ;

what is now being imposed for deception and.to the extent that.

you increase‘the penalties for deception, I think you are just

making those problems worse.

Our second problem is that, whatever penalties you

" have for insider trading, I think ought to take into account

the}fact that the crime is extremely ill-defined at thlS p01nt.
Congress refrained from deflnlng it when it last had the op-—
portunlty in the 1988 Act, and the courts still haven't made
up their mlnds, for 1nstance, the Sunreme Court very recently
in the Carpenter case declining to dec1de whether the-misap—
propriation theory was a vaild theory for 1n51der_trading'
losses. | ' ‘. ‘ |

I think one illustration of that is.the.problem you
get under the Dirks case,_a’tippee is liable if-the»tipper
reaps some personal beneflt from the tlp,_so what is the per;
sonal benefit’f It might be,'as the Supreme Court itself in-

dicated, a glft by the tlpper to the tlppee, what'has been

known as the."blg chill" 51tuatlon, where you have a tlpper

who wants to confer a present. in the form of information on
the tippee. The Supreme Court»saidvthat that might be a

personal penefit, but that is very hazy when you get thatnkind
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of benefit. .

I mentioned in my written statement the case of Barrj

Switzer who was ‘sunbathing at a track neet bne day, overheard
a friend of his who was a corporate executive talklng about a

pusiness trip he was about to take to sell a subsidiary.

Switzer then traded on that information, tipped to remote and

third-level.tippees, and'they all reaped some money, but the
Court sald that was not a violation of 10(b)(5), because the
executive friend of Switzer's dldn t know that Sw1tzer was
there. -

Well, under'Dirks it is quite possible-that-if this
exequtive had glanced around, had turned'around.and seen .
switzer sunbathing there,_Switzer.saw the glance and inter-
preted it or should have interéreted'it —- there is a sienter
problem here -- should have interpreted it as an attempt to
make a gift tquwitzer. That is a'violation of personal bene-
fit under.ﬁirks. That is some'very‘hazy facts to rest a po-
tentlally criminal v1olat10n on.: |

The‘thlrd problem I have with crlmlnal penaltles for
insider trading, the way they are presently constituted, is
that you have got I think a 51gn1f1cant danger of deterrrng

legitimate activities. - One klnd of activity that I mentloned

1
1
1
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in my statement is the‘activity’of analysts which the Supreme
Court was specifically concerned about'in the Dirks case.
Analysts work on all kinds of non-public 1nformatlon ‘and they

have'got to be able to know when that hazy test under Dirks

has been breached and they, of course, are going to have in

|
.
|
|
\
|
|

mind the potentially serious criminal penalties that can follow

from playing too close to the line.

I think that is unfortunate, because analysts do
quite a bit in terms of conveying ihformation to the.market.
Another example that I’didn't'mention in my testimony-is'the
effect on incentive compensatlon. It is quite a legitimate '
form of compensation to award executives stoch’in their ooﬁ;
pany. But if you have extremely serious prison sentences as-
sociated with playing too close to the line,- that form of
compensation becomes less valuable.

I want to close by an 1llustration of the kinds of
'problems you get iuto by loss-related penalties for insider
trading.  In the SwitzerVCase,.according to a table in the
Court's opinion in Switzer, a very rough computation of the
market loss that would be applied under'Z(f)(l.l), if you look

at Note 8 under that, let's look at the aggregate market loss

resulting from the disclosure, it 1s about $2.5 million. This-

i
l
1
|
!
i
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of over-deterring legitimate activity and so forth,-I think

‘of your real concerns is at the point of adjudication and con-
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is comparing the sale prices of investors who sold before the
disclosure with the post-disclosure price.-:

Under the proposed~amendments to 2(f)(1.1), that

- —————

would make it a Level 21 offense, which is about the same thin

as selling 60 kilos of marijuana under 2(d) (1.1). Now, I

you have a_problem here of penalties thétfare't'properly_
telated to the seriousness of the offense. So, I think,
despite the attention has been given to some highly publicized

recent insider trading cases, I think the Commission ought to.

stop and think about it, think about what I think are some:
very serious issues about what the appropriate penalties are

for insider trading.

Thank you.

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Thank you. I take it ‘that one .

viction, rather than the point of sentencing and thatlin effect
yoﬁr argument is that when we come to seﬁtencing, because of-
the concerns you'raise ébout who.shpuld and should not be

convicted, we should proceed caﬁtiously; .If i‘read you Ccor-

rectly, let me ask you the same question I asked Professor
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Macey, and that is if you were in our place, what would you

recommend the normative sentence for someone who is convicted, ;

since we don't. deal with that stage, someone who comes to us

conv1cted of insider trad1ng°

MR. RIBSTEIN: Well, it seems to me I thought about |

that question in terms of what approach you would\take and it
seems to me that maybe the best -- I have trouble deallng with |
this, as 1 am sure Professor Macey’dld, too, because neither -
of uslthink there ought to be any etiminal penalties for in-
sider trading, bﬁt - |

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: That may be the answer.

MR. RIBSTEIN: Right, but I am not here to propose

that, because that is not yoﬁr job, obviously. I want to say

hat in view of the uncertalnty -

COMMISSIONER NAGEL:: You. could argue that it should
be probation for 2 months‘or-something, that is what I am
asking you. i |

MR. RIBSTEIN: But Cohgress has very specifically
said that there shall be crlmlnal penaltles for insider trad-
ing, and I am not going to argue ‘with Congress today What I

am going to say 1is that in f1x1ng those penaltles, we ought

to have some of these considerations in mind, and perhaps a

i
!
i
|
i
1
|
.
|
I
i
|
i
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-

beneflt related test, rather than a loss related test, given

|

1

1
two points: One, the problem you have in determlnlng what the%
o v ,
losses are, and, two, the over-deterrence problem.' I think X
4

somebody who is reaping a very substantial benefit from insider .

{
trading knows what he or she is getting into and - ; %
|
COMMISSIONER NAGEL: When you say "a beneflt," do
you mean -—- is there.a drstinction? |
| MR. RIBSTEIN: I am talking about the benefit.to the

trader.

1
|
|
COMMISSIONER NAGEL: 'Right.  ”h P i 2

MR. RIBSTEiN: For 1nstance, in the Wayne case, you \
are talking about something 1ike $19 million in profits there,!
I think that should be, assuming we are going to have cr1m1na1\
penalties for insider tradlng, I think that should be treated
far more seriously than somebody who has reaped 51gn1f1cantly
less benefit, even though that person may ‘have caused an equai
or éreater loss to the market, given the problems of determin=
ing loss. | |

COMMISSIONER VAPEL° I just want to be sure that you

are arguing that it would be more approprlate to use the gain

to the offender, rather than the loss. as the basis?

MR. RIBSTEIN' Exactly. Right.

i
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'CQMMISSIONEﬁ'NAGEL: And you said you had a second
distinction?

MR. RIBSTEIN: ‘No, that is my primafy -- that is
realIy where I come down. If you are going_to'use the loss
test, then I agree with.those aspects of Professor Macey's
testimony which I have just had a chance to glance at but I
haven't read his other writlhgs, I think you want to look at,
for instance, the misappropriation theory as a p0351ble gulde,
so that somebody who has taken information from his own em-
ployer would be punlshed on the basis of what it cost hls em—

ployer;'rather than‘what it cost some other party that he had

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Questions on my left?
COMMISSIONER BREYER: Isn't that what we do?
«MR.'RIBSTEIN? Excuse me°_

COMMISSIONER BREYER' I thought that is what we d1d

It says that 1n51der trading, we use the fraud table corres-
ponding to the gain ‘resulting from the offense.

MR RIBSTEIN. If that is true, then that is flne,
put that is not the way.I'ahifeading it.’

COMMISSIONER BREYER: 'Weil,'l_wiil read it. It says

increased by the numbet of levels.from the table corresponding”
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Insidér Trading Act of 188, it talks about the Commission
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to the gain resulting from the offense, andAthen in the back- .
ground ‘it says because the victims and losses are difficult,

if not impossible, to identify, the gain, i.e., the total

increase in value realized through trading in securities by
the defendant versus acting ‘in concert with him or when he

provided inside information and it is employed,'instead of --

MR; RIBSTEIN: Judge; I‘think at least there is an
ambiguity there. If you look at Note 8, i£ does»talk.about
estimate based on aggregate:mafket'loés.v )

‘COMMISSIONER BREYER: Note what?

MR. RIBSTEIN: This is Notg 8 oﬁ'page 2.68.

COMMISSIONER BREYER: But‘thaﬁ is not insider trad-
ing. That is --

MR. RIBSTEIN: Thatfs right,'but as I.read it, those
tables are applied to 2(f)(lf2).

 COMMISSIONER BREYER: To find out how to do it, you
have to turn to 2(£) (1.2) .~ Ahyway, I thought ﬁhat is what that
the -- H |

_COMMISSIONER BLOCK: 1t I'can;iﬁtérject,_l think the

confusion comes from the proposed amendments on page 70,
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seeks comment on whether there should be a higher offense

level for 1n51der trading of procufement fraud than,for other

‘frauds. It is not clear what guldellne we are referring to

in that sentence.

COﬁMISSIONER'BREYER: Well, your view is that we areé
doing it basically right,'Iwmean the part that.I read you isv
pasically right? |

MR. RIBSTEIN: That's right, but‘if that is going to%
beAcontrolling, ‘rather than 1ncorporat1ng the loss tables, |
then I thihk -

COMMISSIONER BREYER} Well, you are looking atvthe
table, but if you use it, when you lookbat the teble,-but what
you are measuring is the amount of money'thatrthe people who.
got the infofmation and played the market, the amount they
made . | |

MR. RIBSTEIﬁ: That's‘right. i-understand. I‘see'
what you are referring to on the bottom of 2.70, but in any
event, I think that ought to be clarlfled becaﬁse -—

COMMISSIONER BREYER: It certainly should, you're
rlght, if there is confu31on. |

| MR. RIBSTEIN. -- because I thlnk there is a con-—-

fusion created by incorporating the loss table from --
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COMMISSIONER BREYER: I mean I thought the theory

-- we are prescrlblng for the typlcal case, I mean_we"are not

| writing - T realize that in insider trading there are all

|
1
t
l
|
kinds of unusual cases, there are borderllne cases and there '!
| l
are hard cases and sO forth, but we are writing really for the{
easier cases, the typlcal cases, and . I assume those are the )
’ |

cases where somebody gets some inside 1nformat10n and they use%
!

l

I were a lawyer, you give me zero money and I take your money
and I try to make money out of that and 1 owe 1t to you. It

is not mine. I took your money and took the opportunity-and

I owe you that, and it would be-true if I took your car and 1
guess it is true if I took your 1nformatlon, if I take your

information and I use it to my‘advantage. It is your informa-

tion.

MR. RIBSTEIN: That's rlght.

COMMISSIONER BREYER: = A And what I have deprived you
of is the ﬁse of it. You areuentitled'to the money I got for
ity not me,»and that is why 1 thought we were measuring the
harm done in.terms of the money I made by wrongly using your
information. Should T be thlnklng of it that way?

MR. RIBSTEIN: I thlnk.so, yes, I thlnk that :should
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own conduct based on a fear that they are going to be in that
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guidelines. \
I also want to respond to another point you made,
nd that is-in distinguiShing between the ordinary case and
the cases that have actually led to crlminal oenalties. I
think we‘do need to worry,about the deterrent effect on legi—
tlmate act1v1ty from these criminal cases that actually get to

criminal sentencing, because the people Wlll determine their

dark and they may say., Well, you know, it is only Boesky, but
there is‘the kinds of conduct that'is included'that is a lot
more vague ‘than what Boesky did.

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Questlons on ﬂy rwght5

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: Let me follow up on that, be-
cause I was somewhat confused with your comments also, and I
guess, in readlng the proposed ‘amendments, it is not clear in
the proposed amendments that we are talklng about'the 2(f)(l.2)
in which we used the word "galn although the appllcatlon
notes and then the background statement is -- insider tradlng
is'vieﬁed essentially as~sophisticated fraud, because the
victim's loss is difflcult,eif not iﬁpossible, to identify, .

and the gain is used instead of. the loss.
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Now, help me with this. To the”exﬁeﬁt that insider
trading is a taking, that is,'theré are defined property
rights, and all insider trading is is.aftaking. ;This éeems
like a reasonable approach, I think yéuIWiil agree.

MR. RIBSTEIN: That's right.. If -

COMMISSIONER BLOCk: What Qe could usé help with,

and I think which would address your problem, is how do you

get out of thisvcatégory those types of insider trading which

are not takings, whe;e the property’rights,are not W¢ll de-
fined. Iidon't know what the punishment for those should~be;
bué I know that for a éimple taking, I think Judge.Breyef
was getting to that in térms of when.it is a violation-of
prope:ty-rights, but this analogy té'a éopﬁisticétednfraudlor
any.fraud seems- okay, a£ least-iﬁ ié toléréble, and I think
you wéﬁld agree.. |

The problem yéu_have.is when there»isn;t a taking
and there aren't well—defined propert§ rights. How would we
rewrite this, if we are going tovréwrite it, so as to get out
those cases? I think that is the.basic fuzziness question
that you raise. I think that the essence of ydur point is

thét if you crank up the penaltiés and you have a fuzzy

standard, there are real effects in the economy. The standard |

1
i
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is clear if it is just a taking and not so many real effects
in the economy.
WR. RIBSTEIN: That's right. Now that I see that the

Comm1351on agrees that the test shouid be related to the in-

sider's gain, we do come down to the problems you have been
mentioning. In the Dirks case, the Dirks example is a good

example of the situation where the'property rights aren't clear

COMMISSIONER'BLOCK: ‘What would we do in terms of
this guideline to deal with that? |
| 'MR. RIBSTEIN: I think, instead_of adjusting the |
insioer trading or instead of having insider trading penalties
moving in look step.with the:basie'fraud penalties, also,_v

instead of maklng insider tradlng penaltles worse than the

factors ih notes to~2(f)(l¢2) that take into a-count that dif-
ference between 1n51der tradlng and other.forms of fraua.
COMMISSIONER BLOCK: If I could give you a homework
assignment; it would be to help us on that dlstlnctlon, be-
cause I think that would go'a.iong way towards aileviating
your'fear about whatever we are.doihg with this.penalty struc-

ture, it would help us.
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MR. RIBSTEIN: Well, I will do that.

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: If I could ask you for a home-

1

!

%

|

i

!‘

work assignment, that would be it. = : l
COMMISSIONER NAGEL: I believe we asked Professor \

i

i

Macey to do some homework. He shares I think many of your same
' |

concerns, so it would be well if we could receive some specifiés

1

on your suggestions on how we should give a new look or look at
new criteria for ingider trading. I know he seemed tb ﬁave
advocated practically that we should go béck to square one and
look at the.estabiishment of the.base level, look at how we
determine loss, loék at how we determine the specific offense.
characteristics, et cetera. He didn't feel that insider trad-
ing is fraud, and I think you indicéted that you ﬁéel that the
penélty should be something less than fraud.
_ MR. RIBSTEIN: That's right.

COMMISSIONEﬁ NAGEL: So you tend to agree somewhat‘
with his assessment --

MR. RIBSTEIN: That's tight.

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: -- and our taking a new look as

well as insider trading not being clearly fraud?

MR. RIBSTEIN: That's right. I think -fraud is an

extremely broad word and I think that is part of the problem'
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hefe. Sure, it might be fraud undér some people's.defiﬁition,
but I think the kinds of things that are covered ﬁndervé(f)(l.I)A
are fraud in the sense pf deception,~aﬂd my point is that is
not what insider trading is,'and therefore you have to‘goAtQ
a éompletely penalty struéture to téke'that intb accoﬁnt.
| COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Thank you very mﬁch.

MR. RIBSTEIN: Thank you.j l

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: I have that they héve turned up
the air—condifioning so high we may.haVe chilled the enthusiasm
of anyone else to testify. Bu£ let me ask if Mr. Bartholomew
is. here? Yes, thank you. 'We wefe’wofried that you may have
frozen. | |

Mr. Bartholomew is the Senior Economist with the

| Federal Home Loan Bank Board. We appreciate your coming and

‘staying through the frost. We are preparing you for going

outside.
MR. BARTHOLOMEW: Abﬁually; I should correcﬁ tﬁat
just a little bit. I am not thejsénior Eéonémist, I am a
Senior Economist.
.COMMISSIONER NAGEL: .We have the same éroblem,'v
[Laﬁghter.]; |

MR. BARTHOLOMEW: Madam Chair and Members of the
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CommisSion, I am pleased to appear‘before'you today; I apolo-

gize for not getting my written remarks to the Commission
prior to my testimony. Unfortunately, this was not poSsible;
However, I did bring them with me and I will be as brief as

possible from them.

I would like to comment on the presence of negligence
: ‘ _ , !
and fraud in thrift institutions on which Federal regulators

have taken action in recent years. I would also like to com-
ment on some issues pertaining to appropriate sentehces for
those individuals found.guilty of criminally fraudulent actions
directly related to federally-reéulated thrift institutions-

I should p01nt out, I am a financial.economist with
the Office of Policy and Economic Research at the Federal Home
Loan Bank Board. I am not a lawyer and do not con51der myself
an expert on the legal issues surrounding criminal fraud.
ﬁowever, I am able to provide some 1nformation on the recent
problems experienced in the thrift industry, since coming to
the Bank Board I have been 1nvolved in an economlc analy51s of
the causes of the recent thrift failures.

As I am not a legal expert, I apologize if I make

any mistakes in the correct use. of the legal terms.. The Federal

Home Loan Bank Board is the Federal regulator of U S. thrift
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institutions that are either federally chartered or insured by

the Federal Savings & Loan’ Insurance Corporatlon.r

As has been well pub11c1zed, the U.S. thrift 1ndustry
has suffered.a number of problems during the 1980 s. During
the period 1980 through 1988; the Bank Board and the FSLIC
have resolved'some 488_failed thrlft 1nst1tutlons.' We con51der
a resolved thrift institution to berne.that was closed by
Federal regulators and eitner'liquidated or merged with a
healthy institution with assistance from tne FSLIC.

The causes of the problems experienced by the thrift
1ndustry are Very compllcated and not 51mply generallzed -In

terms of the economics of the issue, we‘often refer t0'h1ghu

-1nterest rates in the early 1980's, we refer to problems w1th

partlcular reglonal economlc condltlons in parts of the United

‘States, as well as a few other factors relatlng_more to the

economics.
Unfortunately, the ‘thrift 1ndustry appears to have
experienced-a 51gn1flcant amount of fraudulent act1v1ty that

was perpetrated by both thrlft institution insiders and out-

'siders. This has recently been documented in a study by the

General Accounting Office, as well as the study that we are

doing which is in its preliminary stages.
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Presently, it is too early to say to what extent

this factor, fraud, negligent activity, contributed to the

failure of thrifts or to the cost of resolv1ng failed thrifts.

- As I mentioned, we are doing a study in my office, a detailed

study of all of the characteristicsvof resolved institutions
and the costs of their resolution. |

A11'205 institutiens.that were resoived»in 1988 were
analeed; These resolutions are estimated to cost'the FSLIC
on a'present vaiue-basis,SBl billion. A.summaticn of the pre-
liminary findings'of this.study are shown in a chart in the
written'document which I submitted to the Commission.

The 50 most costiy resolutions;in.l988 that were re-
solved at an estimated cost of $24 billion'Wefe analyzed
separately. In my written remarks, I talkvabOut some of the
thingslthat.we generally attribute to more the economic side,
and those characteristics are illustrated in that particular-
set of information. ” |

The studj that we did alsoiexamined the-l988 resolu-
tions for the presence of negllgence and fraud,'and,it is im-
portant to emphasize the fact that we only could look for the
presence, not necessarily_to the magnitude nor to the degree,.

nor were we able to ascertain as to whether the presence of
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fraudulent activity caused theifailure of the institution.l At
this stage, it_is not possible.

| ~ The information~collectedron the presence‘of negli-'
gence and fraud in the 1988 resolutions was based upon the de-
termination of the Bank Board's Litigation'Division oi the
Office of the General Counsel. The attorneys working on these

cases were surveyed as to their opinion of the presence of

‘several categories of negligence and fraud in a particular

case. Their findings may be conSidered to be those-that they
feel are actionable and on-actionable on the part of Federal

regulators° No»attempts were made_to distinguish the degree

to which an activity had been present. |

In Virtually all cases, the board of directors of . -

‘resolved institutions were found to not have acted prudently.

Fraudulent activities and regulatory violations were found in
a number of the resolved thrifts.‘ Our preliminary study shows
a higher incidence of self- dealing, other fraud and regulatory
Violations in the most costly of institutions that we resolved

At this time, it is too early to tell for some of
the 1988 resolutions whether categories of negligence or fraud
were present. However, based on_the COunt to date, self-

dealing was present in at least 34 percent of the 205 cases,
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presence of negligence and fraud in these resolutions, it is
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and for the 50 costliest resolutions, such activity was found
in 50 percent of the cases. In 27 percent of all of the 1988 |
resolutions and 42 percentvof the.cbstliesﬁ cases, other forms
of fraud were present. 'We define féf'this study "other }raud"
to be that fraud which wés perpetrated by outsiders.

Loans and borrower violations were also fouhd.‘ We
found that they occurred in at least 34 pefcent'of the 1988
resolutions, and for the 50 coétiiest resolutions. such viola-
tions were.found at 50 percent of the institutions. It is
coincidental that those ratios for loans to one borrower vio-
lations are the same for the'ratios‘forvéelf-dealing. We
analyzed that as well, andithere were institutibns that had
self-dealing but not loans to‘one 5orrower violations.

Whereas this analysis is preliminary and does repre-

sent merely the presence of categorieé of negligehce and fraud,

gence and fraud-present in those institutions that we‘studied
and were resolved in 1988. |

It also appears that tbe costliest resolutions had a
higher incidence of the presence of fraud and negligence than

the resolutions in general. However, although there was a
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not currently p0551ble to .determine the'magnltude of dameges
associated, nor to what degree the negllgence or fraud'con— ~
ttibutedttd the thrift failures.' |

As a civil agency, the Bank Board is not empowered
to do criminal investigations»or'to‘handle criminal'prosecu—
tions. However, the Bank Board assembles information and
refers it to criminal authorities; 'The~number of criminal re-
ferrals involving erimestagainst.savings.and loans increased
from 434 in 1985 to over 6,100 in 1987.

In 1983, there were two 51gn1f1ant criminal convic-
tionS‘ebtained.against individuals assoc1ated w1th FSLIC in-
sured institutions. In 1987, there were 66 convictions ob-
tained, and for the first ll months of 1988 there were 58 con-.
victions. Durlng January through November of 1988, c1v11
judgments. were rendered in favor of the U. S Government in 56
ceses, with some $97 million awarded; | |

Certainly, this informetion.does refleet the fact

that the thrift industry has experienced a significant amount

ing the prosecution of individuals snspected of committing
fraud against insured institutions,tthe Bank Board has aggres-—

sively supported the imposition of orders requiring restitution
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to the FSLIC by convicted qriminals, along with prison sen—-
tences and fines.

Federal law affords the'vicfim of crime an 6ppor—
tunity of obtaining recovery of funds lost as part of then
criminal sentence. Restitutién orders issued'pursuéht to the
Victim‘and Witness Protection Act are routinely sought by ﬁhe'
FSLIC from the court at the timerf sentencing. Whereas,

Federal efforts have been increésed, problémS'currently exist

'in preventing this type of crime, prosecuting the perpetrators

and recovering from the perpetrators the damages that they
have caused. |

As an economist, it is difficult to determine the
appropriate sentence for the variety of white-collar crime
that exists. Criminal penalties do offer a disincentivevtd
the potential criminal. It is not clear that a fine is a suf-
ficient penalty for criminal fraud, espedially in thriff'in—_
stitutions. Whereas a financial penalty may causé hardship to
those convicted of whitefcoilaf-cfime, a‘prisdﬁ séntence cer-
tainly may be a greater disincentive.

Certainly, the fipanéial losses associated witﬁ most
white—céllér crime.of thrift'insfitutions are greater than

most of what we would call traditional bank robberies. In
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this: regard, an argument for sentences associated with the
the magnitude of the financial 1osses incurred by the crime
might be warranted. 1t seems that this is not currently the
case. I understand from discussions with people in my office,
the attorneys who know, unfortunately the.typioal prison sen-
tence for a thrift officer convicted of defrauding that thrift |
of millions of dollars has been just a few years at most.

It is certainly clear that damages incurred throgh
criminally fraudulent act1v1ty should be recouered. This is
not always possible, as the conv1cted oerpetrator may already
have spent or hldden the proceeds of their fraudulent act1v1ty.

From the p01nt of view of a dlslncentlve, if an in-

~d1v1dual conv1cted of fraud cannot pay restitution, then an

addltlonal penalty that reflects unrecovered damages seems to -
make sense. In this way. the potential perpetrator would
understand that the conseguences of his or her criminal

activity would be fully subject to some form'of effective pun-

ishment.

In closing, 1t is" necessary to p01nt out that the
thrift industry has experlenced a 51gn1f1cant amount of white-

collar crime perpetrated both by insiders and outsiders. Sen- |

“tences that include both fines and prison terms seem to be
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warranted as an appropriate punisﬁmenfland disincentive. Sen-
tences fhat‘reflect unrecoverable damages'definieely seen to
be appropriate.
| Thank you very much for thls opportunlty and 1f I

can't answer the gquestions, I certalnly can have them referred
to the-correet-people.'

COMMISSiONER NAGEL: Thank you.

Are there any questions. | |

COMMISSIONER BLOCK: I have'a'quick follow-up ques-
tion; The guidelines, as you may know, punish-fraud on basic—
ally:the size of the taking, and the question was whether there
should be a special enhancement for'financial'insﬁitufions.
If I was to summarize the thrust ofvyouf tesfimohy, I think
that one part that comes out of isethe fact there should be
these financial and 1mprlsonment penalﬁles for large- scale
fraud. I think you will flnd that 1n the guldellnes.

The second point I amlless clear, and that is what -

is it that makes savings'and loan fraud special'and why should

million now and there is a proposal to go above that in terms

of gradations. Is there anything specialsabout‘savings and
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loan fraud that we should take into accoﬁnt?

MR. BARTHOLOMEW: I did see that in the éuestions_
that were discussed about revising the guidelineé( and as an
economlst and also hav1ngrlooked‘at these cases, much as I
might want to give spec1f1c penaltles myself I don't think
that is possible. And as an economlst looking at this, to me
fraud is:fraud. If it is at a thrift 1nst1tutlon, I thought
about this in preparing the testlmony, 1flsomebody rips off a
citizen for doing some kind Qf contfact work which they didn't |
do and didn't fﬁlfill and were fraudulent in the activity and
caused damage, those damages to me4aré‘thewsame as damages
caused by fraud committed'at‘a thfift inétitution, other than’
if we want td refer to the size. |

COMMISSIOﬁER‘BLOCK: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER NAGEL: Thank yqu'very much.

MR. BARTHOLOMEW: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER.BLOCK{ Is thefe_anyone else who would
like to festify?

[No response.]

If not, we will consider this hearing closéd. Thank
you very much.

[Whereupon, at 4:00 p.m., the Commission adjourned.]




